LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee: CABINET

Date: TUESDAY, 2 JUNE 2009
Venue: MORECAMBE TOWN HALL
Time: 10.00 A.M.
AGENDA

Please note the change of venue from Lancaster to Morecambe Town Hall for this meeting,
due to availability of meeting rooms.

\ At the time of publication portfolios have not been allocated. \

1. Apologies
2. Minutes

To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 21 April 2009
(previously circulated).

3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader

To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the
agenda the item(s) are to be considered.

4, Declarations of Interest
To consider any such declarations.
5. Public Speaking
To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.
Reports from Overview and Scrutiny
None.
Reports

6. Cabinet Appointments to Committees, Liaison Groups, Outside Bodies,
Partnerships and Boards (Pages 1 - 22)

Report of the Chief Executive.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Migrant Impact fund (Pages 23 - 25)

Report of the Corporate Director (Finance and Performance).

2008/09 4th Quarter Corporate Performance Review (Pages 26 - 52)

Report of the Corporate Director (Finance and Performance).

West End Masterplan Mid-term Review (Pages 53 - 158)

Report of the Corporate Director (Regeneration).

National Transport Awards (Pages 159 - 161)

Report of the Corporate Director (Community Services).

Review of Council Housing Rent Increases 2009/10 (Pages 162 - 166)

Report of the Corporate Director (Community Services) and Head of Financial Services.
Street Services Agreement with Lancashire County Council (Pages 167 - 170)
Report of the Corporate Director (Community Services).

Urgent Business (Pages 171 - 174)

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Members are asked whether they need to declare any further declarations of interest
regarding the exempt appendix.

Cabinet is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the following
items:-

“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the
grounds that they could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”

Members are reminded that, whilst the following items have been marked as exempt, it is
for the Council itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in
public. In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and should balance the interests of
individuals or the Council itself in having access to information. In considering their
discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council Officers.

Funding of the Employee Establishment (Pages 175 - 194)

Report of the Chief Executive.



ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
0] Membership
Councillors Stuart Langhorn (Chairman), Evelyn Archer, June Ashworth, Jon Barry,

Eileen Blamire,  Abbott Bryning,  Jane Fletcher, David Kerr, Roger Mace and
Malcolm Thomas

(i) Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Debbie Chambers, Democratic Services, telephone 01524 582057 or
email dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk.

(iii) Apologies

Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
memberservices@Ilancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on Thursday, 21° May, 2009



Page 1 Agenda ltem 6

CABINET

Cabinet Appointments to Committees, Liaison
Groups, Outside Bodies, Partnerships and Boards

2" June 2009

Report of Chief Executive

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider the membership and terms of reference of the Cabinet Committee, Cabinet
Liaison Groups and also Cabinet appointments to Outside Bodies, Partnerships and Boards.

Date Included in Forward Plan N/A.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision X Referral from Cabinet
Member

This report is public.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS

(1) That Cabinet considers whether to re-constitute the Committee and
Liaison Groups previously constituted, as set out in Appendix B to the
report.

(2) That Cabinet considers whether any additional Committees or Liaison
Groups are required and, if so, agrees their Terms of Reference.

(3) That Cabinet Members be requested to consider and agree to the
Membership of any Cabinet Committees approved in (1) above and, that
with regard to Cabinet Liaison Groups, the Lead Cabinet Member of each
Group be requested to inform the Chief Executive of the participants
he/she wishes to invite to such meetings.

(4) That Cabinet considers the appointments to Outside Bodies, Partnerships
and Boards as set out in the Appendix C to this report.

1. Cabinet Committees and Liaison Groups

1.1 In accordance with Part 4 Section 4 of the City Council’s Constitution (extract

attached at Appendix A) Members are requested to consider membership of
Cabinet Committees and Liaison Groups.



1.2

13

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.3

4.0

4.1

Page 2

Members are advised that at its meeting on 9" March 2009, the Morecambe
Retail, Commercial and Tourism Cabinet Liaison Group resolved that the
Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility be requested to “reinstate the
Morecambe Retail, Commercial and Tourism Cabinet Liaison Group in the
new Municipal Year and to consider extending the membership of the Group.”
(Morecambe Retail, Commercial and Tourism Cabinet Liaison Group Minute
33 refers).

Set out at Appendix B to the report are the meetings currently constituted for
consideration as part of recommendation (1) above.

Options and Options Analysis
The options are:

2.1.1 To note existing arrangements and make no amendments other than
to the memberships.

2.1.2 To consider and approve, where appropriate, any proposals from
Cabinet Members.

Outside Bodies, Partnerships and Boards

Members are reminded that, at its meeting on 17" February 2009, Cabinet
considered a report of the Chief Executive asking members to review
appointments to Outside Bodies, Partnerships and Boards following the
appointment of a new Leader of the Council and the consequential changes
to Cabinet portfolios. It was agreed that Cabinet appointments to outside
bodies, as set out in the report, remain in place until the end of the 2008/9
municipal year (Minute 144 refers).

Attached at Appendix C is a list of all organisations to which Cabinet makes
appointments on the basis of Portfolio responsibilities.

Also included in Appendix C are details of an invitation for the City Council to
nominate an elected Member and designated deputy to join the North
Lancashire Local Action Group Executive Group following a recent decision
by the Lancashire Economic Partnership to form an Executive Group to act as
the decision-making body for all projects, initiate project development ideas
and report to the Local Action Group on progress of the Rural Development
Programme for England and individual projects. It is expected to meet on a
quarterly basis

Council at its meeting on 18" May resolved that the relevant Cabinet
Members should be appointed as the Council’s representatives.

Also set out in Appendix D is a list of appointments to the Lancaster District
Local Strategic Partnership (LDLSP) for consideration. The list shows the
basis of appointment.

Options and Options Analysis

With regard to Outside Bodies, Partnerships and Boards, Cabinet is
requested to make appointments, as set out in the Appendix C to this report.



Page 3

5.0 Officer Preferred Option and Comments

5.1 It is recommended that appointments be aligned to individual Cabinet
Members’ portfolios.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
The establishment of Cabinet Committees and Cabinet Liaison Groups assists the Cabinet

in the discharge of executive functions. Representation on Outside Bodies is part of the City
Council’s community leadership role.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)

The proposals provide clear focus, transparency, accessibility and inclusiveness in the
Council’'s Executive decision-making processes.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no significant financial implications with regard to the recommendations.
Resources are available to provide the necessary level of support. Members of outside

bodies are entitled to travel expenses which are currently being funded from within existing
budgets.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’'S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications as a result of this report.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Tom Silvani
Telephone: 582132
Council Agenda and Minutes. E-mail: tsilvani@lancaster.gov.uk



Page 4

APPENDIX A

CONSTITUTION - CABINET PROCEDURE RULE EXTRACTS

Part 4, Section 4
Cabinet Procedure Rules

1. HOW THE CABINET OPERATES

11 Who May Make Executive Decisions?

The framework for how the Cabinet will function is set out in Article 7 of Part 2 of this
Constitution and these Rules of Procedure. The functions that are the responsibility
of the Cabinet are set out in Part 3, Section 2. Any Executive functions not set out

there, will
exercised.

(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)

be a matter for the Cabinet collectively to decide how they are to be
Executive functions can be discharged by:

the Cabinet collectively;

an individual Cabinet Member (non-Key Decision only);
a Committee of the Cabinet;

an Officer;

an Area Committee;

joint arrangements; or

another Local Authority.

2.9 Cabinet Liaison Groups

(@)

(b)

()

Cabinet Liaison Group are purely consultative and not decision-making.
They will be chaired by a member of Cabinet and there is no restriction
on size although the group must be limited to what is manageable and
effective for their purpose. They may be time limited or of longer
standing, again depending on their purpose.

The participants in the Group will be by invitation of the Chairman and
can be made up from any or all of the following:

Other members of Cabinet

Other members of Council not on Cabinet
Others from outside the Council

Council officers

Terms of Reference: Their Terms of Reference are to share information
about a particular topic, e.g. e-government and develop -effective
consultation and communication links with community groups and other
bodies with an interest in the subject area. In this way, individual Cabinet



(d)

(e)

Page 5

members will have a wider information and advisory platform to inform
executive decision-making and policy effectiveness.

Specific outcomes from their meetings may generate requests for pieces
of work to be undertaken by officers or partner bodies. Alternatively, it
could be a request to Overview and Scrutiny to set up a Task Group to
undertake a specific piece of work. There could also be specific reports
to Cabinet, Committees of Cabinet, individual Cabinet members, or other
Committees of Council recommending action for determination.

Each Liaison Group will have their terms of reference and expected
outputs approved by Cabinet before they meet.



Page 6

APPENDIX B

CABINET COMMITTEE

LANCASTER AND MORECAMBE MARKETS COMMITTEE

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Leader of the Cabinet with responsibility for relationships with other Councils,
Finance, and Transport including parking policy.

e City Council (Direct) Services including environmental enforcement.

e Property Services, joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment
Opportunities and Regeneration in Morecambe and Lunesdale Constituency,
and Neighbourhood Management in this District.

e Joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment Opportunities and
Regeneration in the Lancaster part of Lancaster & Wyre Constituency, and
Community Planning.

Terms of Reference:

To consider strategic issues regarding all Markets managed by the City Council, in
particular issues raised as part of the Best Value Review of Assets and Facilities
Action Plan.

Members are advised that this Committee is no longer included in the scheduled
timetable of meetings, but will be called on an ad hoc basis should any issues arise

which require consideration.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 2nd October 2008

Frequency: As required



Page 7

CABINET LIAISON GROUPS

CANAL CORRIDOR CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Member with Responsibility for:
e Joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment Opportunities and
Regeneration in the Lancaster part of Lancaster & Wyre Constituency, and
Community Planning.

Terms of Reference:

(2) That a Cabinet Liaison Group be created to consider the development
proposals for the Canal Corridor site.

(2) The purpose of the Liaison Group is to provide a forum prior to the
submission of a planning application where:

¢ information on the detailed studies undertaken to support the planning
application can be shared as it becomes available;

e details of the form, design and uses within the proposed development
can be shared as it develops.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 6th June 2008

Frequency: As required



Page 8

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:

Cabinet Member with Responsibility for:

e Arts, Museums, Leisure, Sport and Young People

Terms of Reference:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

To advise the Cabinet member for Children and Young People in all
matters relating to the district Council’s roles and responsibilities in
Every Child Matters-Agenda for Change, and the role of council in the
Lancaster District Children’s Trust.

To develop, as appropriate, policies and strategies relating to
Festivals and Events for referral through Cabinet subject to budget
allocations.

To promote the Council’'s commitment in its Corporate Plan priority
outcome, ‘Work to maintain a cohesive community where respect
for all is valued and celebrated.’ by ‘Implementing the Children and
Young People Strategic Plan'.

To ensure the engagement and participation of children and young
people in respect of the planning and delivery of the City Council’s
services.

To ensure that the City Council’s responsibilities in safeguarding and
ensuring the well being of children and young people are widely
disseminated, understood and acted upon.

To receive reports and develop effective action plans where
appropriate.

To monitor the delivery of the council’s children and young people
strategy.

Cabinet Minute No 54, 2nd September 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 21st April 2009

Frequency: Monthly



Page 9

CLIMATE CHANGE CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e City Council (Direct) Services including environmental enforcement.

Terms of Reference:

To establish a comprehensive Council wide 5 year Climate Change Strategy.

This year, to establish and implement a series of actions which can be implemented
within existing budgets available and that will have positive outcomes in terms of

adapting to and /or mitigating the impacts of climate change.

To advise and monitor the delivery of outcomes and targets set out the Council’s
Corporate Plan. i.e.

1. To reduce the amount of energy used by both the Council and households
across the district.

2. To undertake all works in the City Council’s Energy Management Action Plan.

3. Energy efficiency measures at Salt Ayre Sports Centre.

4. Implement national/EU sustainability policies through planning policy and
planning decisions and the implementation of Building Regulations to be

undertaken this year.

5. Reduce overall energy use in City Council buildings from 6,563,842kwh
(05/06) to 5,328,114kwh in 08/09.

6. Reduce CO2 emissions from City Council buildings from 0.0666 (05/06) to
0.057 in 08/09).

7. Increase the % of energy the City Council uses from sustainable sources from
9.90% in 05/06 to 60% in 08/09.

Cabinet Minute No 26, 24th July 2007 Refers
Last Meeting: 15th April 2008

Frequency: Every two months



Page 10

DISTRICT WIDE TENANTS LIAISON GROUP

Composition:

Councillors sit as non-voting members of the Forum. Councillor representation
comprises the Cabinet Member with responsibility for housing plus 5 other
Councillors invited by the Cabinet Member.

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Housing strategy and provision — excluding homelessness, Environmental
Health, Human Resources, and Support for the Voluntary Sector.

Terms of Reference:

. To promote the interests of all council tenants of the district, and to
assist in maintaining good relations between all members of the
community.

° To promote council tenants’ rights and the maintenance and
improvement of housing conditions, amenities, and the environment.

. To ensure that all tenants have effective opportunities to participate
in the management of their homes and neighbourhoods.

. To promote change in response to tenants’ needs and aspirations.

. To act as a consultative group on all issues concerning tenants at
district wide level.

. To work towards the elimination of all forms of discrimination within
the community by encouraging all tenants to participate in the
management of their homes and neighbourhoods.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers
Last Meeting: 30th April 2008

Frequency: Minimum of four times a year



Page 11

FESTIVALS AND EVENTS CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:

Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Tourism and Events Throughout the District

Terms of Reference:

(1)

(2)

®3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

To advise the Cabinet Member for Tourism and Events in all matters
relating to Festivals and Events throughout the District.

To develop, as appropriate, policies and strategies relating to
Festivals and Events for referral through Cabinet subject to budget
allocations.

To promote the Council’'s commitment in its Corporate Plan:-
“Recognising that tourism continues to play an important role in the
economy of the district and we will continue to support that activity” by
“improving the district’'s competitiveness as a visitor destination by
attracting visitors to the district by promotion of cultural events.”

To ensure that the City Council’s responsibilities in relation to Festivals
and Events are widely disseminated, understood and acted upon.

To receive reports and develop effective action plans where
appropriate.

To monitor the delivery of the Council's Festivals and Events
Programme.

Cabinet Minute No 72, 7th October 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 3rd November 2008

Frequency: As required



Page 12

GYPSY AND TRAVELLER CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Housing strategy and provision — excluding homelessness, Environmental
Health, Human Resources, and Support for the Voluntary Sector.

Terms of Reference:

The purpose of this group is to assist the lead Cabinet Member in overseeing the
development and establishment of the Gypsy & Traveller Strategy & Action Plan for
the district including:

(1) To respond to the accommodation needs of the Gypsy and Traveller
communities living in the district identified by the Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessments (GTAAs) as part of the Council’s wider
housing strategies and the Regional Housing Strategy (RHS).

(2) To improve mechanisms for consultation with residents and explore the
range of actions available to the Council to ensure that there is suitable site
provision for Gypsies and Travellers within the district.

(3) To act as a forum to discuss the issues affecting Gypsies and Travellers
within the district.

(4) To consider service provision for Gypsies and Travellers within the district.

Specific outcomes from the Cabinet Liaison Group may generate requests for pieces
of work to be undertaken by officers or partner bodies. The Cabinet Liaison Group
may request to Overview and Scrutiny to set up a Task Group to undertake a specific
piece of work. It may also make specific reports to Cabinet, Committees of Cabinet,
individual Cabinet Members, or other Committees of Council recommending action
for determination. The work of this Group will also have links to the work of the LSP
Equalities and Diversity Building Block.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 30th March 2009

Frequency: Every two months



Page 13

LANCASTER AND DISTRICT CHAMBER CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:
e Joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment Opportunities and
Regeneration in the Lancaster part of Lancaster & Wyre Constituency, and
Community Planning.

Terms of Reference:

0} To enable the City Council and the Lancaster and District Chamber of
Commerce to liaise and consider items affecting both organisations.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 25th November 2008

Frequency: Every 6 months.



Page 14

MORECAMBE RETAIL, COMMERCIAL AND TOURISM CABINET LIAISON
GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:
e Joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment Opportunities and
Regeneration in the Lancaster part of Lancaster & Wyre Constituency, and
Community Planning.

Terms of Reference:

(1) To act as a forum for issues of interest or concern to Morecambe
businesses and the City Council.

(2) To act as a forum to facilitate the promotion of Morecambe as a commercial
and retail centre and leisure and tourist destination.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 9th March 2009

Frequency: Quarterly



Page 15

NEIGHBOURHOOD MANAGEMENT CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment Opportunities and
Regeneration in the Lancaster part of Lancaster & Wyre Constituency, and
Community Planning.

Terms of Reference:

To examine the options of an effective model for the delivery of Neighbourhood
Management, considering how this would integrate into mainstream service delivery
for Lancaster City Council and/or third tier Councils, and how such a model would
relate to the LDLSP, and the community engagement agenda, and be supportive of
the Council's priorities and Core Values around Putting Our Customers First and
Leading Our Communities.

Cabinet Minute No 38, 31st July 2008 Refers
Cabinet Minute No 129, 20th January 2009 Refers

Last Meeting: 7th April 2009

Frequency: As required.



Page 16

PLANNING POLICY CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Community Safety, Emergency Planning, Strategic Planning and planning
enforcement, and Cycling Demonstration Town

Terms of Reference:

This Group is a non-decision making consultative forum to assist Cabinet Members
in their decision-making responsibilities. The forum will provide the expertise to the
appropriate Cabinet Members to allow them to either take individual decisions or to
make recommendations into Cabinet.

1. To provide a forum to consider the implications of the transition from the
adopted Lancaster District Local Plan to the new development plan system of
Local Development Frameworks introduced under the 2004 Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act.

2. To prepare, review, carry out consultations, and consider representations in
order to assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in bringing forward
recommendations to Cabinet on the adoption of Supplementary Planning
Guidance to the adopted Lancaster District Local Plan.

3. To prepare, review, carry out consultations, and consider representations in
order to assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in bringing forward
recommendations to Cabinet on the adoption of the Council’'s Local
Development Scheme and Local Development Framework, including;

e Development Plan Documents including the Core Development
Framework and Development Control Policies;

e Supplementary Planning Documents including Town Centre
Strategies for Lancaster and Morecambe and guidance on issues
such as design and sustainability;

o The Council's Statement of Community Involvement and Strategic
Environmental Assessment.

4, To provide appropriate assistance to rural communities with the preparation
of Parish Plans and to assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in bringing
forward recommendations regarding the inclusion of appropriate Parish Plans
within the Local Development Framework.

5. To assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in monitoring progress on the
implementation of the Local Development Framework by preparing an Annual
Monitoring Report

6. To assist the appropriate Cabinet Member to ensure proper systems and
processes are in place to maintain and keep under review the information
base for planning policy including:

housing land availability,
housing need,

retail capacity,

town centre vitality and viability;
the need for employment land;



10.

11.

12.

Page 17

e accessibility issues;
e issues relevant to the Strategic Environmental Assessment

and to assist the appropriate Cabinet Member bring forward
recommendations to cabinet on the commissioning of additional studies
where necessary.

To act as a forum for assisting the appropriate Cabinet Member to prepare
appropriate responses to the Lancashire Structure Plan, the Lancashire
Minerals and Waste Local Plan and the Lancashire Local Transport Plan and
any successor documents.

To assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in the preparation of appropriate
responses to Regional Planning Guidance for the North West and the
Regional Spatial Strategy.

To assist the appropriate Cabinet member in monitoring the progress of Local
Development Framework documents in neighbouring authorities and
recommending consultation responses to cabinet where the interests of
Lancaster District are affected.

In the event of future Local Government re-organisation, to assist the
appropriate Cabinet member in managing and making recommendations to
Cabinet on the planning policy implications of the transition to new Local
Authority boundaries;

To assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in monitoring developments in
national planning policy and recommending consultation responses to
Cabinet where necessary.

To assist the appropriate Cabinet Member in reviewing existing Conservation
Areas and the need for new designations, undertaking Conservation Area
Appraisals and preparing proposals for the preservation and enhancement of
historic areas.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 3rd March 2009

Frequency: As required (6 in last year)



Page 18

RECYCLING CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Composition:

The Group will include Members from all political groups on the Council.

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:

Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

City Council (Direct) Services including environmental enforcement.

Terms of Reference:

(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

The recycling of household plastic waste;

How Lancaster City Council considers entering into cost sharing, or
otherwise;

The feasibility of business recycling;

Lessons learned from the previous three-stream rounds and unresolved
issues.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: This Liaison Group has not met in the last Municipal Year.



Page 19

TRANSPORT CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Joint Economic Environment Portfolio — Employment Opportunities and
Regeneration in the Lancaster part of Lancaster & Wyre Constituency, and
Community Planning.

Terms of Reference:

1. Corporate Plan:
Assisting the Cabinet Portfolio Holder in developing and monitoring the
proposed tasks to meet the high level actions for transport set each year by
the Corporate Plan.

2. Community Strategy:
Assisting the Cabinet Portfolio Holder in developing and monitoring the
proposed actions to meet the long-term strategic transport objectives set by
the Community Strategy for 2020.

3. Internal focus and direction:
Act as an internal focus for all transport issues within the City Council
assisting the Cabinet portfolio holder to provide direction, coordination and
prioritisation to transport related activities.

4. External Partnerships:
To work with the Cabinet Portfolio Holder in creating a working relationship
with external bodies and partnerships in order to promote improvements to
transport networks and services.
5. To consider sustainability and road safety issues.
Note:
That meetings be held on a quarterly basis and that issues be referred for
consideration, if deemed appropriate by the Cabinet Member with Special
Responsibility, to meetings of Cabinet, the LSP or Lancashire Local Joint Committee
via the City Council's Democratic Services.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 10th September 2008

Frequency: As required.



Page 20

UNIVERSITIES CABINET LIAISON GROUP

Previous Cabinet Member Membership:
Cabinet Members with Responsibility for:

e Information Technology and Customer Services, Revenues and Benefits,
Homelessness, Democratic, Legal and Licensing Services, and Community
Engagement and Consultation.

Terms of Reference:

(1) To consider matters of mutual interest.

Cabinet Minute No 8, 3rd June 2008 Refers

Last Meeting: 26th January 2009

Frequency: Quarterly



Page 21

APPENDIX C

APPOINTMENTS MADE BY CABINET

ORGANISATION

Arnside and Silverdale AONB Unit Executive Committee

British Resorts Association

Children’s Trust Partnership Lancaster District

Cycling Demonstration Town Board

Historic Towns Forum

Forest of Bowland AONB Advisory Committee

Lancashire Economic Partnership

Lancashire Leaders Meeting (Leader)

Lancashire Police Authority — Partnerships Forum

Lancashire Rural Affairs

Lancashire Rural Partnership

Lancaster and District YMCA Management Board

Lancaster Canal Restoration Partnership (formerly Northern Reaches SG)

Lancaster District Community Safety Strategy Partnership Executive Member

Lancaster University Public Arts Strategy Group

LGA Coastal Issues Special Interest Group

LGA Executive (Leader)

LGA Tourism Forum

Morecambe Bay Partnership

Morecambe Bay Tobacco Control Alliance

North and West Lancashire Priority 1 Action Plan Partnership Board

North Lancashire Local Action Group executive Group (Member + substitute)

North West Rural Affairs Forum

Storey Centre for Creative Industries

Waste Management Strategy Steering Group




Page 22

MISCELLANEOUS APPOINTMENTS (including Cabinet appointments)

ORGANISATION BASIS OF APPOINTMENT
Lancaster and District Cabinet Member

Vision Board

Lancaster District Cabinet Members X 2

Community Safety Strategy
Group

Lancaster District Cabinet Member for Regeneration plus 3 representatives on PR
Regeneration Partnership drawn from the Wards of Skerton East, Skerton West, Castle,

Dukes, John O’'Gaunt, Bulk, Heysham South and Overton

Lancaster District Cabinet Member and Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Sustainability Partnership

LGA Rural Commission Cabinet Member for Rural Affairs plus one on rotation
Museums Advisory Panel Cabinet Member and Overview and Scrutiny Committee

LANCASTER DISTRICT LOCAL STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP

Organisation

Basis of appointment

LSP Partnership Board (+
substitute)

Cabinet Member (+ Cabinet Member substitute)

LSP Management Group (+
substitute)

Cabinet Member (+ Cabinet Member substitute)

LSP Children & Young People
Thematic Group

Cabinet Member appointed to the Children’s Trust Partnership
Lancaster District

LSP Economy Thematic
Group

Cabinet Member

LSP Environment Thematic
Group

Cabinet Member

LSP Safety Thematic Group

Cabinet Member appointed to Community Safety Partnership
Executive

LSP Health and Wellbeing
Thematic Group

Cabinet Member

LSP Education, Skills and
Opportunities Thematic Group

Cabinet Member

LSP Valuing People Thematic
Group

Cabinet Member




Page 23 Agenda ltem 7

CABINET

MIGRANT IMPACT FUND

2 June 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Finance and Performance)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider a request from the Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership for the City
Council to become the Accountable Body for Migrant Impact Fund should its bid to central
government be successful.

Key Decision Non- Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan N/A

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATION

That, subject to discussions with Lancashire County Council as to who would be best
placed to become the Accountable Body for the Migrant Impact Fund should the
LDLSP’s bid to central government be successful, that, if required, Lancaster City
Council agree to undertake the role.

That subject to the above, the Revenue Budget be updated accordingly.
1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 A fund to manage the transitional impacts of migration was announced in the
February 2008 Green Paper ‘The Path to Citizenship’.

1.2 Communities and Local Government (CLG) is allocating the fund on a regional basis
through the government office with those regions experiencing higher levels of
inward migration, or with less experience of dealing with the impacts of migration
receiving more. All local service providers including the police, local authorities, and
Primary Care Trusts will be eligible to benefit from this fund.

1.3 The north west region has been allocated £3,606,606 over the 2009/10-2010/11
period and LSP’s have been encouraged to bring forward packages of activity within
one overall project application.



Page 24

2 REPORT

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Since 2005 the district and Morecambe in particular, has experienced a large influx of
Polish and other Eastern European migrants. This is the district’s first experience of
significant numbers of foreign workers and it has not yet developed a strategy for
addressing the issues that have emerged due to language and cultural barriers.

Currently a working estimate exists of 2,000 Polish people in a small geographical
area of the West End of Morecambe, based on a count of children enrolled at 3 local
schools. Across the Lancaster District, the figure is believed to be much higher.

The LDLSP, through its Valuing People thematic group, has put together a bid to the
fund the broad aims of which are to:

Ease the pressures on service providers working with migrants
Increase access to essential services for migrants
Build the individual and collective capacity of migrant communities

The fund is for two years and the amount of funding being requested is in the region
of £40,100 in 2009/10 and £58,500 in 2010/2011.

Bids to the fund have also been made by Lancashire County Council and two other
districts in Lancashire (West Lancashire and Hyndburn). Whilst these bids are
separate and distinct they have all been cross referenced to each other to
demonstrate a “Lancashire” wide approach to this issue.

3 DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

The funding bid has been put together by a group of agencies working to deliver
services to and supporting the East European migrant community in the west end of
Morecambe and is based on an understanding of the needs of those communities.

5 OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS (including risk assessment)

1 That, depending upon Government Office’s response to these bids from across
Lancashire, discussions take place between the City Council and Lancashire County
Council as to which organisation is best placed to become the Accountable Body for
this fund. If it is determined that that the City Council is best placed to be that body
then Cabinet agrees to become the Accountable body for the Migrant Impact Fund.

2 To not agree to become the accountable body for this funding.

Risk Analysis

This grant allocation (if successful) is not ring-fenced and has no mandatory reporting
process against it other than that already required (e.g. national indicators). The LSP will be
asked to submit a self assessment setting out project progress.



Page 25

As the City Council already acts as Accountable Body for the LDLSP in respect of second
homes funding, accounting procedures are already in place in respect of transfer of funds to
the LDLSP and therefore the City Council could become the Accountable Body should
discussions with Lancashire County Council recommended that course of action.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Sustainable Community Strategy

Improve community cohesion, a sense of belonging and taking part by promoting positive
relationships between the diverse and emerging communities and groups in Lancaster
district.

Corporate Plan
Deliver the Council’s actions in the LDLSP’s Valuing People Thematic Group Action Plan —
develop and implement a Community Cohesion Strategy

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Will have a positive impact in supporting the new east european community establishing
itself in the district.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

CLG will hold the fund and will make payments to local service providers. As LSPs are not
legal entities able to receive funds directly, the LSP will need to nhominate one member to act
as lead partner and accountable body. Dependant upon discussions with Lancashire
County Council it has been requested that Lancaster City Council undertake the role. If the
Council do undertake the role, a full analysis of the budget (attached at Appendix A) will be
undertaken.

In line with Government policy the grant would not be ring-fenced. Funds allocated will be
paid in full to Lancaster City Council in one instalment at the beginning of the project and
arrangements would need to be put in place to carry forward the 2010/11 funding allocation.
The Revenue Budget would need to be updated accordingly.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’'S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising as a result of this report
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Roger Muckle
None Telephone: 01524 582022

E-mail: rmuckle@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: RM/JEB




Agenda Iltem 8 Page 26

CABINET

2008/09 4th Quarter Corporate Performance Review
2 June 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Finance and Performance)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To report on the fourth quarter of Performance Review Team meetings for 2008/09.

Date Included in Forward Plan Jf N/A
This report is public

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet X
Member

RECOMMENDATIONS
Q) That the report be noted.
REPORT

1 The fourth quarter of Performance Review Team (PRT) meetings for 2008/09 took
place between 27 April and 8 May. Each meeting monitored progress against the
action sheets drawn up for the previous round of meetings.

2 The corporate report was considered by the Cabinet portfolio holder in May,
Performance Management (Officer) Group on 22 May, and Budget and Performance
Panel will consider it on 9 June.

3 Attached at Appendix 1 are:

PRT meeting/attendance timetable

Updated (Escendency Action from 2008/09 Q3 meeting
Escendency report showing red indicators for Q4
Updated Finance Action 2008/09 Q3 meeting

Q4 Corporate Financial Monitoring Report

Treasury Management Monitoring Report

4 The outcome from the meeting with the Cabinet member was the action plan at
Appendix 2 (to follow). This plan identifies those issues that need further
explanation in respect of the Q4 Corporate Performance Monitoring report that
officers are currently progressing.



Page 27

6.0 Conclusion
6.1 The Council’'s Performance Management Framework now requires the regular

reporting of performance into Cabinet as part of the Performance Review Team cycle
of meetings and this report provides year end performance information for 2008/09.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

This report is a requirement of the Council’'s Performance Management Framework.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the attached appendices.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 has been consulted and has no additional comments at this stage.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted and have no comments to add.

MONITORING OFFICER’'S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Roger Muckle
Telephone: 01524 582022

2008/09 Q4 PRT Reports E-mail: rmuckle@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: RCM/JEB




Page 28
APPENDIX 1

2008/09 4th Quarter
CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REVIEW TEAM MEETING

9.00 am Thursday 21 May 2009 — Roger Muckle’s Office

In attendance: Councillor S Charles
Roger Muckle
Nadine Muschamp
Richard Tulej

The fourth round of Performance Review Team (PRT) meetings for 2008/09 took place
between 27 April and 8 May 2009.

Each meeting monitored progress against the action sheets drawn up for the previous
round of meetings.

Attached are:

PRT meeting/attendance timetable

Updated Action from 2008/09 Q3 meeting
Escendency report showing red indicators Q4
Q4 Corporate Financial Monitoring Report
Treasury Management Monitoring Report

JEB/15 May 2009




0Q uim |

JoaW 0] gs

(08)

suing Asjys e g weg

puspe SPUBINOIN layoyald suer | “(4r) |udy 62
Jou pIp suing (|0 » | [WINI A uamQ piaeg J84iesH sapeyy aIsng weQ| IWYHNLIND

, najueg e

a6po7 ludy 2z
2 | [WIN] A auuezng 48507 J181ed 2Jiwerg ues|i3 we 0£'6 S3IONIONILNOD TIAID — HSBH

(wdogL'z

or)
abpoT uag|i9 uyor ludy 8z (ssaussajpwoH) Haqio uyor
A AN auuezng 1307 Jajed @y pineq Em_ome ONISNOH 21931V¥1S ANV HL1V3H

dy /z
A A A | B0l USASIS 1907 Jsjed 119y pineqg wd 00z ONISNOH TIONNOD

ludy gz
A AL salneq e 12307 18384 Aiieg uor 000L S3OINYZS (LOIHIA) TIONNOD ALID

‘puspe oy | (suonoe uosep AEIN G
aige Jou apjanyy Jeboy ON) A [w/N] A~ pieyoiy | PN Jaboy Haq|i9 uyop 0g0l S3NN3IATY

‘puae 0} Kely ¢
> a1qe jou 3pponyy Jeboy A AN Jopiiy suep | PPN Joboy Haqi9 uyor 0€'bL | SITINYIS ¥INOLSND ANV NOILVAHOANI
(lJuswaBeueyy souewiopad) ssley) aisng
Vv (,8) saeyy sisng (Juswabebuz AJunwwo)) wagjio uyor
3 (,£2) Haq|io uyor (Ayayes Anunwwo)) alweg usa|ig
L Aluo w/2Z pepusye (,£C) dawe|g us9)ig Rep g (Rajes Aunwwo)) 1ey pineq
aponyy Jeboy Lis) pineq we Q| (dARD) J12yola|4 Buer
(,S) 18yoie|d suer (sbueyp s1ewin) Aueg uor
Bunssw Jauye puape 1807 Jajad (,,8) Aureg uop judy Jz (dS1 % uoisayon Anunwwon) soeyy Jaboy
Jou pIp Jax307 J3jed A A 4| [Bin) pieyory | apjonpy seboy 2By Jaboy wd 4 ADILVYLS F1VYHOdHOD

[@18pdn

(suoioe 0} uoloe dweyosnpy ey z1L
ON) A | OU—V/N] » suipeN | aponiy Jeboy Buiulig noqqy 0£'ZL JONVYNIS

Bunesw sy puspe iy 0
Jou pip ueul|ing ey A AN IEON [IID | Uueuljing 3Jep Haq9 uyor wd gy DILY¥O0W3a

shaiydwny

uely pue |[euoa. J1y piaeg Iudy 82

aule|g — Bulpuaye osjy » + 4| Joike] yelseg | ueuynD ey Haq|is) uyor wd 00°¢ HH ANY VO3
[Bunaaw
P3AI23I Emo-“w__ww__WMm pabuetse
"oju| [euonIpPY 210N pajepdn -our) | PBAH 20IAiRg | (s)Jooang | (sHaquap jpuiqes Bunoopy ADIAN3S
' uonsy paAladay .
ylomisaded

600z Aepy g0 €} Judy £z — JauenDd Yl Jo} s|gelawl |
60/8002 10} SINVIL MIIATY FIONYINNOLNZ (a3svg IDIANTS)




yiomiaded

- aponiy Joboyy /N aunp T13NVYd 3ONYWNHO4H3d ANY 139angd
liv4 1 sunr g LINIFVYO
feinL pleyory
dweyosnpy
SUIpEN IV V/N Rel zz dNOYD INFWADVYNVYIN FONVINHO4H3Id
o dweyosnpy
o aulpeN
@ [Bin] pieyary | aponiy Jaboy saeyp aisng | Aepy Lz we g 1Md aelodion
snue2n 49y pineq
Da layieay Jayary ukeag (s1¥d IHON
B uodes(q uyor 12507 9154 aoe Jeboy ON) ININIDVYNVIN AOOHYNOGHDIAN
(v3)
Aey g weq|
(suonoe sSnuEoA aoe| Jaboy (av)
ON) ~ | [¥/N] £ X090 Weyeio JayyeaH Jayory uARAg | Aepy g widy ALYIdONHd
sapey) aisng (WY 'v3)
suing Aspiys | Aepy g wel L
Jayouny aAg (gs
pJojpues SnuBNOW (Buluksg noqqy ‘0S ‘av)
AL i2)ed JayjeaH sem) aoe|y Joboy | AeN g well | INSINNOL ANY ININdOTIAIA DINONODI
sepeyp asng | (g3 'va)
Jayoly ang | Aepy g wdgz|
(suonoe uosgoq SNUEON aswe|g us9|ig (0s ‘av)
OoN) ~ | [v/N] ~ Maipuy JauyiesH Buulag nogay | Aep g wdg) ONINNY1d
[Buijeaw
snoiaalsd
n0>_00n¥_ woJly uoljoe uwm—.—mhx—m
"oju| [BUCHIPPY 3JON pojepdn ou) | PEOH 3IIMIag | (S)Joppang | (Shequap touiqed | 5o ERIREER
uonay paalasay )




Page 31

'9€/'vLF Buines pouad yuow z|
Joy awiy ued o} peonpal A|LIBJUN|OA JSXJOM SSBD JOIUSS X |

‘00013

‘pouad jeym

10} pue AJAioe Miomaweld Juswdojaas( [e20T 0} oM
|oJiuoo Juswdojeasp wol) pausjsuel} Bulag s 8oinosal
JO |aA8] Jeum pue pabeuew Bureq si uoenys ay)

Moy 0] Se pajsanbal S| uoljeulioju| "pajou S| swooul

Buines ‘pajeulula) JOBIJUOD JOMIOM SSED [BUISIXS X | av 88 Ul suljoap Buinupuod ay) - jo4uo)) Juswdojaaaqg €
'senssi 8say) ssalppe 0} aoe|d ul ind Buiaqg ale suoljoe
Jeym o] se paisenbal si uonewloul ‘souewiousd
PaSIUSAPE U23( aABY SSI0UBDBA pue Siseq 2sed Ag ased 2012 uodn sjoeduwll S) pue S921ASS Jawoisny
B U0 YH yum passalppe Buiaqg ale sanssl ssauyoIs ay | vr / uoneuwou ul sanssi buiyels Buinuijuo ay} Jo MaIA U| red
'sieak aininy pue Q1/600¢ 404 (se2inosal
Jayjo pue) 1@6png s,|1ouno) ayj uodn syoedul
|enuajod ay) 0] se pajsanbal s| uonew.ou| “palinbal
"Apoqg 3|geluUNoo2. 3yl 29 pue Jsoy, ued SNan s1 Buipuny Jayuny Ing 1ou3sIp ay} Jos ABajelis souep e
Jaylaym 0} Se siapun} [eusaxa yum Buiob-uo uoissnosiq oa dojansp 0] painodas usaq sey Buipunj [BUIS1XS JO MOGF L
BUON 80 2O L13d aiesodio) wouy piemio} Jybnoliq suonoy
SS3YD0Ud ALITIFISNOdS3Y NOILOV @33ydoVv ON
JIMONIN 43900 S3AID0710dV
(LNIIWIOVNVIN IONVINYO4¥Id) STTIVHO JISNS ¥OT1IONNOD
r371NL AYVHOI ‘dINVHOSNIN INIAVN -1IN3S3d
6002 Yd4eN € -41vd
31Vid0dd0D VIV FDIAA3S

60/800C €O — ONILIAN NVIL MIIATYH JONVINHOL4d3d




‘01/600T CIU!I PJEMIO) PALLIED 3 [|IM MIOM SIY | "SAejop
Buipuny [rewaixa 0) anp pajuswe|duwi ANy jou Ing ‘g0 Aenuer jo se Aemuepun awwelbold

‘30v Aq 1@s ale sajeosaw)
8y (39v) pue|buz jouno) suy yim diysieuped u) usyeuapun Buieq siyse) siyL

‘uoeooal 8910 JIBL
Aq pefejap sseo0.d - 1senD Aq uoneypalooe Buniemy "peja|dwos HSYS Aq painbal oL

"01/600g U uogajdwod
o} pieamuo) paused aq ||im sjuswabueue Buipuny ay) Buimaiael uo podas e aanpoud o)
oM “JOABMOH "Pa}a|diod Uaaq sey suoiesiuebio SUE au) [[B Y)IM YIS SUl MaIAR 0 YO

0L/6002 oyl
JOAO PALLIED B ||IM HIOM SIY| JOW JOU Sem 600 YDJEN JO QUIPEAP B} MIBd UOSWEIIA
Ul JUBWIBAJOAUL SB UYONS USHELISPUN UBSQ SABY UIUM JUSLHLILWICD SDIAIDS JOYO 0} ang

'6002 AInr Aliea s ajep uonedwoo pajoadxe ay) pue pesiAal usaq sey ueid 1oafoud oy

"12oA Ise| yim pasedwoo saiadosd punos winy o} 1oBuc) sAep gL sn uexye) sey )l Jeak

siy} ejep o} abeloA. U JeUY) SuleWal UojENYIS By J0joe) AIOJNGLILOD B S| OS|E pIepue)s
8|qeps|al Ino 0) yoeq way) Buuq o) seuedoid Adwe uo yom asow Ajueoyubls ayeuspun
0} Buirey Jo pasu Buinupuod ay | “yom ansuaixe Bupmol|o} 18]el Usaq mou aAeY S)e| asay |
“uno) weybuip|y je sjey auy Ajqelou sajuadoid pabewep aiy YBnoiy) pasnes sesso| ay) o)
ajgeinqupe Ajued osie s| sejouesea yBnouy) S0 Jual Ui aseasou) ay} spodal | Hd snolaesd
Ul UO pajusuIWoD ueeq sey sy "g00¢/L00Z Ul SPIOA 9EE Yiim aJedwiod SIy ] “SPIoA £/€

10 [EJO} B pPEY DABY pUB JBAOUIN] Ul 8SB2I0U| UR UDBS BABY aM 500Z/200Z JoA0 "% 10 19Bie)
ejsulebe %9°| 18 vD 4O pua ay) Je sulewal sapueoea ybnoiy) ssoj juai Jo abejusoiad ay |

‘UB|d UOIOY @8s S|Ielep Jayuny Jo4 "eousn|jul aWos pey ARy [|IM 184 ISB| By} JOAC a}BwWID
21WIOU028 JuaLIND 8y} s sbueyD JNBWEIP 8| "PAABIYDE USAQ JOU SBY 98°Z SOA[eSING Jas
pey em pua Jeah ay) 10) 196ie) oy gD Ul papodas 9,z'¢ 0) eseelnap ay) Buimojoy ‘L E 0)
pasea.oul A|gjeuniiojun sey sJeale sNouas Ul sjueus) Jo abejusoled ay) :nusd jau SHE8M T
40 Jud|eAINDba Y} J8AD pue alow Jo 05ZF Bumo siesue snouss ) sjueus) jo abejusssad oy |

Page 32

‘UB|d UOROY @8s

S|IEl2p Joyuny o4 18|21 0) uaye) awy abesane ay) 2anpal 0} BNURUOD O} PaUIBJUIBLL B ||IM
suonoy “eak jse| yum pesedwos sensadosd punos uiny o} sebuo) sAep g sn Bune; si 1 seak
siy} sjep 0} abesone UQ ‘sAep Zg Jo 1061.) IN0 PAABIYIE JOU BABY AN LD JO Pua ay) je shep
L'S¥ PUB ZD jo pu auy Je sAep ¢ L ‘€D JO pue 8y} je sAep ¢t 0) pasedwos $D 4o pus ay) je
shep 68" L Jo abeloae ue Buiye) mou si i pue JuawaAoidwl Jo SUBIS MOUS 0) SBNURUOD SIY |
*S82IAS [BINYND 0} uo passed jsn[

a1em aiay) se jebie) [eoo| ay) Buimalnel Jo) 8seo B 8q ABW BIBY | "9OG PAABIYOR SBY 90IA8S
8y} pue ‘(g0/20) 896 S! [PUNCD JoLISIQ BIIMEND Jeddn ue Joj iewouag (euoleN au L

“SIOM

40 R Sy} Uo pajordwl sey pue sseooud Aed siey oY) 1B PAJOAUIP |INS BJE SB2IN0SAl RIS

“om
Jo ea.e siy) uo payoedwl sey pue sseo0ud Aed Jie) ay) 1B PajORIP (NS BB S9IN0Sal YB)g

Algjualuwoy esueLLIONa

Buijed

o

PeARIYOY JON

.

peAaIyoy 10N

=

POABILDY JON

]

PaAILOY 1ON

aiq

=2
(=
®
w

Buired
Buiie

Buied

Buijey

: 4
\4

smels

89

ON

ON

ON

ON

%00°St

%09°L

%l¥'e

shkegeg’Lly 68'L¥

996

%0L ey

89

ON

ON

ON

ON

St

9L

e

996

ey

ON

SaA

ON

ON

oF

'L

[

0 0
SBA  SeA
SaA  ON
SBA  S8A

ON  SeA

Se for4

L S’
E¥'E 88T

€ EVlv L'SY

ybiH

ybiH

ubiH

ubiH

ybiH

yBiH

Mo

Mo

Mo

ubIH

ybiH

ybiH

60-800Z D Moday |¥d jesodio)

00°00€

SaA

SOA

SBA

SSA

%00°08

%00°L

%08°¢

sheq
00'ce

00°0s€L

%68°LS

0oe

60/80
10Bse

%02 L

%S8°¢

sfeq
6lLee

L60L

Ley

80/L0

wnpno

aaneINWNg

joysdeug

joysdeug

joysdeug

joysdeug

joysdeusg

joysdeug

joysdeug

joysdeus

aAjenwny

joysdeug

joysdeusg

usw
-2Inseal

JO 9dA)

Auopenp

Auapenp

Apsuenp

Apauenp

AWapenp

Auauenpd

Aueueny

Auspenp

Ausuenp

Alenuuy

Ajlenuuy

Allenuuy

|eAdaju]
juawi
~2INSeajy

sjenpiaipu| pajebie | 9ziINg

¢1ebie) uo - ABejensg
@aue( B 89npoid $ZIND

OSYS 10 UoE}pPaIodY
188Ny 8AdIYIY SOIND

¢labiey uo ‘suy
10) S|BPON YIS MaN $0IND

yodal
suawabuele Juswabeuew
aAfew)Y Siled LOIND

ajo|dwoo

ylomawel Juswabebug
Aunwwey v £2s0

SIIOUBDEA
ybnoayy 3soquay LLHD

JUSY SHEBM €1 JBAD
BumQ sjueua | juaund goHD

Buisnoy v
1919y o) owi | abeseay ZLZAG

swnasnuw
JO asn |[el2AQ BOLLAS

91095 Js11399Y2 - Ajjenbs
a2ed ajowoud 0} Aing qzong

peABIyOY PIEPUE}S
Aujenb3 Jo jare BZOAG

JOjeaIpU| 8sueLLIopad

[4%

L

ol



0L/600Z U1 PRARILOE 94 0) posiral aq 0} 1able

'0L02/600¢ 40 pud ay) Aq Aousoep o %203s ay)

oeq Buuq oy s11ebie) InQ “Aoussep ojul 3orq %00)s ay ||e Buug o) apew aq (im sjuawgsnipe
Aiessaoau Aue pue sswweiboid saueugjuiew pauue|d pue |E)dED INO WUOJUI O} pasn

Buiag sI AoAINS UCIHIPUOD I0)S AU} WL UOHBLLIONI paiepdn ay | "pJepuB)S ASuaoa( mau
2y} 199w jou se0p %20)s Buisnoy ay) Jo % | eyl paybiybly sey AoAIns LORIPUOD X20}S Ay L

01/60 LD L¥d Je uoiisod uo ajepdn ue aq |im 819U} oS ay) Ul suojeldwos
auyy Jo Asnuns jeaisfyd yBnouy) uoneuuyuod o) 198lgns i pue aunbly WiLlUL Ue SISy

“}I0M SIY) 1oy a|qisuodsal Japioyrsod ay) Jo eouasqe ssauxols wuay Buol ay; o) anp si
aouewuopad ul dop 8y, “Jauenb jse| ay) |nun jo61e} U0 SBM JOJEDIPUI SIL) IO} SIUBLLICLS]

‘Wea) || 9yl Ul sseuyols
ye)s pue sabeuey 108foid $801A8S JBWWIOISNY JO SSO| O) 8NP PaAe(ap AjaIonas S| awweibold

"S@OIAI9S UO 1099 Ue BuiAey 18 SBIOUBJBA PafJun PUB SSAUNIIS JBIS

‘siequiaw yeys Aq Jo Aealjep Jounoo |ewads Aq Jauile pasanljep
aq o) pey siaded Jaulqe) 'SUOISEI20 953U} JO oM} UQ “epuaby jauiqeD au} Jo uononpold
S)e| 8y} JO asneoaq SEM SIU} aseo yoea u| jebie) ay) 198w 0 pa|ie) £ ‘SUCKNgUISIP Z1 1O

Page 33

‘peysigelsa - a1 Buleq Apuauno

2l }oeqpas) JO SWLIO) [|B o} S|00} dojaAap ) JIom 8y 600z J0) pawwelboid a1 usag
MOU BABY UOIYM SIUDAD NJSSBIONS [BISASS PBY SBY SWOoQq 9y | 3orqpad) siy) o) ojeledas
‘0L02/60 Joj Aydosopyd Bunwwelboud Bugsixa yim anujuos pinoys

pue ‘siea snolaaid Ul Ajjunwwoo ay) Jo sjuswwalinbal ay} papoddns pue paynuap) sey
Bunuwesboud awo( jey) swuyuos ¥oBAPa3Y SIYL "0L0Z/60 Buunp Jeak yuow g e ejesado o)
awo( ay_ 40} 60 Y2JB Ul PALLINUSAO / PRMBIASI SEM JO LCISIDBP jaulqed ay) Apusnbasgnsg
‘Jusunuioddesip sleyy Buissaidxa sjuebe pue siejowosd 'siewo)sna wouy awog ay |

Juswyuioddesip ey Buissaidxe sjusbe pue siajowoid 'SIBWOISND WO BWO a4 L

& panladal puk eIpall [B20] AU} Ul ')00qade SE Yans sajisqapn uo uonedioned ongnd Aq
uaas aq ued se [BlUBSgNS Udaq Sey 8oz 22Q isod yoregpaad "awoQ dY | 9S0[9 0} UOISIDAp
18UIGED JO }NSA) E SE Pasead swe)sAs yoeqpaey dojanep o) ghp Buunp sspuom BuloBuo ay)

"01/600¢ Ojul pJEMIO) PALLIED B [[IM JOM
siy1 %Sz Jo 1ebie) e jsulebe ‘o,g] 1261} 9A0GE ||oM SEM SWODINO aY) ZD LY d 40 "SIoNSIA
10 % [2MPOE 8y} Jou (ZLIND 28s) Blep By Buuayes ul Aynouip oY) sejedIpUl jINSal By L

%08 1B 195 29 |IM 0L/60
0} 19bue . "snoniquie Jaao sijeble) jeuiBuo au jey) spoddns aouapine ‘e LMd Ul PIE)S SY

Alejuawiwog asueLiopad

Buyjrey

Buyrey

8¢

€€

%0082

89

%00°SL

%00°2L

0
I
82
€€ 0oL
8c 82
€E9  L'LL
GL EL£'e8
L
gL
clL €L

0
L
S6 896
Z
£9'9 18T
LE'Z6 | 001
0
6¢
L L

YBiH

Mo

ybiH

ubiH

ubIH

Mo

ybiy

ybiH

ybiH

ybiH

00°

0009

00°S6

%00°LY

00'e

%00°001L

00°56

00'se

%0056

60-2002 YO Moday 1¥d a3eiodion

89

o'v8

80/20

wnno

joysdeug

joysdeus

joysdeug

Joysdeug

Jjoysdeug

obesany

joysdeus

joysdeusg

joysdeusg

joysdeug

Juaw
~2Inseajy
JO odAL

abueyo ajewio

Aueas-jieH 0} 1depe o) buiuued 8gLIN
AeaA-jleH SALWIOY JUD8P UOU % 8SLIN
Ty palaAljap sawoy
@|gepioye Jo Jaquinn GSLIN

uonanasul

KR 1INy Buialeoel jo shep Buuom 0z
UILRIM 1N0 JUSS LUORBIUSWINIOP

suonoesuel | Auadoid 5011

Apeyent swwelbold seainesg
0) 5900y ssalboid QLSO

Agpuopwy s||eQ pauopueqy 90S2l
Ausyighty wdg Aq Buiaes| suni
uonnquesig Jo % - 60/80 LLSA

ApeaA-jeH #oegpaay awoq #HINd
o — SJUaA@ [BIN}ND JE SeouBpua)je
HERAJIEH Io}iSIA @sealou| 0gIND
Ayspeno awwelbosd yuswdo@asp

Buiuwims sAnoay3 623IND

NG
juaL
-ainsespy

10JB21pU| 82UBWIONad

(44

24

0z

61

8l

Ll

9l

sl

ri

€l



Page 34

Buire
N0 PALLED 9g UEBD YJoM 2AN2R0Id OU JBY) UBIW WRd) dY) Ul SONSS! ‘
Ayoeded 1ng ucieypaiooe jsanbad spiojpueT ABW MO JOAO [O[UCD B} SBY |IUnod 8yl ﬂ 4 9 g ' < ubH  00'08 . i aaei
Buiey
ooy Y %0008 OF UBIH %0009 L'Lg  lousdeug
10 9%,0¢ sjuasaidal siy ‘ABlous S|qBUIEISNS WO PAUIRIO S1 AIOU08[9 SOnUoYINe au JO IV q o S L
Juswdo|anap bulled
2)ebssopy ay} 0} SHUN pajual [B100S (| Jayuny B ppe 0} pig B Bupapisuod ale uonelodion q 82 0 q 9L P ybiH  oo'pr - aAle|INWNG
BuisnoH ay | "1eak auy) Jo pud sy} 240499 peje|dwoo aq pinoys aie saiuadoad /| Jayun) v
ET e

60/80 80/L0

Algjualuiog souelUIoped olegoLiedA| vD | €0 | 20 | LD [SIPOOD] Spio | yingno

-ainseapy
Jo adAL

60-8002 YO HModay |1 ¥d @jelodio)

paypaiooe
Apgapenp sorpadosd J0 'ON SZHS
Ajenuuy pasn ABiaua

ageursns J0 % £0d0dd

Agapeny  InoybBnoayy Buisnoy sjqepioye
Jo uoisinoud ey esealou] ZOWN

leAau|
s Jojeaipu| @auBWIONad
-aInseajy

14

L4

£2



Page 35

Corporate Financial Monitoring
March 2009 | Quarter 4

Report of the Head of Financial Services
Corporate PRT meeting | 21 May 2009

HEADLINE INFORMATION

REVENUE ~ Current Projected Projected After

(Underspend) (Underspend) / Known Est. C/F

{ + Overspend + Overspend. Requests
General Fund (£676,000) (£1,1 37,000) (£1,037,000)
Housing Revenue Account +£256,000 +£618,000 +£679,000

=
%
O
O
—
=
O
o
0]
~
N
<
Z
<
s

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Please note that the above projections are very
provisional, as the closure of accounts is still
underway. A review of Provisions and Reserves still
needs to be completed; in particular, this will consider
the need to make any provisions in connection with
Icelandic investments. Various Carry Forward
requests are also expected.

Prepared by Financial Services 1




Page 36

CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING

March 2009 | Quarter 4

1. INTRODUCTION

This monitoring report of expenditure and income for 2008/09 sets out an indicative corporate
picture of the Council's financial performance relating to the period ending March 2009 (week 52).
The report only provides a snapshot of the financial position as at the end of March and many year
end processes are still being finalised, hence the figures are likely to change significantly. A more
accurate statement will be produced in July, once the final accounts have been produced.

The report summarises the variances reported through Services quarterly PRT meetings, and also
identifies any omissions, updates and/or actions required. In addition there are specific sections for
salary monitoring, capital expenditure and financing, Housing Revenue Account, revenue collection
performance and Insurance and Risk Management. Note, however, that the closure of accounts
requirements and Financial Regulations and Procedures already provide for specific reporting and
actions to be addressed, e.g. re overspending etc.

2. GENERAL FUND REVENUE MONITORING

2.1 General Fund Summary Position

The current overall general fund summary position shows that at the end of March there is a net
underspend of £676K against the revised budget. Taking into account further expected year end
transactions the net underspending may increase to £1.1M, although a substantial proportion of this
relates to outstanding VAT recovery claims and further information is being sought to inform their
year-end accounting treatment. As such, an update will be provided at the meeting and this report
may change as a result. Furthermore around £100,000 has already been requested to be carried
forward. In addition, the year-end review of reserves and provisions will be undertaken as part of
the closure of accounts process and this is expected to reduce the underspending (see below). At
this point in time though, as an interim position the projected net underspend after allowing for
estimated carry forward requests is assumed to be just over £1M, subject to approval and any
further changes as part of the closedown process.

As part of the review of provisions and reserves, an assessment of the latest position on Icelandic
investments will be undertaken, which is expected to have an adverse impact on the final outturn
position. At present, the Council has chosen not to account directly for any potential losses in
2008/09, in accordance with the options provided by the Secretary of State. However, it will be
prudent to make provision as at 31 March 2009, especially should the Council's outturn position
generally prove better than otherwise expected — but as yet, no such provision has been made in
the estimated outturn as set out in this report.

Current Projected

VARIANCES £000 £000

Major Variances (see section 2.3) (541) (1,002)
Salaries (see section 2.4) (135) (135)
Sub Total (676) (1,137)
Carry Forward Requests -- +100
Provision for Icelandic Investments -- ?7?
Review of Other Reserves / Provisions -- ??
ESTIMATED OUTTURN (NET UNDERSPEND) (1,037)

Prepared by Financial Services 2



Page 37

One of the key financial indicators is to keep any under or overspends within 2% of the overall net
controllable revenue budget, and the following table shows that at the end of the year this has been
achieved.

£000
Net Controllable Budget 23,934
2% Target +/() 478
Provisional Controllable Net Underspend (433)
Percentage of Net Controllable Budget 1.8%

2.2  Actions Arising from Previous Quarter

At the time of writing this report information on progress against previous actions has not been
received. For information, the agreed actions are shown in the table below; a verbal update will be
provided at the PRT meeting.

NO AGREED ACTION RESPONSIBILITY | PROGRESS
Actions brought forward from Corporate PRT Q2 08 None
1 £56K of external funding has been secured to develop a D.Owen

dance strategy for the district but further funding is
required. Information is requested as to the potential
impacts upon the Council's budget (and other resources)
for 2009/10 and future years.

2 In view of the continuing staffing issues in Information / J.Allder
Customer Services and its impacts upon Service
performance, information is requested as to what actions
are being put in place to address these issues.

3 Development Control - the continuing decline in fee A.Dobson
income is noted. Information is requested as to how the
situation is being managed and what level of resource is
being transferred from development control work to Local
Development Framework activity and for what period.

Prepared by Financial Services 3



Page 38

2.3 Major Budget Variances

Appendix A details the major true variances that have been included within individual Services’
PRT reports. The variances reported are either +/- £5K in value and cover premises, transport,
supplies and services and general income.

Current Projected

SUMMARY BY SERVICE £000 £000
REPORTED VARIANCES : () Favourable / + Adverse
Democratic Services (45) (44)
Legal & Human Resources (11) (3)
Information & Customer Services (82) (82)
Financial Services (118) (615)
CC(D)S (11) (10)
Property Services (55) (58)
Econ Development & Tourism (1) (1)
Other Regeneration (64) (64)
Cultural Services +46 +73
Health & Strategic.Housing (61) (61)
Planning Services (92) (88)
Revenue Services (49) (49)

(541) (1,002)
VARIANCES NOT REPORTED :
N/A -- --
TOTAL NET UNDERSPEND (541) (1,002)

The variances listed in Appendix A show that there are a number of significant underspends, the
main one being a potential reimbursement from HMRC of £600K relating to VAT on cultural and
leisure activities. The main overspends relate to energy costs at the Community Pools and Salt
Ayre Sports Centre which total £86K.

A full analysis of all variances will be provided as part of the provisional outturn report presented to
Cabinet in July 09.

2.4 General Fund Salary Monitoring

Salary monitoring has been reported separately as there are a number of small variances that fall
below the threshold for major items, however their aggregate effect is fairly significant.

To date savings of £135K have been achieved against the revised salary budget. Whilst the
majority of Services have underspent, some have gone over budget. CC(D)S have incurred £15K
more on Grounds Maintenance due to extra winter work, and staffing costs at the Community Pools
are again over budget by £21K which have not been offset by additional income, although Cultural
Services have generated overall savings of £23K. Other minor overspends in Democratic Services
and Planning Services relate to more employees entering the pension scheme than estimated and
new appointments having to be made at higher scale points than anticipated. The reason for the
comparatively large apparent underspending on Health & Strategic Housing is being investigated
further.

The following graph shows the savings on a Service by Service basis.

Prepared by Financial Services 4



Page 39

cc(D)s
Democratic Services
Planning Services

Management Team

Financial Services £63

GFHousing -£104

Property Services i -£3,932
Legal and HR | -£10,289
Revenue Serwces_ -£11,202
Corporate Strategy | -£11,907
Cultural Services | -£23,397
ics | .£27,849
Econ Devt and Tsm | -£28,686
Health and Strat Hsg | -£46,224

.£50,000  -£40,000 £30,000 -£20,000 -£10,000 £0 £10,000  £20,000

3 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

3.1 Capital Expenditure & Financing

Capital Expenditure (General Fund)

The capital programme has been revised as part of the current budget process and reported
through to Cabinet accordingly.

At the end of March there was spend of £10.160M against the revised programme of £11.653M.
This leaves a potential slippage balance of £1.5M, which is an improvement of 21% compared to
the previous year. At present, officers are finalising the capital accounts, therefore a detailed
analysis of scheme outturns is not available. In addition, further slippage requests are being
collated and will be presented for approval at a later stage, at which point the overall capital
programme position will be reported in detail.

Capital Receipts (General Fund)
The value of capital receipts is in line with the approved financing schedule. However, as

mentioned above, a full analysis of scheme over/funder spends will need to be completed before the
final position can be determined.

4 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) MONITORING

4.1 HRA Revenue Position

At the end of March the position for the Housing Revenue Account shows an overspend of £256K
against the revised budget, which is currently projected to increase to an overall net overspend of
£618K by the end of the year. After allowing for carry forward requests of £61K, the projected
overspend would be £679K. The main reasons for the large overspend are due to a significant

Prepared by Financial Services b



Page 40

increase in spend on Responsive Maintenance, despite the budget being increase by £185K as part
of the revised budget process, and apparent insurance repairs, for which the spending position and
ability to make further claims is still unclear.

Financial Services’ Officers are investigating the position and will report back to Cabinet as part of
the provisional outturn report to be presented at the end of July. Notwithstanding this, there are
concerns regarding Council Housing finances generally and these are being raised with
management.

Variances  Project to Comments
to Date Yr End
£000 £000

Council House Rents +74 +74 See section 4.2 below.
Estates : electricity (39) (39) Delays installing photo electric cells in communal areas —

Carry forward request.
Estates : gas +9 +9 Unbudgeted price increase from June 08 re communal

boilers.
Miscellaneous charges +14 +14 Reduced right to buy discount penalties.
Rental income — Commercial Properlies +10 +7 Reduced income due to sale of property.
Rental income — mobile phone masts (10) (6) Increased charges.
Insurance Repairs (Net) +132 +282 Major cost mainly relating to fire at Aldingham Court.
R&M — contracted services +21 +21 Mainly due to an increase in demand on void properties.
R&M - software maintenance (9) (9) PDA Mobile working programme deferred to 2009/10 —

Carry forward request.
Responsive Maintenance +132 +345 Increase demands and additional cost of 50 voids.
Grounds Maintenance (8) (8) Demand led — reduced projects identified.
Lifeline Equipment (Net) (13) (13) Sales replaced by rentals of existing and returned stock.
Council Hsg - Salaries (24) (24) 3 posts vacant and 2 employees maternity leave.
Council Hsg - Training (7) (7) Reduced demand and Energy Advice training deferred

. due to maternity leave — Carry forward request.

Council Hsg — Printing & Stationery (6) (6) Changes to stationery deferred until 2009/10 — Carry

forward request
Council Hsg - Electricity (20) (20) Electricity included in rental agreement, therefore budget

no lenger required.

Total (Net Overspending) +256 +618

4.2 Council House Rent Collection

This section analyses the Council Housing rent income due, and shows that the income collected
for the year is 0.7% less than the revised estimate mainly due to year end void adjustments.

2007/08 2008/09
£ £
Estimate (10,612,500) 11,075,100
Actual (10,647,000) 11,000,892
Difference (34,500) 74,208

4.3  Council Housing Capital Programme

This section analyses actual spend against the Council Housing Capital Programme to the period
ended March 2009. Overall, there has been an underspend of £798K against the revised
programme of £3.586M. This represents 22% of the overall programme. The main area affected is
external refurbishments.

Prepared by Financlal Services 6



Page 41

Current Approved Spend to Date Budget

Programme £000 Remaining
£000 £000
Adaptations 250 237 (13)
Bathroom / Kitchen Refurbishment 705 598 (107)
External Refurbishment 915 685 (230)
Rewiring 281 192 (89)
Renewal of Heaters 251 122 (129)
Environmental / Crime Prevention 430 346 (84)
Re-roofing / Window Renewals 152 152 -
Energy Efficiency Works 478 381 (97)
Ryelands Development 1 1 -
Housing Office Alterations 3 2 (1)
Non Sheltered Housing Scheme 60 60 -
IT Replacement 60 12 (48)
TOTAL 3,586 2,788 (798)

The outturn position is still subject to slippage requests, however the overall underspend will be
investigated and reported back to Members as part of the slippage approval process. It should be
noted that there was a similar underspend at the end of 2007/08 (£751K).

5 REVENUE COLLECTION PERFORMANCE

5.1 Council Tax & Business Rates

This section analyses the Council Tax and Business Rate collection statistics. Performance
against the in-year collection targets is slightly down, 0.48% for Council Tax and 0.83% for
Business Rates. The economic downturn has made meeting collection targets impossible this year
and this will have to be reflected in the expectations for the next year or two. The Head of
Revenues Services has reported that most authorities have experienced the same difficulties.

Percentage Collected  2007/08 2008/09 2008/09 2008/09 Status
o s Target Actual
%o %
All Years In Year
Council Tax 92.65 92.34 97.10 96.62 0.48% below
Business Rates 99.08 98.88 99.20 98.37 0.83% below

5.2  Sundry Debts

This section sets out the latest position on the level of outstanding sundry debts {excluding Council
Housing). At the end of March the total debt outstanding was just under £2.1M, which is over
£0.5M less than the same period last year.

The level of debt over 1 year old remains at 29% of the total outstanding debt. However, the total
value of all debt over 3 months old has reduced by £59K from the previous quarter.

Prepared by Financial Services T



Page 42

Analysis of Debt Outstanding Dec 08 Mar 09

Dec-08 ——— £000 £000
mMar-09 7 0-28 days 442 911
- ; 29-58 days 633 139
S : 59-90 days 84 111
i 91-182 days 190 163
| | 183-363 days 167 152
B = li' 364+ days 626 609
- B 2,142 2,085
QQSS\E @@Q ,.bb"’\’\? ktsb‘\% Previous Year 1,755 2,564
¥ 0}-\ .{85:‘83 rgc?‘
Revenues : Hsg Benefits| (]
Property Serv]ces:[.
ceD)s| u
Planning Servicea_ & |
Health & Strategic Housingﬁ N | < 28 Days
Financial Services| i 28-59 Days
Cultural Services| 1 m 60-91 Days
Econ Dev & Tourism |1l m92-483 Days
Legal &HR|l : ;::f;::ys
Revenues
Neighbourhood—

0 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000 500,000 600,000 700,000 800,000 900,000
£000's

6 INSURANCE & RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Insurance Monitoring

The current balance on the insurance provision is £289K, after making net payments of £442K in
settlement of claims made, and receiving £222K as credits from the insurers in respect of claims
above the excess.

At present, our insurers estimate that the value of claims outstanding is £606K, which relates to a
total of 263 claims made over a 13 year period. This estimate assumes that all these claims will be
settled at the maximum reserve limit; however, recent statistics show that, on average, only 54% of
the total reserve will be paid. The estimated cost of claims outstanding could therefore reasonably
be valued at around £327K, which is £38K above the current provision.

It is highly unlikely that all these outstanding claims will fall due for payment in the same financial
year, but the uncertain nature of insurance claims payments means that accurate predictions are
difficult. Nonetheless, the overriding principle is that the Council must make reasonable provision
for all its known liabilities. Whilst the balance on the provision as at 31 March has not yet been
formally reviewed, it is reasonable to assume that some additional contribution will be required, and
this would also reduce the overall net underspending for last year.

Prepared by Financial Services 8



Page 43

Analysis of claims made, paid and outstanding by year.

1,000 -
900 -
800 *Annual provsion payments
700 4 e Claims made

£000

6.2 Other Risk Management

As a result of the Internal Audit Report on Risk Management (08/0742), the Council's risk
management procedures have recently undergone a substantial review.

The objectives of the audit were;

e To provide assurance as to the effectiveness of Services’ current risk management
arrangements, particularly focussing on risk associated with business objectives.

e To assist with the development of current risk management arrangements, particularly
focussing on integration with the Performance Management Framework.

e Where possible, help the Council improve on its Use of Resources Assessment.

The most significant Agreed Action that came out of the Audit was to develop the Code of Practice
for Managing Risk and Opportunity — ‘A Sense of Proportion’. This replaces the previous Policy and
Strategy and explains the Authority's reviewed approach to risk management, and the framework
that will operate to ensure that risks are effectively managed.

This Code of Practice has now been developed and was formally adopted by Audit Committee at its
meeting on 22 April 2009. Arrangements are underway to communicate and provide training on the
new Code.

Prepared by Financial Services ¢]



Page 44

APPENDIX A
SUMMARY OF MAJOR VARIANCES (Qtr 4 2008/09)
(Not included elsewhere in the report)
CFwd | Varianceto| Freiected
Service Service Area Reason for Variance & Action being taken e Variance to
qust]  Date Year End
£ £
+ = Adverse
() = Favourable
VARIANCES REPORTED THROUGH PRT PROCESS (SERVICE HEAD COMMENTS)
- Contribution lo Duke of Lancaster Colour Belt and past Mayoral badges, Carry forward :
CHIC & Mayoral Expenes request for cost of Civic Heads Day for the outgoing Mayor he!d in April. Gt (3,000) (3.000)
A number of budget heads relating to Member support, such as catering provision,
Democratic Representation stationery suppties, travel and Overview and Scruliny expenses have not been fully (5,200) (5,000)
utifised during the year.
Democratic Electoral Registration Add_\'tma] grants from central government and increased efficiencies have produced (24,300) (24,000)
Services savings.
‘Youth Games Cheaper fiights were obtalned to Aalborg and the number of participants were reduced. (10,000) (10,000)
£1,500 that was carried forward from 2007/08 remains uncla'med and will not be pald
Miscellaneous Grants now. The remaining underspend is as a resu't of ciaims for granis being less than (2,300) (2,300)
allocated.
Legal & Court Costs Cost of legal advice 1o resist Town Green application. +5,500 +10,000
R, Search Fee Income Fewer searches as a result of the economic downtum and decline in housing market. +10,000 +10,000
egal :
Hackney Carriage Licences More demand for licenses than anticipated. (8,600) (5,000)
Licensing Act - Premises More income than anticipated from new and variation appfications. (17,500) (17,500)
Customer Insight Project delayed - Carry forward request. Ciwd (6,200) (5,200)
Stationery More printing being done externally - transferred to Property Services in 2009/10. (9,800) (9,800)
Information & Printers and Coplers New printers and contracts and some printing belng done externally. (22,300) (22,300)
Customer |Telephony New tarifi and reduced calls and lines. (11,900) (11,200)
Services: |sbie Telephonies New tariff and reduced cals, (11,000) | (11,000)
Software - Anite/Task Project delayed - Carry forward request. CFwd | (13,000) (13,000)
Software - Puma Finance project delayed - Carry forward request. CiFwd (9,000) (9,000)
Investment Interest In line with Qtr 3 projection for year (folows reduction lo Base Rate). +42,000 +42,000
, Net position, taking account of costs of short term borrowing and savings on Public
Intgradt Peyable Works Loan Board (PWLB) debt repayment, arranged in this quarter. (37,000) (37,000)
Covers software cosls for BACS & Civica Financials System, & hosted electronic
Financial payments service. Initial indications are that these costs will either need to be accrued
Services Software-& Related Services for in 2008/09, or be subject to camy forward requests (position being finalised for (73,000) +0
outturn).
Audit Fees Awaiting confirmation of Audit Commission position, but underspend is expected. (48,000) (20,000)
. Awaiting information from HMRC, but net recovery on VAT on cultural / lelsure activities
VAT Recovery Chaim expected to be around £600K, assuming claim is successful. *0 (600,000)
Transport Cosls : Fuel Savings due to reduction in oil prices. (12,000) (24,000)
Recycling Income The market for recyclables colapsed (as widely reporied in the media) in the autumn. 46,000 +19,000
cc(p)s = "
Z::::: Reruse<Wasla Disposal Tonnage down therefore costs reduced. (20,000) (20,000)
Trade Refuse Income Latest predictions suggest a fall in trade refuse income. +15,000 +15,000
St.Leonard’s House - Electricity  |March invoice lo be accrued, but usage to be reviewed. {10,700) (8,400)
St.Leonard’s House - Gas Still awaiting March Invoice, estimated at £6K. Overspend to be reviewed. +2,200 +7,200
Storey Institute - Hire of Premises |Windfall income for room hire. +0 (16,000)
Kellet Road - Rental Payments | 2008/09 payments charged into 2007/08 in error resulting in a current year saving. (12,200) (18,000)
Kellet Road - Rental Income 2008/09 income credited into 2007/08 In error resulting in reduced income in this year, +10,600 +8,000
Lancaster Market - Rental Income|Reduced tenancies due to market's uncerain future. +16,600 +16,600
Eil:;:;er Malket= Servite Reduced tenancies due to market's uncertain future. +14,100 +14,100
Poslage Underspend due to additional savings in first year of TNT contract. (17,500) (9,600)
Municipal Buildings - Gas Overspend due to markel forces. Usage to be reviewed. +4,700 +6,500
Municipal Bulldings - Room Hire  |Additional income received from bookings - mainly in the last quarler. (12,700) (13,200)
Property |, o 3 Underspend due to failure of consultantcontraclor to provide services in final quarter for
Ssrices Mgt & Admin - General Services which appolntment was made. (15.600) {12,700)
Energy initiative introduced in Qtr 2 with the extraction fans at SLNicholas Arcades car
Off-Street Parking - Electricity park has produced savings but monitoring is belng commissioned to confim air quality (15,200) (10,400)
implications.
. Since revised budget was sel, income has been 2% above target in December, 1%
Off-Stieet Parking - Fee Income abave in January and March and 1.5% below in February. (15.900) {28:200)
- ; The off-street account has not performed as we'l as expected and a year end review is
SH;S::‘:;&;WI Pariing currently being undertaken to inform the remaining Parkwise arrangements up to +9,000 +9,000
niod September and beyond.
" N The on-street account has improved but is stil likely to be in deficit at year end but this
On-Stréet Civil Parking '|has no impact on the City Counci's budget due to the funding arrangements with the (7,000) +0
Enforcement ,
County Council.
On-Street Residents Parking - i o oo
Conlracts (Permits) Increased resident permits, visitor card and tradesman permit sales, (5,500) (5.000)
Concessionary Travel Expenses |Awaiting projected outturn poofing figures from County Council. ? ?




Page 45

APPENDIX A
SUMMARY OF MAJOR VARIANCES (Qtr 4 2008/09)
(Not inciuded elsewhere in the report)
CFwd | Variance to Prpjactad
Service Service Area Reason for Varlance & Action being taken Re Variance to
quest Date
Year End
£ £
+= Adverse
() = Favourable
VARIANCES REPORTED THROUGH PRT PROCESS (SERVICE HEAD COMMENTS)
; Underspend on Business Development scheme. The uncommitted balance of £4.3K on .
Economic (Business Development Granls |,y o port Grant scheme will be put forward as a carry forward request erwd | 16:300) (6:300)
Development
M i -
& Tourlsm g’:&iﬁ":’e Visitor Cenlra Income of only £16.5K has been achleved this year. Income targels lo be reviewed. 45,000 +5,000
Re g::::uon Poulton Neighbourhood Mgt Savings on severance payments due to redeployments (63,800) (63,800)
Originally reported an expected overspend of £20K, however due lo monitoring of spend
The Dome and an additional income amount of £11.6K on admissions this is now projected lobe a (2,000) {5,300)
saving.
Heysham Pool - Energy Cosls Additional energy cosls resulting from energy supplier undercharging error, +20,500 +23,000
Cultural Heysham Pool - Private Hire Loss of private hirers. Unable lo sell space to other clubs. +9,000 +9,000
Services Heysham Pool - Adult Swimming :ed::onal grant lowards swim for fitness scheme received, but not guaranteed for future (7.200) 7.200)
Salt Ayre Sports Centre : Small increase in consumplion year on year. New conlract agreed by LCC in Nov 08 48,000 +22.700
Electricity which has resu'ted in increased charges. + i
Salt Ayre Sports Cenlre : Gas Small |ncre.ased usage due lo cold weather condtions. N.Power now charging +17,700 +31,000
transporiation costs.
Admin fee is based on the original capital budget for DFG, a later allocation was made
DFG Administration Charges increasing the DFG Capital budget thus increasing the admin charge receivable. This (15,300) (15,300)
has resuited in a favourable variance.
Mgt & Admin - contracted Budget set up on the agreement that it was for the payment of consuitants to update the (26,400 (26,400)
services Housing Strategy which has not been carried out in 2008/09. AP0 4
Difficulties in the instaliation of new automatic radiation monitoring equipment on third
Health & |Environmental Protection - party land has led to a delay in installation costs. There has also been an unexpecled (7,200 (7.:200)
Strategic |Radiation Analysls one-off discount in Radmill partnership fees for 2008/09. The equipment instatation 1200) !
Housing costs have been budgeted within existing resources in 2009/10.
Homelessness Services - Bed & |An increase in the Homeless priority need order budget has led to the success of (6.400) (6,400)
Breakfast prevention Initiatives, which in turn has led lo less vulnerable people requiring B&B. Y 2
Homelessness - Government Income of £11.5K for 2007/08 has been pald by central govemment in 2008/09. A new (11,500) (11,500)
Grants arrangement has been set up for payments in 2008/10. * !
Pest Control - Insect Control Demanq for treatmenls fallen due lo adverse weather conditions affecting insect +6,200 +6,200
Charges poputation,
At Qir 3 it was reported that an anticipated furlher loss of planning appfication fee
Planning Application Fees income of E50K would be incurred. However, fee income picked up in the last Qtr, due (12,200) (12,200)
to a number of large applications, and finally exceeded revised targets.
Building Control - Employee Costs|Savings due lo staffing reduction and prudent use of budgets. (14,200) (14,000)
Building Control - Fee Income Reduction in application numbers against revised budget and loss of large projects to +9.900 +14,000
Approved Inspectors.
;l::?lgg Townscape Heritage Initiative 2 |Programme work de'ayed - Carry forward requesl. C/Fwd (16,200) (16,200)
Luneside East Estale ~ 3 S 2
layed utiity di { orks - ] Fy
Managerieit Delayed utility dis-connection and maintenance works - Carry forward request CiFwd (3,000) (9,500)
& % Maintenance element of Christmas Lighting was less than predicted. Probably due to
Chrisimas Decorations use of LED technology. Budget to be reviewed in 2009/10. (5,400) (5,400)
Capial Salaries Target for fee income exceeded. (11,700) (11,700)
Land Dralnage Some costs absorbed by capital scheme funded by the Environment Agency. (21,800) (21,500)
The TERN project Two items of maintenance have cost substantially less than estimated. (16,800) (11,800)
Council Tax / Community Charge |Various savings, including Legal / No Ball costs. (7.000) (7,000)
::‘r‘\:’;:: NNDR Administration Savings on Legal / Bailff Fees and Bai costs. (5,500) (5,500)
+ |LHA / DWP Funding ’ Underspend on externally funded scheme - Carry forward request CFwd | (36,000) (36,000)
VARIANCES NOT REPORTED THROUGH PRT PROCESS
| [ |
TOTAL VARIANCES [ (541,400) | (1,002,200)
Known Carry Forward Requests to date|  +96,200
Net Projected Underspend (excluding salaries), should known C/F requests be approved| (906,000)




2008/09 Treasury Management Progress Report to
31 March 2009

Report of Head of Financial Services

Introduction

It is a requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management that regular
monitoring reports are presented to Members on treasury activities. These reports will
normally be presented soon after the end of June, September, December and March.

Cabinet approved the Treasury Strategy for 2008/0S on 19 February 2008 and the
Investment Strategy was approved by Council at its meeting on 27 February 2008. This
report outlines activities undertaken in pursuance of those strategies during the financial
year. It should be noted, however, that some figures are still provisional and may well
change in completing the closure of accounts.

Please note that colour copies of the graphs contained in this report are available on request.

Summary

o The administrators of the Icelandic bank KSF (with whom the Council has £2M) have
published their intention to pay a dividend of £0.10 per £1 before the end of 2008 with
a minimum total payment of £0.50 per £1. We await further news from KSF as to the
exact amounts and timing as well as notification from Glitnir and Landsbanki.

e Quarter 4 has seen a further move towards lowering counterparty risk whilst trying to
maintain some level of return on the Council's treasury operations. This has been
achieved by repaying £5.6M of PWLB loans, which were costing the authority 4.49%
in interest. This saving outweighs any return that could be obtained on investing an
equivalent sum and also reduces counterparty risk through lowering investment
levels.

e Some limited temporary borrowings have been required due to the Council having
less cash than anticipated towards the end of the year, mainly down to repayment of
PWLB lcans mentioned above and frozen Icelandic investments. These temporary
borrowings have only cost 0.9% on average.

e The provisional out-turn figures for investment interest are broadly in line with the
£42K deficit against the £1,003K budgeted figure, as predicted at quarter 3. This
deficit is matched by the saved interest of £42.5K on PWLB loans repaid, although
there is an additional £5.5K of interest payable on short term (temporary) borrowing.
Overall, the net outturn (before finalising any further year end transactions) is around
a £2K net cost. This is felt reasonable, given the reductions in interest rates over the
last quarter.



3.

Page 47

Iceiandic banks update

The administrators of KSF issued an update to creditors on 17" April 2009. This states the
intention to pay £0.10 per £1 to creditors at some point over the summer of 2009. In addition,
a minimum total dividend figure of £0.50 per £1 has been disclosed as the lower threshold for
the total return. The Council currently has £2M of frozen investments with KSF plus £48K of
interest due, up to the point the bank went into administration on the 8" October 2008. This
would mean an initial dividend of £205k with minimum recovery of £1,025K. A full copy of the
report is available at:

http://www.kaupthingsingers.co.uk/pages/3962

The administrators of Glitnir (£3M held, £126K of interest accrued) and Landsbanki (£1M
held, £88K of interest accrued) have yet to make any comment over likely returns.

Furthermore, CIPFA are due io release an update to the accounting Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) that will deal explicitly with how to account for Icelandic
investments the final accounts. At present, in terms of the budget, the Council has assumed
that the interest earned on these investments will be receivable, but up to the date that the
banks went into administration.

Debt Portfolio

There have been some changes to the Council's debt portfolio in Quarter 4. £5.6M of PWLB
loans were repaid at the end of January and this has saved interest costs at 4.49% on the
loans. This is an attractive alternative to investing the money, which would have retained a
higher counterparty risk and would have earned at most 1% interest in the current climate.

As we have less cash available due to repayment of loans and the assets frozen in Iceland,
there has been the need to borrow short term on occasion to manage our day to day cash
flow. This can be typical towards the end of any financial year, as cash from monthly
instalments of Council Tax and Business Rates income generally falls off in February and
March (such instalments being spread over 10 months, not 12). The cost of short term debt
is curreritly very low with the average rate on these loans being 0.9%.

The Council had £8.5M of such short term loans as at 31/3/09 which, in the main, may reflect
the £3M that was due back at year end from Glitnir, together with the £5.6M of PWLB loans
repaid. At the year end the Council's total level of borrowing was £47.7M. This is
comfortably within both the Operational Boundary (£49.1M) and the Authorised Limit
(£56.3M) for external borrowing (see Appendix A for definitions of the above).

As reported for Quarter 3, the medium term forecast position on external borrowing remains
static despite the fact that by the end of 2008/09 there will be a cumulative increase in the
underlying need to borrow of £3.584M (2006/07 £1.608M, 2007/08 £1.762M, 2008/09
£0.214M) for which no actual long term additional borrowing has been taken up. This is
because the twin issues of the amounts set aside for the future repayment of debt, and a
cashflow position which is forecast to remain relatively strong, mean that there is no
immediate need to take out new long term loans.

It is anticipated that as the remaining fixed term investments mature during the 2009/10,
there will be no need for short term borrowings. Overall this will leave the Council with fewer
cash investments but less debt. Given that the Council’s loans currently cost more than
investments could earn, this is a good option in terms of both VFM and counterparty risk.



Page 48

Cost of borrowing

The graph below shows that the rate for short term (1 year) borrowing has seen a sharp
decline to around the 1% level over the year. Medium term borrowing (5 to 10 years) has
seen a less dramatic reduction to around the 3% level. Long term rates have fluctuated
around the 4.5% level.

The implications of this disparity between long term and short term rates are, firstly, that
short term borrowing is relatively cheap. Although the graph only shows PWLB rates,
experience to date suggests that these rates reflect the general market rates for short term
loans. Secondly, further opportunities to pay off more expensive long term debt may still
arise. Similar to the repayment performed in January, this may be a good option in terms of
both VFM and reduction of counterparty risk. The position will be monitored throughout
2009/10, with reference to forecast cash balances.

PWLB rates 2008-09 (fixed interest for varying maturity)

' W=\
15 \ \/\ \ / \\/"\ R

S

g ° 7

ol —5-5%

& 39 V\ V\\ S\ - :

p 3 \ ~F 9%-10

(1]

g 25 L | —o25285%

= \ —— 49%-50
2.0

. \,\
1.5
1.0 \ A N

0.5

Investing Activities

No fixed term investments have been placed since September 2008. Any surplus cash has
been managed on a day to day basis using the call accounts. A full list of the investments
placed during the year is enclosed at Appendix B.

The aim with Investments is to prioritise security and liquidity. This is to minimise any further
chance of a counterparty failing and the Council not being able to remove its deposits. The
use of the call accounts meets these requirements although since the repayment of the
PWLB loans, the amount of surplus cash has been minimal (average daily balance of £1.6M
after 28/1/09 vs. £6.9M before that date).



Page 49

The split of fixed term investments and the balances held within the call accounts is shown
graphically below (see also further details in Appendix B). At the year end, the fixed term
balances were made up of £6M of Icelandic investments, a £3M deposit with Irish Permanent
that matured on the 2™ of April and a further £3M held with Anglo Irish, due to mature on 17"
June 2009. There was £1.3M on call at the year end. '

During the Quarter Anglo Irish were removed from the Council’s list of approved
counterparties, although their short term ratings are still strong (F1+, P-1, A-1, as at
24/4/2009). Following discussion with the bank, there is no option to recover this deposit
before it matures but Officers are monitoring the situation in partnership with the Council’'s
treasury consultants.

The Irish government has guaranteed all deposits (such as the City Council’s) although their
sovereign rating has dropped to AA+ from the AAA gold standard. A further possible
mitigating factor is that Ireland is a member of the EU which may increase the chance of
external support. Overall, there is currently judged to be minimal risk of not receiving the full
principal and interest back on this investment — although as mentioned above, the situation is
being monitored.

Investment values over the period (fixed vs instant access)

35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
Q Instant
8 20,000,000
= Fixed
£ 15,000,000
A 4@ . B Iceland
10,000,000 -
5,000,000 +
0 T T T ] T T T T T T
o] o [00] (e0] w (o 0] [e0] [s0] (e 0] (e)] (e)] (e)]
o =) Qo o o o (=] o o o o o
(o] (w] o o o o (=] [e] (@] (@] o o
o™ o o ol o o (%] o o™ (%] o o™
¥ » ®© K ® 6 6 = & = 4 &
o 2 99 -9 e @ T L L g2 g '@
5 & © & ©o o & © o © o o
Date

Summary of Budget Position and Performance at 31 March 2009

Based on preliminary out-turn figures, interest earned in the year came to £964K against the
revised budget of £1,003K. This variance is slightly better than the predicted out-turn as
reported for Quarter 3, which estimated a budget shortfall of £42K for the year. The variance
is due to a reduced return on call account balances, as these are linked to the base rate.

In addition though, costs have been incurred for short term borrowing, amounting to £5.5K
although there has been a saving in year of £42.5K from the repayment of PWLB loans.

Taking account of the above, the net position across investments and borrowings is a £2K
shortfall against the revised budget. This does however assume that interest on Icelandic
bank deposits is receivable up to 8/10/08.




Page 50

In terms of performance against external benchmarks, the return on investments compared
to the LIBID and bank rates over the year is as follows:

Base Rate 3.61%
3 Month LIBID 4.59%
Lancaster CC Investments 5.46%
Lancaster CC investments* 4.69%

*This rate includes £6M frozen in Icelandic banks, at 0% from 8/10/08.

This performance appears good but it shouid be noted that it is affected by the longer term
investments that were taken out previously when rates were high. Furthermore, it does not
take account of any potential losses in connection with Icelandic investments. Also, it is
reiterated that at present emphasis is very much on security and liquidity of deposits, not
investment returns.

Risk management

The main focus of risk within treasury management is security of deposits and their liquidity.
Tne Council's investment strategy is designed to engineer risk management into investment
activity largely by reference to credit ratings and length of deposit, together with supperting
advice etc. Officers have been maintaining the portfolio well within the agreed limits by
utilising instant access call accounts and avoiding any new fixed term investments. In
addition, no further investments have been made with !rish counterparties since doubts were
raised over the strength of some institutions and their overall economy. The use of
sovereign credit ratings has been integrated into the 2009/10 investment strategy.

There is also a liquidity risk associated with accessing cash when it is needed, on a day to
day basis. At present Officers are utilising short term borrowing but there is a slim possibility
that there could be in a position where cash is required but cannot be obtained. However, it
is not judged that this is a significant risk. The Council enjoys a privileged status as a local
authority in that other lenders still see councils as safe places in which to deposit money,
and councils also have access to the PWLB. As the Council's remaining fixed term
investments mature, it is expected that the need for short term borrowing will reduce
throughout 2009/10 although the situation will be monitored and reviewed, particularly should
short term rates start to rise or should there be any potential issues with obtaining credit.

Conclusion

The news from KSF suggests that the administration process is making progress and that
the Council will hopefully receive some money back over the summer. Progress of the
administrators of Glitnir and Landsbanki is still unclear. The cash frozen in Iceland is starting
to have an effect on day to day operations and there has been the need to take on some
short term borrowings, although the final two months of the year can be difficult anyway, in
cashflow terms.

In addition, during this Quarter Officers have taken the decision to reduce long term loan
balances. This has benefits in terms of counterparty risk and value for money. Going
forward, as the cash position recovers, this may well be an attractive option for any further
surplus cash, as the cost of existing PWIB debt is likely to out-strip any investment returns,
especially given that the focus is on keeping invested sums liquid and with highly secure
counterparties. In addition, the Council's status as a privileged borrower means that it does
not run the same risks as private institutions in terms of raising credit if required.

The full annual treasury management report for 2008/09, including performance against
prudential indicators, will be presented to Cabinet and Council iater in the year.



Page 51

APPENDIX A

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS - LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL
Quarter 4 Update on Treasury Management activities, Performance Review Team,
31 March 2009

2008/09
£'000
AFFORDABILITY
Pl1: Estmales of ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream Non - HRA 13.4%
HRA 9.4%
Overall 12.1%
P13: Original estmate of impact of Capital Investment decisions on the Council Tax £0.28
This includes the impact of all elements of funding, including any increase in the need to borrow, GAw
required to finance new schemes added to the Capital Programme Gkl
Pl4: Estmates of impact of Capital Investment on Housing Rents Nil
PRUDENCE
Pl 6: Original estmates of capital expenditure Non - HRA 31,133
HRA 3,280
Total 34,413
P18: Orginal estimates of Capital Financing Requirement Non - HRA 30,642
HRA 15,303
Total 45,945
PI10: Authorised Limit
Authorised Limit for Borrawing 56,290
Authorised Limit for Other Long Term Liabiities 310
Authorised Limit for External Debt 56,600
[[PI11: External Debt: Operational Boundary 49,100

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

The Council adopted the CIPFA code of Practica for Treasury

PI13: Treasury Management: adoption of CIPFA code of Practice Management atits meeting on the 13lh March 2002,

Pl 14: Ficed Interest Rale Exposure
The Authority will Emit its exposure lo fixed interest rate costs to the amounts payable on the 100%
following proportion of its outstanding debl

AL 31 March 2008 the Council was exposed lo fixed inlerest rate cosls on 100% of its outstanding debt

P115: Variable Rate Interest Rate Exposure
The Autharity will Fmit its exposure to variable interest rate cosls to the amounts payable on the 30%
following propartion of its outstanding debt.

AL31 March 2008 the Council was exposed to variable interest rate costs on 0% of ils outstanding debl

PI16: Maturity Structure of Borrowing

Upper and Lower Limits Under 12 months 0% to 35%
12 menths and within 24 months % to 5%
24 months and within 5 years % to 10%
5 years and within 10 years % 0 20%
10 years and above 60% to 100%
Maturity Profile of Current Outstanding Debt at 31 March 2008 Under 12 months 0%
12 months and within 24 months 0%
24 months and within 5 years 0%
5 years and within 10 years 0%
10 years and above 100%
P117: Investments for pericds longer than 364 days
Maximum principal sum to be invested 6,000

The above limit does not include sums for forward deals placed up to six months in advance for
periods of 364 days or less.

At31 June 2008, the total amount of investments placed by the Council during the year, for periods of grealer than 364 days, was £3m (see Appendix B).

AUTHORISED LIMIT - The maximum amount of external debt, including both borrowing and other long-term liabilities, into which the Council may
enler in the specified period.

OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY - The working boundary of total external debt, including both borrowing and other long-term liabilities, which will
provide the day-to-day focus for Treasury Managemetnt activities. Unlike the Authorised Limit, it is not an absolute limit. It provides a mechanism
to highlight whether or not external debt is being managed within the expected levels. The Operational Boundary can be exceeded if developing
circumstances require, but if this happens then it will be the trigger for either comrective aclion or a revision of the relevant indicators.




Page 52

APPENDIX B
INVESTMENT INTEREST EARNED TO 31 March 2009
Days up
to
Name Start End Rate  31/3/09 Principal Interest
% £ £

Fixed term investments
Deposited 2007/08
Northern Rock (1 Yr Fwd Deal) 31 Mar 08 18-Apr-08 4.98 18] 2,000,000 4,912
Landsbanki Islands 31-Mar- 08-Oct-08 | 6.25| 191} 1,000, 01)0 32,705
EBSB.S. 31-Mar-08 | 03-Apr-08 |  5.90 3| 2,000,000 970
Glitnir 31-Mar-08 | 08-Oct-08 | 576 191} 3,000,000 90,346
Deposited 2008/09 | _ .
Bradford & Bingley 04-Apr-08 | 04-Jul-08 |  6.05 91| 2,000,000] 30,167
EBSB.S. , 04-Apr-08 | 06-Oct-08 6.02 185| 3,000,000
Kaupthing, Singer & Friedlander | 16-May-08 | 08-Oct-08 |  6.00 145} E (
Anglo Irish Bank Corporation 17-Jun-08 | 17-Jun-09 6.56 288 3 000 000 155 283
Irish Permanent Plc 02-Jul-08 | 02-Apr-09 6.31 273 3,000,000 141,586
Scarborough BS 02-Sep-08 | 02-Mar-09 5.98 181 2,000,000 59,308
Kent Reliance 02-Sep-08 | 02-Mar-09 6.02 181 2,000,000 59,705
Sub total 714,191
Call accounts
Abbey National 181,095
Allied Irish 64,301
Yorkshire bank 4,295
Subt total 249,691

TOTAL 963,882

For investments highlighted, the counterparties have since been downgraded and removed from the counterparty list
as noted in the quarter 2 report. Those in yellow (Anglo Irish & Irish Permanent) have also been removed from the

counterparty list since the 2009/10 investment strategy came into force but were still on the list for Quarter 4 in 2008-
9. The Irish Permanent and Bradford and Bingley deposits have now been returned.
Icelandic banks have been accounted for up to 8/10/08, the point at which they went into administration.
As at 25 November, no monies are held in the Allied Irish Call Account.

Call account information

The maximum balance on the call accounts during the quarter was £11M (vs total approved limit of £12M)
The minimum balance during the quarter was 0.

The opening balance was £5.73M

The closing balance was £1.3M



Page 53 Agenda Item 9

CABINET

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review
2"! June 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Regeneration)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update members on the Mid-term Review of the West End Masterplan and
recommendations arising from appraisal and outline the next steps in implementing and
maintaining local scrutiny of the refreshed priorities.

Non-Key Decision D Referral from Cabinet I:I
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan |} 26th January 2009

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR (REGENERATION):

1) That Cabinet endorses Mid-term review recommendations and implementation plan and
notes the independent appraisal and consultation feedback appended to the report.

(2) That Cabinet advises which of the Options 2 to 5 (shown in section 7.0) should be taken
forward.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 In the light of the Lancaster district Local Strategic Partnership (LDLSP) refresh of
economic priorities for the District, Cabinet agreed in October 2008 (minute reference
65) that officers undertake a mid-term review of existing and 'pipeline’ West End
Masterplan projects, in order to identify, match and prioritise them taking account of the
current policy framework and funders’ priorities.

1.2 The results of the review, and ‘refresh’ of the Masterplan detailed in this report show
which of the proposed physical work elements in the West End will contribute to the
objectives of the Economic Programme, are likely to attract external funding support and
can realistically be delivered. This report presents the full analysis, describing
processes and appraisal and proposes the next steps in the outline implementation plan
for the priority projects.

2.0 Background

2.1 Following October Cabinet officers prepared a report entitled “Draft West End
Masterplan Review”. The report gave a detailed summary of:



2.2

Page 54

e The genesis and development of the original Masterplan document through baseline
analysis, options, consultation and adoption by the Council as a Supplementary
Planning Document in February 2005;

e The formulation of objectives and prioritising of activity and the particular emphasis
on housing and public realm interventions;

e An analysis of achievements and progress to date and any outstanding issues
A current strategic view of emerging policy and funding considerations;

e A detailed analysis and interim recommendations for a renewed focus for the
physical work in the West End.

Summarised below are the key points of the report:
Masterplan origins

The plan identified that the housing and social problems, and the associated
environment and image issues, particularly in the West End, have a serious effect on the
economy and therefore the economic future of the town. The development process that
resulted in the Masterplan final report was widely consulted and has a considerable
amount of endorsement from the local community, the Council and its strategic partners.

Progress and Issues

The first 3 years work concentrated on “Phase 1" projects and public realm and a
number of achievements can be recognised:

e Housing remodelling has resulted in major tenure improvement along key streets
including Clarendon Road and West End Road;

e West End Gardens: an outstanding improvement scheme incorporating public art,
play areas and a new ‘destination’ café draws;

e Private sector investment: Investment in the Former Bus Depot and part of the
Frontierland site can be linked to improved confidence in the area;

e Commercial core: Yorkshire Street public realm improvements have been well
received and prompted a number of new physical investment proposals.

The original intention to create a ‘Central Park’ as a major public realm intervention
failed ‘value for money’ test pointing to a need for greater ‘realism’ in public realm
strategy. As a result Cabinet agreed in October 2008 (minute reference 65) to remove
Central Park as a Masterplan proposal.

Emerging Policy and Strategic Considerations

Clearly there are a great number of policy documents produced by a range of agencies
but at a district level the West End Masterplan ‘fit’ with the following is most important:

e LDLSP “Economic Programme”. The Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-11
identifies 5 key economic themes: Knowledge Economy; Heysham/M6 employment
corridor; Reinventing Morecambe; Lancaster City and Riverside; Carnforth Northern
Gateway.

o Local Development Framework (LDF): The new planning system will provide a vital
tool in achieving ‘step-change’ and supporting the Economic Programme. An Area
Action Plan has been proposed for central Morecambe and it is prudent to set West
End priorities in the context of the LDF’s approved Core Strategy and emerging
Action Plan Framework to exploit synergy and economic linkages.

e Lancaster City Council Corporate Plan: The Council itself sets out its own objectives
and priorities to ensure its officer and financial resources are applied to best effect.



2.3

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Page 55

e Housing Capital Programme: The detail of the programme beyond 2008-09 has not
been decided but a broad programme has been agreed focussing on the original
‘High Priority’ Phase 1 Masterplan areas. There should continue to be synergy
between economic regeneration and this housing work.

With the current economic climate in mind, and the fragility of the housing market being
uppermost, there must also be recognition that deliverability — in the sense of the ability
of projects to attract funding and which can be implemented with the resources in hand
in a timely manner — is an important consideration in all strategic policy.

Details of Draft Review Document and Consultation

The West End Masterplan was adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
on 22 February 2005 by Cabinet (minute 149). Planning policy guidance states that
councils should update SPDs where changing circumstances require it, and the
significant changes in local and national policy as well as the projects already delivered
mean that this review is timely.

The Draft Mid-Term Review has assessed each of the proposed work elements potential
contribution towards high level objectives, in particular those of the LDLSP’s emerging
Economic Programme, against a standardised ‘scoring’ template. The template had
previously been agreed by Cabinet at its October 2008 meeting (minute reference 65).

An independent scrutiny panel was convened by the Council’'s Programme Secretariat
consisting of officers from the City Council experienced in aspects of: risk management;
finance and funding; planning and policy; programme development and performance.
The purpose of the Mid Term Review is to assess project viability in terms of:

Fit to strategic aims and policy
Deliverability

Availability of funding

Risk

Value for Money

The overall strategic aims of the current Master Plan are considered to be relevant and
appropriate. Concentrating future regeneration activity upon a focussed and prioritised
list of projects making the best use of limited resources is supported as an appropriate
way forward in the current financial climate.

A revised Draft Mid-Term Review report was presented to the West End Partnership
(WEP)for feedback and comment. The partnership agreed with much of the Mid-term
review but raised the following issues:

e Bold Street proposal ‘medium’ should be changed to *high’ priority: Bold Street
exhibited the poorest property condition and officers originally considered it high
priority. However due to a transcription error the information provided to the WEP
was nhot updated. This error has been corrected and Bold Street is listed as a high
priority project.

e The Central Park proposal be reintroduced: Cabinet resolved to remove Central
Park from the Masterplan (minute reference 65) in October 2008 and nothing has
changed to alter officers’ views that the proposal is not feasible.

e The low and medium priority classification assigned to West End Road and
Clarendon Road East remodelling respectively: The previous ‘remodelling’ strategy
used was no longer economically viable and the officer recommendation is to review



Page 56

alternate delivery models to see if the Masterplan aims of reducing low quality
private rented properties, particularly HMOs, and the provision of more family
homes for owner occupiers can be achieved for these properties.

The detailed consultation response from the WEP can be found in Appendix 1.

3.6 Following this process a Final Draft West End Masterplan Mid-term Review has been
produced (Appendix 2). The high level recommendations now reflect appraisal
comments and the consultation feedback. The ranking of proposals has also altered
during this process. Listed below is the portfolio of proposals that have been prioritised
as high or medium priority ranking:

High Ranking Projects/Areas
Offering greatest regeneration impact, secure best policy fit, have greatest chance of
securing funding, provide value for money/additionality.

e Co-Op Building e Exemplar

e Commercial Core e Bold Street and West End Gardens

e Regent Road e Marine Road West (public realm)
Medium Ranking Projects / Areas
Meeting most of the assessment criteria and viable but of a slightly lower priority or
for implementation in the medium to long term.

e Clarendon Road Living e Clarendon Road East

Street

e Frontierland e West End Road

e Heysham Road Gateway e Marine Road West (housing)

e Bus/ llluminations Depot e Avondale / Barnes Road (workshops)

e Regent Park

3.7 The remaining proposals are ranked as low or lowest priority — meaning in effect that the
ideas offer limited or poor policy fit and should be deferred or no longer pursued or
investigated as viable proposals unless strategic policy circumstances change in the
medium to long term.

3.8 Appendix 1 also details the final recommendation listed against each Masterplan area
following consultation and forms an outline implementation plan and the officer
responsible for taking matters forward. If Members approve the Recommendations and
Implementation Plan this will be included in a final Mid-Term Review document, and
circulated as a record of the achievements and a formal statement of working priorities
moving forward.

4.0 Masterplan Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1 The following options have been identified:

Option Advantages Disadvantages Risks
1. Do nothing — make no | No advantages No clear statement of Potential for ‘drift’,
decision on West End identified. direction, in either confusion and waste in

Masterplan priorities.

allocation of financial and
human resources in
development and

strategic or development
terms, of Council
priorities for economic




Page 57

regeneration in the West
End.

delivery.

2. Cabinet endorses
Mid-term review
recommendations and
implementation plan and
notes the independent
appraisal and
consultation feedback
appended to the report.

Clear commitment to and
direction for economic
and housing
regeneration work in the
West End.

Independent appraisal
has endorsed
recommendations.

The West End
Partnership has been
consulted and provided
formal feedback that has
led to some changes in
priority.

Although formal
community consultation
feedback has been
received appraisal
process has essentially
been officer led.

Usual risks associated
with practical delivery
relating to achieving
development funding,
managing and shaping
projects and initiatives.

4.2

5.0

51

6.0

6.1

6.2

While the focus of the review is around the economic regeneration theme, it should be
noted that particular economically ‘low ranking’ proposals may find support within the

LDLSP’s other Thematic Groups and their associated priorities.

Essentially the West

End Masterplan Mid-term Review and the implementation plan is a programme rather
than a collection of individual projects. It provides a strategic overview and a framework
for any projects that are supported. As individual projects are developed they will be
subject to detailed internal appraisal and conform to the Council’s project management

systems.

Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

Option 2 is the preferred option as this provides a clear commitment and direction for
economic and housing regeneration work in the West End through the stated priorities
and outline implementation plan. Cabinet can be reassured by the fact that the projects
and recommendations have been subject to independent appraisal and community

consultation.

Local Governance and Scrutiny of Masterplan Implementation

The West End Partnership (WEP) was set up in order to give local input into three
initiatives targeted specifically at the West End neighbourhood in past years. The

initiatives were;:

e The West End Masterplan
¢ Neighbourhood Management
e Cleaner, greener and safer community funding

The WEP is an independent partnership with an ‘unincorporated’ constitution, and was
financially supported by the three funding streams.

The discrete Neighbourhood Management initiative for the West End has ended along
with the associated budgets. There is no specific budget identified to fund




6.3

6.4

Page 58

administrative support and provide for hire of rooms/refreshments for meetings. The
cleaner, greener fund has now also ended.

Physical Masterplan priority projects will continue to be delivered in the West End but
the Economic Programme focus is on integration and synergy across Morecambe’s
communities and economic linkages to the wider District and Regional economy rather
than discrete neighbourhood work. The creation of a new Morecambe Parish Council
(covering the wards of Torrisholme, Bare, Poulton, Westgate, Harbour and Heysham
North) is also significant. The LDLSP is also undertaking detailed work on a Community
Engagement Framework for its activities and areas of influence.

The previous WEP enjoyed a degree of authority and autonomy over resource
allocation. However, it is now perhaps more appropriate for major resource allocation
decisions to be taken at a more strategic level given the Economic Programme strategy.
The correct ‘scale’ for the consideration of major strategic resources and projects is at
City Council Cabinet and Corporate Director level. However, for any new or ongoing
initiatives affecting a community such as the West End there will still be a requirement
for local community input and engagement.

The role and purpose of the WEP in relation to ‘governance’ and scrutiny of the ongoing
Masterplan project issues therefore needs to be considered. This is particularly
pressing in the light of recent democratic and partnership changes. An analysis of the
WEP’s constitutional objectives and its involvement in issues is attached in Appendix 3.
The options for local engagement arising from this analysis are outlined in the table
under 7.0.



Page 59

‘'spoyaw uswabebuas patisjaid s)
UO UOISIOap B sayew d4S7d7 [nun uawabebus
[e20] pu3 1S9\ Uo uonisod Jo Aurelasun

'd1san

ybnoiyl yiom yans [suueyd o1 arendoiddeur aq
Aew 11 10 aaaiyoe 01 ynaiyip aq Aew spesodoud
Jenaiued uo indul Allunwiwod paje1ag

dope [|Im ) suonNn|os Yyaiym

pue [jam Bupiom ase spoylaw yaiym Buienens
ul Buiobuo si yIopn uBwabebus Jo spoylaw
wnuwndo s aulwialep 01 1S sey 4S1a

“lomauwreld Juswabebug Anunwiwo)
S.dS71d1 ulylim parepowiodde
a( p|nod uswabebus pu3z 1soM

jiomawel
1uswabebuz Alunwwo)d

dsTdaisesinn ‘g

'sanss| pooyinoqybiau Jayio pue

uejdiaise ayi Jo Buipuelsiapun pajelap e
sey eyl dnoib padojanap ||om B JO SSO| 0] pes|
Algennaul pjnom 43\ 10} 9]0J aAUBISgNS ON

"1oya Jo uonealdnp renualod yum [1ouno)
ysired ayl yum pasiel aq 01 pasu |Is [|IM sanss|

‘Indul Alunwiwod 1spim 0}
paso|o se paaladiad aq Aew pue pa| |1ouno) AID

‘paulelUreWw OS[e uoie)Nsuod
Alunwwod paseq 109loid Japim pue
[1DUNOD Yslied 0] YUl ‘paurejurew si
JUBWIBA|OAULI I0[|1I9UNOD PUT 1SN 10a11d

¢,dnoub ysel Aunnios pue
M3IAIBAQ 10 dnoub uosiel|
18UIgeD pug 1S\ JHI0ads
e BIA Aunnios pue indu| ¢

"2INjoNnJis [19UN0Y ysiied mau
ay1 apisino spuels dnolb psuoddns j1ounod
A wspuadapul ue i Alurenasun 10} [enualod

‘paonpal aq p|nod sbunssw

10 Jaquunu ay1 ybBnouyie s1s09 uonensiuiwpe
198W 0] puUNOJ 8q 0] SPAaU 82IN0Sal B

pue padlaias sbunaaw si alnbal s [IM d3M

oM

Bulobuo pu3 1SN WIOUI 01 YDIYM YIM MBIA
Alunwwod rea|d e Buinaiyoe i1surebe yiom Lew
pue [12Un0) ysiled ayl Yum pasrel aq 0} pasau
[11S ||IM SBNSSI Se 1oya Jo uonedldnp renualod

"ajqeuonsanb si pu3 1SapA 8yl Ul Apoq
1uapuadapul Ue Jo SSBUINIBSN pue 9oUBAS|a) 0S
amnguisip Jo abeuew o1 Buipun] UB1IND 19811p ON

"siseq [ewJoul Ue uo [1I2UnoD yshed yim

aresado-02 pue 1SISSE ‘198181l PIN0D

‘pu3 1S8AN 8y uo 10edwi 0}

[enuajod ayl aney Yaiym saaieniul pue
sy109loud oul Indul pue Arejuawiwiod [e0|
[nyJasn apinoid pjnod pue Aloedes pue
aoualladxa [ed0] a|qelapISuod surelay

"Apoq juspuadapul
ue se anunuod
0] pauoddns 43Mm '€

'S1S00 192w
0] puUNO} 3¢ 0} SPa3au 32IN0S3l B pue PadIAISS
sBunaaw sy aanbai ns M (Loddns 01 sjuem

1oUN0D ysired ayl reyl s|o1yan e §i) d3M

‘Buloinosal pue syuawalinbal indul
pooyinoqyfiau Uo SUOISIJaP pue SUoII3|d |IuNn
uonisod 43 Jo Aureuaosun pue jeuonelado
SBW099( |IoUN0D Mau ayl [nun deo,

‘Indul [9A8] ,pooyinoqybiau, salinbai 11 Jayraym
pue ssauisng S)l 1oNPU0d 0] SIUBM )il MOY
UO UOISIOBp & apeW 10U SBY |IoUno) ysilied ayl

AlUNWWO9 3yl Yum SaAieniul pue
sfesodoud ‘sanssi pu3 1sop\ bulisiel Joy
Jed Jo 1od, 1s11) 211RI00WaP B SaPINOId

"Il JO SJUBWISIS BWOS 10 4IM
ay) Jdope, 1o dnoib snaoy pu3 1Sa/M\
Mmau e dojanap 0] asooyd Aew 1l ‘Indul
[9A8] ,pooyinoqybiau, Buioinosal uo
UOISIDap B ayew ued [19uno) ysied ayl

‘daM 1o
dnoub-gns umo si ybnoay

Alrenualod — Juswabebuas
[e30], pu3 1S9\

uo sael |1Iouno) yslied
aquedaloN MaN ‘2

‘sj08foud/sjesodoud
pu3 1sa\ Buiobuo ul Juswabebhus [eao|
0] uoneas ul uonisod jo Aurensoun pue yuq,

‘pu3g 1S9\ 8y} Joy uoneuswsa|dwi Jo J1balens ul
1uswabebus [eoao| uo uonisod [19UN0OD Jed|d ON

‘paynuapl sabejueape

ON ‘sjesodoud /s1oaloid uejdiaisen

40 Aunnias Aunwwod pue adueulanohb
aInin} 8y} U0 M3IA OU Sey |IoUno)

Buiylou o 'T

sanssj/sysiy

sabeiuenpesiq

sabeiuenpy

uondo

sfesodold 0.




7.1

7.2

7.3

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

Page 60

As noted in the options analysis there are a number of strategic engagement issues
and ongoing analysis running alongside the need to maintain a specific community
liaison /engagement in the West End Masterplan proposals and projects. Most
pertinently there will be a ‘gap’ until many of the options identified come to fruition.
The WEP’s role must therefore be considered in this context and Cabinet Members
are requested to consider the disadvantages / advantages of providing interim
financial and administrative support for the continuation of the WEP.

Support for the West End Partnership from either City or Parish Council would mean
retention of considerable local experience and capacity which could provide useful
local commentary and input into projects and initiatives which have the potential to
impact on the West End. However, with limited resource allocation powers and no
current funding to manage or distribute the relevance of WEP and its current
constitution is questionable. WEP will require its meetings serviced and a resource
would need to be found to meet costs and these implications are outlined in the
Financial Implications section.

Members should note that as an independent body WEP has to make a decision to
‘stand down’ itself, although this will clearly be influenced by a decision on continuing
formal Council support.

Officer preferred option

Officers have considered all of the practical solutions to governance and would
recommend that one of the options 2 to 5 would provide a robust governance
structure.

Conclusion

The mid-term review of the West End Masterplan fits in with the Council’'s new
corporate and strategic approach towards delivering economic regeneration placing
emphasis of the overarching role of the LDLSP priorities, policy fit and ‘deliverability’.
The review should be welcomed for providing a renewed focus but also for taking
stock of the physical achievements of the first three years. The review and outline
implementation plan will assist more effective targeting on the deliverable ‘high
impact’ projects that will build upon the positive changes seen in the West End and
which will contribute directly to the wider regeneration of Morecambe.

Members are requested to consider the preferred method of engagement and
scrutiny of West End projects. Members should consider the issues outlined in this
report and comes to a recommendation on any continuing formal support for the
WEP. The views of the West End Partnership will be available for the Cabinet
meeting.



Page 61

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The proposals for the start up service relate to the 2008/09 Corporate Plan through the
Council’'s medium term objectives which include: ‘Lead the regeneration of our District’ and
the Priority Outcome to ‘improve economic prosperity throughout the Lancaster district’.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Diversity — positive impact. The proposals delivered to date have been designed to provide
“access for all”. Future priority proposals will continue to contribute towards equality
objectives including women, black and minority ethnic groups and people with disabilities
leading to greater representation of these views and perspectives during design and
implementation.

Human rights — neutral impact

Community safety — neutral impact

Sustainability — positive impact. The review highlights those proposals which are ‘not viable’
from the perspective of being sustainable and deliverable.

Rural proofing — not applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Masterplan Priorities

The proposals under the preferred option (Option 2) have no direct financial implications for
the City Council. The requirements for developing the priority projects, as per the outline
implementation plan, can be achieved using in-house officer resources or ‘bought-in’ as
external funding of such resources allows. The delivery and financial arrangements for
individual project proposals will be considered under separate reporting procedures and will
be subject to independent appraisal before any resources are committed. The proposals
and projects identified in the Masterplan review will be delivered using external funding as no
specific Council capital resources are currently allocated, or expected to be, requested.

Masterplan Scrutiny/WEP financial support

The cost of room hire and refreshments for the 10 WEP meetings undertaken over 2008/09
financial year was approximately £1,300. If Members consider the West End Partnership is
the most suitable vehicle/method for local engagement and scrutiny of West End Masterplan
proposals moving forward it should make a budget allowance for these meetings. However,
it is also considered by officers that WEP business could be achieved with fewer meetings.

It is difficult to see how any of the other options could impact on the overall City Council
budget at present, but they are unlikely to incur additional costs over and above core officer
time and internal recharges. If additional costs are incurred they are unlikely to be as
substantive as supporting an independent body such as West End Partnership.

It should be noted that should Option 2 be preferred (i.e. the new Morecambe Parish Council
taking on West End local engagement) and the Parish agrees, this would be picked up in the
parish functions / funding review being undertaken by the City Council in this year, further to
the abolition of Special Expenses.




Page 62

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

No legal implications have been identified for the City Council in relation to the preferred
option.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Paul Rogers
Telephone: 01524 582334

Appendix 1 — Summary of E-mail: progers@Ilancaster.gov.uk

Recommendations and Implementation Plan | Ref: N/A

Appendix 2 — West End Masterplan Mid-

Term Review Report (Final Draft)

Appendix 3 — Analysis of WEP

responsibilities.




Page 63



Page 64

Appendix 3

Analysis of West End Partnership (WEP) Responsibilities

WEP Responsibilities (as noted in the current
constitution)

Present Status

Overseeing the implementation of the Neighbourhood
Management Programme.

The local Neighbourhood Management Programme has
ended.

Overseeing the implementation of the ERDF, Priority 2,
Action Plan.

The ERDF funding stream/programme has finished

Ensuring the Programme is kept under review and to roll it
forward on an annual basis.

The local Neighbourhood Management Programme has
ended.

Ensuring that effective consultation takes place with

businesses, community, and mainstream service providers.

Local Neighbourhood Management has ended but
Masterplan projects and proposals will continue to be
developed and implemented and require local consultation.

Approval of an annual Delivery Plan to be endorsed by the
Lead Body

The local Neighbourhood Management Programme has
ended and there are no further delivery plans required.

Approval of Project Appraisals and allocation of
Programme grants to projects with the endorsement of the
lead body.

The local Neighbourhood Management Programme has
finished.

Ensuring that the whole programme is kept under review,
and that any matters relevant to the successful
implementation of the scheme, including links to other
initiatives, are considered.

The Neighbourhood Management Programme has finished
although projects associated with ‘Neighbourhood
Management’ such as PCSOs continue as ‘mainstream’
initiatives.

Advising on the implementation of the West End
Masterplan

Masterplan projects and proposals will continue to be
developed and implemented and require local consultation.

Establishment of any additional Sub-Groups relevant to the
successful implementation of its programmes.

Neighbourhood Management has finished but Masterplan
projects and proposals will continue to be developed and
implemented, although the necessity for discrete sub-
groups necessary for scrutiny is probably reduced.

Development of a forward strategy, and exit arrangements
for the end of the Programme, ensuring sustainability of all
relevant Programme sponsored projects and initiatives.

Neighbourhood Management has been ‘mainstreamed’ and
the local funding allocation is no longer available.

Identifying who will take responsibility for continuing
commitments, where appropriate, after Programme
payments end.

Commitments for PCSQ'’s and other initiatives have been
‘mainstreamed’ or taken on by other funders

Budget responsibility delegated to Project Director,
Community Engagement or Project Director, Urban
Renewal as appropriate, who are responsible for reporting
financial monitoring to the Board as part of the overall
programme review.

Neither of the Project Director post exists following the end
of Neighbourhood Management and winding up of the local
team. The budget, staff and support are no longer available
and this includes the servicing of the WEP by Democratic
Services (minutes etc). Final Neighbourhood Management
Programme responsibilities and Winning Back Physical
project responsibilities have been taken up by Programme
Secretariat and Planning services respectively.

Receive recommendations from Sub Groups and where
appropriate instigate action.

The continuation of sub-groups depends on the necessity
for discrete sub-groups to provide scrutiny which is
probably reduced in the current project workload.

Lancashire County Council are the Accountable Body for
the Local Area Agreement and Lancaster City Council are
responsible for the delivery of the Programme and are
therefore the Lead Body for the purposes of this
constitution.

The LAA funding is no longer available to the WEP for
delivering a local programme and therefore the
responsibilities in this section of the constitution are no
longer relevant.




awweibolid
[ende) BuisnoH
J1oj 109lo.d renuajod
B Sk awayos
Yl|9de} peoy
J31SUILISBMN PPY

‘arendoidde

Sk s)salajul puj
1S9 wody Indul
Uum paltsAllsp
aJe sjjsusq

Teyl ainsua

01 dnoib Buusals

"PaNIWLLIOD aJe S82IN0Sal 910)9( PasSasse
9( 01 pasu SIY} JO sHduaq ay] “saniadoid peoy
Jaisuiunsapn 01 sjuawanoldwi yij@oe) Buipuny

Aq rejdwax3 ayy uwoddns 01 swwreibold eude)d
BuisnoH ayy 1o} sanunyuoddo sjuasald osfe g ealy

‘wbs og

Jad ageds auo S| suoeI0| B|geUIRISNS Ul S32110
Jo} prepuels Bupjred wnwixew ay “spesodoud ay)
10 apis ANjigisea} ay) Jo Led se pamalnal aq pjnod
pue uonedo| ssauisng o suwa) ul Juiod Buljss,
enuajod e osje s Bupjied red ‘JanamoH Iomiau
9[2A2 1011SIQ By} 0] UOKE[3I Ul PB1eIO] |[BM

sI pue uonendod ul Mjem abie| e sey ‘Lodsuen
a1gnd Aq panuas ||lam si Buipjing ay ‘malA jo uiod
Ajgeurelsns 10s(oid e wouy pue Adijod e wouy yloq

‘uoneunsap |elal
e se pu3 1Sa/\ ay)

JO SsauaAoeIIe 8y 0}
ppe Jo Bupjred reds mau
ou ‘aoeds uado mau
Aue 91810 J0U Sa0p
‘lesodoud yied [enuad
ay se yoans 109(oid
[euonewlojsues)

B 10U S| 1] "S8WO02In0
[eioyauaq Aue Janlap
10U saop ‘Aep ayl

4O pua 3yl 1e ‘yaiym
yoeoudde juswulanoh
[ed0] [euonipen

‘saiadoud
peoy Ja1SulLISaAN

Lo Aelpeoig d lapjoyayels >10M 0} |9AR.) SSaippe 0] eapl poob e ag pjnom /rey pjo si Bupuiyy jo 0] sjuswanoidwi m
(O pue dnoib | 1 ‘ssajoyiauoN ‘paJinbal si Juswssasse Lodsuel] adA1 syl “piq Buipuny yIor) Buipuny ©)
la) Aanijap 108loid | ® alaym pjoysalyl ayl mojaq si buipjing do-0D ayl Jabure| yonw e 01 ,uo Aq rejdwax3 ay) .M
(@) [emui ue ysijgeis3 ppe, ue 1snl jou ‘aeao| yoddns 0] swwelboid c
© ‘lesodoud Mred [enusd uey sujduag ajgeinseaw ay ul Buiny ajdoad [eude) BuisnoH o
au (AoAIns eanonas) pue 10311p [enualod aiow Auew SIaAIlBp ay) pue aqwedalon ay1 Joj seniunuoddo =1
JUSWIBA|OAUI J M3IA SJapun) wol4 *,8}l], pue ssauisng mau O pu3 1S9\ Y} sjuasald osfe g ealy «
umolig JIBY1 8IN28S | Ul 1SE| 10U 8409 [BI2ISWWO0I 3y} 10} sHjauaq Jofew | 1oy SaWOIIN0 0] paje|al

"1 /s18boy 'd 0] uayeLuspun aney [[Im Buipjing 1011@49p ® Jo Juswdojanapal ag 1snw Buipjing ‘Auoud ybiy e se

aq 0] YIoM 3y uauaq os|e ||Im Ssluapisal pud 1S8 do-0D 8y jo asn ay L 1jauaqg uanib e se paJapIsuod aq pjnoys

wiisul Buiprebal uay) ‘anndaalqo ue si bulures pue uswAojdwa paidadoe uey Jayiel 103l0.d siy1 premioy

1dO1 yum asrer [eJauab JI ‘Os[e pue 1duaq ||IM SassauIsng pug ‘'saoedsyiom | Aureuonippe jenusiod Bulg o1 Jusunsaul

1S9\ BuiBiawg “Alunwiwiod pu3 1S9\ [e20], ayl dn ueis ssauisng | se paunuapl Apiondxa Buunoas "pug

umolg 'sanuoud | 1snliou eaJe ainua ay) JO JuswWdo[aASP JILIOUOIS | PAAJOAUL I II Afeloadsa (re[dwax3 pue | 1s9Mn a1 ul Allunuoddo

"] / s1aboy ‘d awwreibold ay) 0] Bunnguiuog 1Xajuod BPIM-3qUIBIBION,, ‘saaurel) pue peoy Ja1suluisapn) | uonelsuabal J1LIOU02d

uonelauabay ® Ul U9as mou s| [esodoud ay yiomaweld | Jaurel) yioq Joj Bunjred sjuswanoidwi 1sabuois ayl

Jlwou02g uonelauabay d1WIOUOIT MaU Byl UIYNIAA | Jed eiixa asinbal pjnom 6 ealy 01 suyauaq | suasaidal pue sindino

S,Jo11sIg 8y} 1o} ‘Aiond ybiy e se palspisuod aq pjnhoys 103loud aordsyiom pabeuew [enuajod aas 01 aY| JIWOU0I3 3109 ‘)

sjesodoud 108(oid SIy1 psemioy Bulig 03 JuswisaAul bulinoas "pu3l Jo asn pasodoud pINoM 1nQ JUsWNd0p Aa1j0d Ju||9oX8 SI8y0

Jo Juswdojanap 1oj 1S9/ a1 ul Ailunuoddo uonelauabal 21LIOU0ID ay1 Se ‘uone|osl ul MBIABI WIBY-PIW 109l0id dO-0D ayy

umoig | piq Buipuny vamN 1sabuouis ay) sjuasaldal pue siNdINO JIWIOUOJS | PaJBPISUOI B( J0U UBD | Ul SUOHEPUSWLIOI) pue BaJse uonuaAIaul

"1 /s1aboy 'd JUa.IND Ul dpnjaul | 8109 ‘qy Aaijod usj@axa siayo 193loid dO-0D Byl Buipjing do-0D ay1 aslopus Ajn4 ybiy e si g ealy

a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




vYouv

yum pajuawajdwi
S)I0m snoinaid
ueyl |apouwl
wswysiginyal
Jadeayo asinn
"1ayJew ayl ojuo

‘swwrelbold eude)d BuisnoH

ay) ybnouyl palojdxa aq pjnoys renuapisal

0lUl Y2B( 2409 [e12JaWWO0) 3y} apisino suun doys
1uBpUNPal JO UOISISAUOD 3yl 1o} saniunuoddo

'8l0D [el2JIBWIWOD

ay) oo Alanoe

[reral Buissnooy pue
syuun doys juepunpal
Bunuanauod Ag suun
[re1al Jo Ajlddnsiano

ay1 uoddns 0] swie
awuweibold [ende)d
BuisnoH sy uonippe Ul

‘Auoud ybiy e
palapisuod ag p|noys
109(04d sIy1 premioy
Buug 01 JUsunsanul

awo9 saadoud Buunoas ‘paniwo @)
Irejas ajgens ag pinoys peoy S
usym pue se ‘PeniWo allysuonsq pue peoy 3
0 18loid siyy toddns | 20 PINOYS peoy aliysuoraq pue peoy uopuase|d uopuaIE 19911S o
O 0] sapunuoddo | 1981S Juswellied JO S198.1S [eII8WW0d-Uou 8y L JusWwelled Jo s19ais 2
I renuajod Ajuapl [e10Jawwo9-uou 2
o 01 swwrelbold | PeOd H8g|y JO uoIsnjoul 8yj 104 UONEISPISUOD puy 9y "199.1S allyseoueT] O
© [ended BuisnoH 199.1S allyseoue / playbuuds e ‘senuonud Jo / pidybunds uo ®
n peoy uaboy e 1S1] @Y1 Ul MOJBq 1IN0 18S 1uswieal) uoneoaoads
[s]8]gle}e} 19911S IS8\ ° 109l0ud peoy juabay paonpal e JaAlBp pue
Auno) 68 198loid ‘peoy wowae) e pue 810 [eldJaWwwWo) peoy uaq|y ‘18a1s
SIY1 JanIj8p 0} uo Buissnooy resodoud a|buls € se paleasy | a8yl usamiag aduaiayip 1S9/ ‘proy Juowalre|Dd
As|peolg 'd | sadainosal fenuajod aq pinoys Asy pue sjesodoid peoy juabay ay1 pauonsanb ‘s19ans 10edwi ybiy uo
Jay1o Anuap| pue 210) [elaJawwo) ayl yum dejano si alayl diysisunued ayl AJuo snooj 01 [elolBUaq
aQ Janamoy pjnom
umolig ‘sanuoLud "uoIsn[oul s,peoy uag|y Buiprebal 43/ ayl ‘peoy uaq|y 1| "199.11S DIYSHIOA
"] / s1aboy ‘d awweibold | pue uejdiaisel\ ayl usamiaq uoluido Ul aoualayip uey} 19a11S alIUYSHIOA | Sluswaroidwi peoy Uo |NJSS999INS Udd(
uonelauabay © S| alay) se 1ndul [ed0] yum paalbe pue paulap pue peoy uabay | 1uabay yum Abuons | Apealre sey yoeoudde
Jlwou02g 8Q 0] SpPaau 810D [e12JaWWO) 8y} 4O JUdIXa 8y L uo palelluaduod payuia] -108foud ay] Asuow 1o}
s,10u1s1Q 8y} Jo} 3I0M 935S laylel pjnom siyy uoddns o1 8|ge | anfea poob siayo pue
sjesodoud 108(oid "19811S aIIYSHIOA 10} pasnh yoeoudde oym diysiauued pu3j S| Buipuny 4OH Jey | 1y Aoijod jug||@oxa sey
JO uswdojanap 10y [NJSS822NS BY] SasI|iN pue Asuow Joy anfeA | 1S8pA 8yl Joy suonsanb | moy ainsun Janamoy | Teyl 10aloid apyoad ybiy
umoig | piq Buipuny vamMN | poob siayo pue 1y Adijod jusj@axa sey leyl 10sfoid sasiel Aoud — suonepuswuwodal | Auoud ybiy e si19sfoid
"1 /s1aboy 'd uang ul apnjau| | ayoid ybiy Auoud ybiy e si 810D [eloiswwod 8yl | 810D [eldlawwo) syl aslopu3 | ai0D [el2JBWWO) 3yl
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1921110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INY | 108l0id

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




.uI-Anq, 121s0}
pue uondnusip Jofew

‘sjuawanoidwi wieal
211gnd jo abexoed 810D
[eloJawwo) ayl Jo

N ploAe 0] si9|ielal | ued se palapisuod aq
O Y1iM uonesiunwwod p|noys peoy jusbay
1) pue uoie)Nsuod ‘uoneuawsa|dwi
o BAIDBYD 3INSUD ISNIA pue uonuaniaul
© "eale ay) Buinosdwil Joj Aond ybiy
as 01 JUBWNWWOI B urewsl p|noys pue
Bulobuo Jo Juswalels | s10aloid Aemares aaiy) o
a|qisin Alybiy ay} Jo wenodwi isow 2
pue Buouis e anib 3yl SI pue pu3 1Sa/M\ ®
pinom 108fouad sIy1 Jo | 8y) OluI 8IN0J Urew ayl =2
Aanjgp Aire3 pu3g S11] "199.11S SJIYSHIOA %
1S9\ 3U1 01 Aemareh uo |NJSS329NS Usa(q )
ay1 Ajlenuassa | Apealje sey yoeolidde e
pue aquedalol\ | Syl eale uonusaAISUI
Olul 8JNoJ urew e sl ybiy apgoud ybiy
‘A1anijap parelfisul alow ‘sanuoud Jo ‘alo) ' Ul SI pue Asuow oy
B 9|geua 0] 210D [elaJsawwo) a8yl Jo} sfesodoud | 1S1| 8yl Ul MOjaq N0 189S [elolawwo) 8yl Jo | anjeA poob suasaidal
anoqge JapIm ay) Jo 1ed se palapisuod aq pinoys peoy 108l0ud peoy usbay | wued [eibaiul ue se Jo sindino J1WouU02d
9as —10aloud 810D juabay ‘1anamoH eale uonuaaiaiul ybiy ayoid | pue a10D erosswwo) | 198foid suofe puels e 8109 SIBAIIBP 1)
[elolswwo) ayl ul ybiy e ui s1 pue Asuow 1o} anea poob sjuasaidal | syl usamiag adualayip | se Alaalap Jo ajqeded Aai1jod jua||99xa Slayo
umolig S188J1S 81 JO BUO | SINdINO 2IWOU0IB 8103 SIBAIBP 1} Ad1jod Jus||@oxa ay) pauonsanb ‘uonuaAlalul B|qIXa|) 109loud wiyeal ongnd
"1 /s18boy 'd S| peoy uabay sJayo 109loud weas ognd peoy uabay ayl diysiauned ayl Alyby e si sy peoy uabay ayl
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




“wyeal oqnd Aurenb
yby e Bunalsp

ul 8quWIedaIon
[e1lUSD Ul |NySS820NS
usaq sey yoeoudde
SIyl 1oedwl 1sa1ealb

0
o) 3y}l analyoe pjnom
() [910H pue|pIN pue
(@)] Alaneg ayl usamiaq
© apeuawold ay} =
al pue 1Sa/\\ peoy auue Tz
yiog o1 sjuswanoiduwi m >
‘wyeal olgnd Anrenb ybiy "Uodal 1e A|snoaueynuis oD
e BullaAI[ap Ul quedaI0 [AU3D UI [NJSS82INS MBIABI WIB)-PIN S$)00] Teyl yoeoidde ,mm m
uaaq sey yoeoudde siy] 10edwi 1sa1ealb ay1 u1 Auoud Jaybiy e anisuayaidwod o 2
3Y1 aA3IYJe pINoMm [910H pue|pIiN pue Alanegq ‘Aiond 0} SIy} sayens|d ,pu] alow v 1) 3 W
Buiuue|d pJemioH 3] UsaM1a( apeuawold ayl pue 1Sap) peoy B se wjeay 2lgnd 1S9\ 941 Jo ade4, | Aaijod poob Alan siayo %]
Aq juswdojanap aulre\ yioq 01 sjuswanoiduwi 1e Aisnosuenuwis | 1S9 peoy aulep ayl ay1 se alls ay1 Jo 109l04d wiyeal ognd
lapun $300] 1eY] yoroidde anisuayaidwod aiow v | SSe|d Jou op pleog ayl | ainreu ajyoid ybiy ayy SIYl ‘pug 1S9 ay}
Apuasald YamN 01 ‘s109foud Aoud ybiy | Jo age) sy Ajjenuassa
pig ‘siuswanoidwi Auoud "u9as jou Jayio ueyy 1y Aoijod Sl ey eaJe g|yoid
apeuawold ayi ul Jaybiy e 01 sIy) sa1eAd|a ,pud 1ISOAA BU1 JO @Je4, | SI Ydlym puelianuold Buons ssaj e yum | ybiy e ui si pue Asuow
1S9\ peOoY auuely | 8yl se aus ayl jo ainjeu ajoid ybiy 8yl ‘JenamoH | |ayr  yum Ul pan pue uejdisise ay) 1o} anjen poob siayo
J1o} sresodoud 's109foid Aioud ybiy Jayio ueyr 1y Aonjod | aq 01 spaau siyl weay ul Bale uonuaAIBlUI 1099(04d Juswanoiduwi
wyeal o1gnd Japim laxeam e sey 1ng ealte g|yoid ybiy e ur si108loud | ognd 1S9\ peoy wnipaw e wyeal ongnd
uosme 'q apnjoul 01 Wiy wswanoidwi wieal agnd 1SN peoy auuepy | auue o1 piebal yup | pareubisap ybnoylw 1S9/\\ peOoy auuep
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud
ue|d CO_HmwcmEm_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCQQQ,Q




‘Aoud ybiH e

aq i1snw ajbuew) 1991
pjog ayl ‘pansind aq
1snw Anunuoddo syt
‘Aouaby senmunwwo)
pue sawoH ayl Aq
193lo.d Jofew 1xau ay)
Se palapIsuod usaaq
aAey pjnom pasodeixn(
BaJe 3y} pue 199.1S
plog eyl spuelsiapun
diysiauned

8yl ‘|nyssadons

uaaq pue ‘(paredionue
se) g8ooz Ainc

ul peaye auob 109loid
suspJes) yuomsieyd
3y} pey ‘paspul
‘Auoud ybiy e uanib

*A1IN23as wia)

-Buo| pue aoueinsul
Jo asuadxa ay)

/ey 01 [10UN0d Byl
Joj pue Aidwa puels
0] way} 4o} Ajuo awn
wasald ay 1e alow
aseyoind o} asieniad
swaas 1l sanJado.d
panoidwi Apealpe

Jo aseyaind uodn
alewl|d J1WouU02d

10 10940 annebau ay)

‘swwelboid

[eude) BuisnoH

ays Joj Aiuoud e ospe

st siy1 “Auoud yby

B urewsal pjnoys siyl
pue 1981 p|og JO apIs

suapJes pu3 1S9\ pue 18a11S pjog

o palaguwinu usAa ay} 10}
(O S| puiyaq eale ay) uanlb pue aoed ul awayas uoneiauabal
la) pue (apis uand) 18ans |  ABarens siyl INOYUM papunj & aInoas 0]
o ‘uoneao|e pjog reyi Juenodwi aouenodwi unoweJed
© preog BuisnoH S11| "paAalyoe usaq ‘Aiond JO S11] "19941S plog
au [euolfay .o} Apeale sey reym Jo ybiy e si premioy | uo paiinboe saniadoid
eaJe Auoud ybiy ‘swwelBold | 1X8w09 |[eldAo ay) ul je 103l0.d siy) el woJy pasesjal aq 0}
e s119a11s pjog rende) BuisnoH ayi 10} Auoud ybiy e ag pinoys | pax0o| aq 1snw uondas 01 Buipuny ajgeuns paau spuny Jejdwax3
siy] ‘aoueniodwi Junowrered jo si saiuadoud wnipaw ayl u11@ans |  Amuapi pue Abarens ‘sanadoid uonipuod
"19941S p|og Jo apIs 9say} 10} uejdialse|N 8yl JO Swie ayl pJemioy) pjog jo buioeid sy A1anjap e dojansp 1SIOM S,pu3 1S9\ Y}
As|peolg "d palaguinu uand axe) 01 ABarens paiiajaid e Jo Juswdojansp ayl pue auIWIdlep | SSalppe 0] UONUSAIBIUI
ay1 Joj suondo ‘suapueb pu3 0] S92Jnosal salinbal 19a11S
fenuajod Ayuap| ‘suonisinboe 1S9\ pue saouajap JO uoneoo|e ayl pjog Jo Japurewsal
3Y1 MOJysed 01 pajaAdal aq 01 spaau Jeyl Buipuny ©as 9y} uo auop "paJaniep aq 3yl ‘uonnjos
As|peoig 'd "19241S plog Jeidwax3 yum 19a.41S pjog Jo apis palaquinu MIom ay] Juswa|dwod | 01 ale sjuswanoiduw [ensed e are sawayos
JO apIs pajaquuinu uana uo saiuadoid inoy paiinboe aney D7 01 Aoud Jaybiy e se Aressagau 19911S pjog Jo
UdA3 ayl Yum passe|o aq (buisnoy) | a8yl moy Joj [esodold | apis paiaquinu ppo ayl
[eap o1 ABarens e ‘Aioud | 1S9\ peoy auue pue Jeajo ou sI alayl | pue peoy ybnoiogen
dojanap Jejdwax3 ybiy e s1 1 pu3g isap ayr ul Buisnoy Alenb aor.lIa] aUApPIBIUAM JBABMOH "183.11S SIY) ‘)3 Ao1j0d poob
Ao|peoig ay) Joj ABarens | 1salood ayl suQIyxe 1881S pl|og JO apIs paiagquinu ¥oeq (slaqwinu | ul uoneualsuod ybiy | siayo pue ealse 193(oid
‘d / umolg Auadoid ay1 | uana ay) asnedaq 1) Aaijod poob siayjo rey) eare ppo) 19a.1S pjog ul surewal Buisnoy T aseyd uonuaiaul
"1 /staboy 'd | yum uonounfuod uj 100l0id T aseyd uonuaaiaul ybiy e s119a1S pjog | eyl yse osje pjnom apn Aurenb Jood Aiap ybiy e si 7T ealy
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy

1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INY | 108l0id

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




awwelibolid
[ende) BuisnoH

‘sanJadoud

peoy Ja1SulLISa N

01 sjuswanoidwi
Wiy Buipuny

Aq s1sixa rejdwax3 ayl
1oddns 0] swwelbolid
[ende) BuisnoH

o ay1 Joj Ajlunuoddo
N~ Joy 109lo.d enuajod uy ‘uolelauabal s,pu]
I B Se awayos 1S9\ 3yl 01 asuenodwl
(@) Hl|9de} peoy ubiy Jo aq 01 s1ddYo W
© J3ISUILISaN PPV Aq 118} s1193loud siyy S
al "PANILILIOD BJe S82IN0SaI 810J8Q Passasse 01 WuBwWwWwWo9 Buons 5
8Q 0] paau sIy1 Jo siyauaq ay | ‘saiiadold peoy panunuod vy ‘ajyoid «Q
Jaisuiunsapn 01 sjuawanoldwi yij@oe) Buipuny ainua) ay) aouejeqal m
Aq Jejdwax3 ay) yoddns 0] awweibolid [eude) 01 Buidjay ajiym m
‘pu3 1sepn | BuisnoH ays Joy semunuoddo sjuasald osfe g ealy sabueyd uondaalad S
pue rejdwax3 pue eaisAyd )
As|peolg ‘d loj ABarens "S9210J 19x/ew 01 anp aAnisod areniul
Auadolid dojana@ | wual winipaw ay ul sanssi Aljiqelaalop weaiyiubis 'S9210J 19xJeW 0] [IIM 1Y) pu3 1S9\
9WO0919A0 0] spaau 199(oid a1B6arens Aioud ybiH anp wJal wnipaw ay) ay1 Jo uoneiauabal
poomuaalo) ‘ssalboud Ul sanssi AlljiqeJanliap ay) Joj 199(oid
*/umolg 01 108foud ‘9|iy01d ainua) syl adsueeqal weoylubis uejdiarsey diysbelq
"1/ sieboy ‘d a|qeus 0] Aouaby 0] Buidjay ajiym sabueyds uondaaiad pue yum ng sanuadoud e sI Jejdwax3 ayl W
salunwwo) [eaisAyd aanisod areiul |[im eyl pu3 1Sapn auyl Jo a|qeurelsns Aljenb Ao110d poob Aiaa sey
pue sawoH wolj uonelsuabal ay) 1oy 108loid uejdisisey diysbelq yby apinoid 03 pue 109foud T aseyd
abexoed Buipuny e sl rejdwax3 ayl 1y Aoijod poob Alan yum renualod yum 198foid uonuaniaul ybiy sl
SnueNON ‘H a|gelns ainodas | 108loid T aseyd uonuaniaiul ybiy si sejdwax3 ayl | pani@dal uswwod oN | dibarens Awsoud ybiH | (g ealy) rejdwax3 aylL
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




— ‘aguedaloN [enua) 0}
N als ay1 ybnouy a1nol
la) BuijoAo pue uelnsapad
(@) BAIDBYS ue Bulndas
© pue padojanap )
as S| BUS puejianuol4 ay) )
uaym uodn juapuadap o
Aljoym si ssaaons o
sy Ayoud ybiy S
B sulewsal awayos P
ay} SlIuM “Aujiqeswiad o
pasealoul Jo syauaq o
‘'ssaooud ay1 Jo yonw Buuaniap m
[013UO0D JUd -uiod SIY) Te paindas j0ou JI 8ininy Ul a|qe|iene 3[Iym awayos 5
wdojanap/buiuued aQ 01 A|xIjun S| pue| 8y} S aquiedalo|y [enusd 8} J0 1S09 8y} 8dnpal Q
Japun siamod 0] pu3 1S9\ ay1 Mull 01 Allunuoddo Ajuo ayl aq (puepanuol4 ‘mojaq | 01 ajqissod aqg Janamoy )
[ebaj ybnoayy | 01 A1l SI SIYL ‘8uS puelisiuold jo uswdoaasp ‘uaas J0u TT 109l04d osfe 99S) Aew 1] “Asuow )
Apoeswsad aininy 0] paxul Ajqeaunxaul si1o8fold SIyL | SI yoym puelssnuoid 1o} anjeA ajqeuoseal o
Jarealb apinoid ayl yum ur pan aq "10dal mainal wia) siayo pue 1y Aoijod
0] puejianuol- Joj ‘ABuow 10} anjeA ajqeuoseal | 01 Spaau SIYyl weay -PIN Ul pale|naie poob sey ey 10afoid
paau 8y} uo aduels sJajo pue 1y Aoljod poob sey reyr 108foud | JIgnd  1SSp peoy suonepuswuwodal | Aoud ybiy e si19a1S
IleH "a JUB.IND UreuIe|\ Aoud ybiy e si19ans Buia peoy uopuale|) | auuey 01 plebal Yl aslopus A|In4 | Buin] peoy uopuaieD
a|qisuodsay ¥oeqpasd | uollepuswuwooay uollepuswuwooay
1833110 suolloy uolepuswwooday [euld uolrelnsuo)d d3am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud
ue|d COE@E@EO_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ,Q




dVSY sawoy

Ajiwrey ojul papelbdn
pue 1ybnog aq pjnoys
seladoud asayy
‘splojpue| areaud pue
yshug yuon Jo pue
snoepy yum Bupjiom
Ag "9g pue 9z ‘vz ‘9T
‘slaquinu aJe asay |
"19241S 9y} Jo 1sal

U1 ynm aull ul sswoy
Ajlwrey Joj pajjapowal
pue paiinboe jou aJe
saladoud Inoj 1o saiy)
JI duopun aq Aew
1seJ peoy uopuale|d
uo auop YIoM

‘saiadoud

peoy JaIsulLISap

0] sjuswanoidwi
W20y Buipuny

Aq rejdwax3 ay)
1oddns 0] swwelbolid
[eude) BuisnoH

ay1 Joj saniunuoddo
os|e ale alay L

‘Airenb

poob ayi e ‘ejdwexa palinbai ay) surelurew DDU
lo4 "Aoud ybiy 1N 1S02 1un ay) P
' paau yoiym Alobares saonpal ey palinbal ® 3
wnipaw ay) ul syoaloud sI saniadoid asay) w w
aWos ale alayl J0J yoeoudde mau 2 2
~ B pue ainjeu siy Jo =0
N ‘100l0.d SHIOM Jayuny syuanaid ad
I} awuwreibold auofe puels e se saladoud Buljspow ~m
o [eude) BuisnoH pinom Jana Buipjing do -9J J0 1502 1uUN &
© Joy 108lo.d enuajod -0D padwenal e uey) ybiy syl swwelboid -
al B Se awayos pu3 1sa/\ ay1 ui sqol Bunsixa ay) 01
1|90e)} peoy "PANILILIOD BJe S92IN0SaI 810J8Q passasse alow Bunelauab pue UBWIWWOI e puoAag
J3ISUILISOAN PPV 8(Q 01 paau SIy1 Jo siyauaq ay | ‘saiadoid peoy sdn suels ssauisng 1} Ao1jod poob Aian
Jaisuiwisapn 01 suswanoidwi yi@oey Buipuny Mau abeinoous slayjo pue swweiboid
Aq Jejdwax3 ay) woddns 0] sawweibolid [eude)d | pue xiw [e1oos Bunsixa Buljjopowal
‘swwrelbold | BuisnoH ayi 1o} saniunuioddo sjuasaud osje € ealy 3yl ‘uawWuolIAUS ay1 a19|dwod
As|peolg ‘d [euded [e20] ay1 anoidwi 0] swie 193loud
BuisnoH ayy "BaJe sIy) 1o} ue|dislSe| ayl Jo swire ay) aAalyde [IIM SIY) ‘SND0§ DIAID ‘awwelboid Buisnoy Aay siyL
ybnouyl 1se3 peoy 01 palinbai si seiiadold asayy 4o} yoeoidde | e Buipinold pue aoeds [eude) BuisnoH ‘abueyd annisod pue
uopuale|d 10} M3U ® pue ainjeu SIyl Jo SyIom Jayuny sjuanald uado mau Buneaid ;91 UBWIAIL]S | JUBWISAAUI [enuURISgNS
swire s,ue|dialsey soluadoud Buljepow-al Jo 1509 1un ybiy ayl Aq pue 198.S p|og Jo Aoeinooe woJy panyauaq
ay} Jo uona|dwod ‘suapies yuomsreyd 10 3INsSun JaA8MOH sey 1ey) eaJe 109l0ud
[njssadans "‘abueyd annisod pue Juswisanul | ‘1se3 peoy uopuale|d T 9seyd e pue ease
ay1 Buinaiyoe [enuelsgns wodj panyauag sey jey) ease ‘peoy pu3l 1SoM "Jodal wia-piIn uonuaniaul Aord
JO sAem anneulsle 109l0ud T aseyd e pue eale uonuaiaul Auoud 1] ‘puU3 1S8AA BYI UI | JO SuOBpUBWIWOI yby e si (g ealy)
Ao|peoig ‘d 10 dN[eA Ssassy wnipaw e s| (g ealy) 1se3 peoy uopuase|) | sease Buiwiojsues Ag aslopu3 | 1se3 peoy uopuaie|d
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INY | 108l0id

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




‘snyejs ‘Aurenb

1S3IMOT e 01 panow | palinbal ay) surejurew

aq pjnoys 108loid 1ng 1S09 Jiun ay)

Sy} Jo uonajdwod saonpal ey palinbal

alnuiw pue Aioud ybiy e si saiuadoud asay)

1Se| 3y} Je 1IN0 paydeq Jabuoj ou s syl rey) 1o} yoeoudde mau

aAey am 1ey) abessawl 1sabbBns pjnom apn B pue ainieu syl Jo

0] 9yl 1IN0 puss pue eaJe SyJom Jayuny sjuanaud

N ay1 Jo aoueteadde ayy "2WIBYIS JIapIm sanadoud Buljepow

la) [1ods |jim ‘Ino paued ay) Jo Juapuadapul -1 J0 100 un

(@) NI0M pey aAaey yaiym saiadoud ybiy ay1 sawwelboid
© 1sal ay} uo wbiq e J1ivy) panoidwi Bunsixa ay1 0} =
al aq |m Buiurewsas sauo Buiney spiojpue| | 1uswWWOD € puokag o a
ayl ‘Auoud ybiH e o1 aleAud € yim ‘) Ao1jod poob Aian w m._,
pasu saysiuly JOLISIX ‘syyeuaq [euonippe | siayo pue awwelboid 23
ay) — pale|dwod paJanijap aney Buljjopowsal = 3
9Q 01 Spasau peoy pu3l alep 0] palaniap ay a19|dwoo a o
1S9\ UO MIOAA “MJoM suswanoidwi | 03 swie 108foid Buisnoy 8

SsIys Jo |re a19|dwod A9y siyl ‘pasinboe

‘swwrelbold 0] pajjopowsal ‘diysiaumo | aq 03194 are saiuadoid

[ende) BuisnoH “eale sIy} 1o} uejdislsel\ ayl Jo swie ayl analyoe 8q 0} spaau Auadoud areAud ui ns 106.e1 JO Jaquinu

ay1 ybnouyy 0] pasinbai si sanuadoid asayi 1oy yoroidde alow auo Auo SI SIy) pue panoiduwil ® 1ng abueyd aanisod

peoy pu3 1Sap\ 10} M3U B pue alnjeu SIYyl Jo sylom Jayuny sjuanaid | 1eyl uaaib Aioud mon aQ 0} surewsal pue JuawisaAul

swire s,ue|dialsey soluadoud Buljepow-al Jo 1509 1un ybiy ayl 01 Auoud ybBiH wouy auo Ajuo ‘paynuapl [enueisgns wodj

ay1 Jo uona|dwod 108014 BuisnoH peoy | Ajreuibuo asam yoiym panuauaq sey 1eyl

[NJSS820NS ‘abueyd aanisod pu3 1Sa/\ 8yl apelb soluadoud 18b.e) eaJe 109oid T aseyd

ay1 Buinaiyoe pue JUBWISSAUI [eIIUBISONS WOJ) panyauaq sey | -al 0] uoisioap s,[aued 3yl JO "919|dwod | e pue Bale UONRUBAIBIUI

JO sAem anneusale | eyl eale 108loid T aseyd e pue eaJse uoiuanialul [fesresdde ay; yum Ajrenuelsgns Aoud ybiy e si (g

As|peolg 'd JO @n[eA ssassy Auioud wnipaw e si (g ealy) peoy pu3l 1S9 soalbesip pieog ayl si10aloid siyl | ealy) peoy pu3 1So9M

a|qisuodsay ¥oeqpasd | uollepuswuwooay uollepuswuwooay
1833110 suolloy uolepuswwooday [euld uolrelnsuo)d d3am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d CO_Hchme_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ<




'810D [e12J8WWO0)D
10 wawdojanap
1aye palinbal

(IS SI 1 Jsyisym
ssasse pake|ap sl
108(04d 1Y) 15866NS

‘'sabejuoly

doys ays Jo Aienb
ay) uodn 10edwi
annisod e Buiney

Sl auofe Siyl ‘suun
[re1al a|qeureisns

J0 Jagqwinu

'2109 [e10JoWWIOD
ay1 1noybnoiyy
s)yauaq ayl peaids

0] sjuawanoidwi
wyeal olgnd Jayio
pue seale uonuaAIBlUI
ybiy Jay1o uo snooy
pue wJal uoys ayl ul
SUOISIO8P UBWISAAUI
Jajap 01 uapnid
Swaas 1l 9|ge|reAe
$92IN0Sal pajwi|
UIM “SHIom wieal

<
o
=~
wn
=
< ay1 pue Ajiadsoud Jo olignd pajuswidw | _ = ®
N~ Bul@ay ayl pasealoul Apealfe ay) %.m %
I aney 19a.11S aIIYSHIOA jo 1oedwi anpsod ayy | .8 3 @
o ul wieal algnd ayy 01 anp Ajsbue| st siyl | = S~
© 0] sjuswanoidwi 8yl | ‘ssausAndaye spefoid | S 3 _.u_._
al ayrsaonpassiyy | @ 8 <
‘a|geiswn | pue 109loid sjuondoys -3
ay1 ul age|d su pasodoid ay1 01 >
Jayrel 1ng asuenodwi apel JUBWISaAUI ay) w
aAlre|al sy Bunospyal | 01 sindino angune pue =]
10U — MO O} WNIP3IA ainded 01 YnauyIp si L

‘paJinbail s wouy abueyd pjnoys | U ‘JanamoH -sabriuol)

SI 1l Jaylaym ssasse pue 193foid 810D [eloiaWIWO)D snjels alojalayl awos panoidwi sey

JO uoireluBWa|dwi Ja)je PalsIAaI aq p|noys &AWaYos — 1Sl papjoel SIY} pue sploa doys

199(0.d syjuswanoidwi Juosgdoys pasodolid ayl SIY} 10} palojdxa 8q p|noys sanuoud | Bulonpal ul |NJsSSaaoNns

"108loud 810D aq Buipuny |HL pnod | Jayio reys 38} A|buons udaQ aney syJom

[erlswwo) ayl ‘panoidwi sem1iIng alep | wjeal dlgnd ‘ny Aaijod

j0 uoireluawa|duwi Bulag sabejuoly swos 01 pa| sey SIyl pue SpIoA ‘Apoaliod aininj e 1e pansinal | poob siayo reys 108foud

a1 Jaye |nun doys Buionpal ul |nJSSa22Ns usa(q aABY SYIOM 19s sI Aioud ayl ag 01109loud e se T aseyd uonuaiaul

umolg anfea s,o3loid Jo wyleal a1gnd ‘14 Aaijod poob siayo reyy 108foid | s|9sy pue siyy suoddns ue|d ay1 ul surewsal ybiyesi(g

"1 /s18boy 'd | uawssasse JsjaQ T aseyd uonuanialul ybiy e s 19a11S aIIYSHIOA preog 43M 9yl 1sabbns Ajbuons | ealy) 19a1S aIYSHIOA

a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleluawsa|dw| pue uoljepuaWILIoday - T

Xipuaddy




Page 75

IreH 'd

'ssa204d |011u0D
juswdojanap
ybnoiyl anug

[enua) o1 ybnoiyl
Aljgeawuad
pano.iduwil

e ESIIETIET]

pappe ayi sapiroid
Tey) wawdojanap
Airenb ybiy e 1oy
paau 8y} uo aduels

JUBLIND UreuIe|\

‘Aligqeawsad panoidwil

J0 1j8uaq pappe ay1 sapinold 1ey) Juswdoaasp
asn paxiw Ajrenb ybiy a|genns e premio}

Buliq 01 Aoud e urewal pjnoys pue 1y Aoijod
poob siayo aus Juswdojanap areaud siyy 108loid
T 8seyd pue Aloud ybiy e si pue [810H pue|piiA
pauado-al Ajuadal ay) 0] 8S0[J Juo4Jeas ayi uo
paredo| sI pue pug 1S9\ 8y} ul Juswdojanapal Jo}
alIs 1sabue| ayl sjuasaidal (T ealy) puelanuol4

"u99s Jou

SI yolym puejianuoid
|yl yum ui pasn

9(Q 01 spaau SIYl wjeay
allgnd 1ss/\\ peoy
auLe 01 prebal yup

paslopua Ajjoym ale
suonepusWIWoIaY

"108loud

SIy1 Jo ued Aay

© SWioj 192415 BuIAI
peoy uopuaie|d

ENle
enua)d o1 ybnoiyy
Augeawsad panoidwil
j0 s)jsusq pappe ayl
sapinoid 1ey) awayos
Aurenb ybiy 1oy ssaid
0] anunuUod piNoys
[0uo) usawdojanag
‘Aljigqeawuad

panoidwi jo 1gauaq
pappe ayi sapiroid
Tey) wawdojanap

asn paxiw

Alrenb ybiy sjgeins e
premio} Buug o1 Asond
B Urewsal p|noys pue
1} Ao1jod poob siajo
alls juswdojanap
areaud siy1 199foud

T aseyd pue Aoud
uybiy e si pue |910H
puepin pauado-al
Apuadal sy 01 9S00
1U04JeaS By} U0 Paedo|
S| pue puz 1Se\ 8y} ul
wawdojanapal 10} alIs
1sabe| ay) sjuasaidal
(T ealy) puejanuol4

pue|lanuol4

a|qisuodsay
1321140

suonoy

uolepUaWWO023Y [euld

NoeqpasS
uoIeINSUOD dAM

uollepuswwoday
[esreiddy

uollepUBWWO0I9Y
M3INSY

109lo0l1d

ue|d uoleluawsa|dw| pue uoljepuaWILIoday - T

Xipuaddy




age 76

‘arewl|d
JUaLIN2 3y} Ul MOJ SI
Aianjsp Jjo Anpgissod

QTE
wnipaw ay} Joj Aond

winipaw e se paliajap T
ay sdiysisumo aq Ajuo alojalay) 2
pue| paxiw pue s}sod pinoys Aemales o
ybiy anp 1anamoH SIY1 01 suswanoidw| )
‘seaJe panoidui ‘sjurensuod [eaisAyd 3
1uaoelpe juswajdwod Aq pasned 10edwi %
pue yoddns pjnom MO| pue 1509 ybiy 2
‘wal 1| “eale uonuaniaul payiuapl sey YIom o
wnipaw ay) Joy Aluold wnipaw e se patiaep aq ybiy ‘spyoud ybiy |  Aujqisesy JonsmoH 14 o}
alojalayl pinoys 108loid siyl surensuod [eaisAyd e uloedw a|qisia | Aaijod poob siayo eyl ®
Aq pasned 19edwi mo| pue 1509 ybiy Ajsweu aAlIsod a|qelapIsuod 108(04d uonuanialUI m
‘sanss| Aljlgelanijsp paunuspl sey 3iom Aljigises Buuaniap ybiy Auoud <
1} Aa1jod poob siayo eyl 1098foid uonuanisiul ur s1 yibuans ybiy e s1 Akemaleo
uonoe oN ybiy Aioud ybiy e s1 Aemares) peoy weysAaH JIUBWIWOD ON s, oaloud syl peoy weysAsH
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INY | 108l0id
ue|d COE.SC@EO_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ<




‘apeusauwold

3y} uo Buip|ing

101|943p-1WS Siyy 0}

uonnjosal Alojoejsies

' Bulureigqo 0} passnooy

8Q 0] anunuUo9

0] Paau S82In0sal

pue uonuaAIalul asn

annonpoud ojul yoeq

yainyp Anuiiy Buug

pue oLige} 2L0ISIYy

N ay1 psenbajes o
N~ "yoinyo Anuuiy loy =
1) uonnjos wJaibuol "wia) Buo| 0y wnipaw Y
(@) © pul} 0] JBUMO ay1 01 pallajap ~3>
© yum arenobaN aQ alojalay) pjnoys 3 °®
as 103loud Buisnoy syl m “o_u
"yanyd Auuny "‘abueyd renueisgns a =4
Jo 9oueeadde pue pIaIA [im yey) seale ~ <
Anoas ainsua "apeuawold ayl uo Buipjing 1011248p uonuaniaul Aoud @
0] JUBWIdJI0UD -lWwas sIy} 01 uonnjosal Alojaeysies e Buiurelqo ybiy uo snaoj 01 Janaq -

asn 0] anunuod 01 PSSNJ0} 8q 0] BNUIIUOD 0} PABU SBIIN0SAI ag pjnom 11 buisnoy

asn aAnonpold | pue uonuaAIaul asn aAnoNpoad ojul yoeq yainyd ‘'suapJeb pug 1o} 3|ge|reAe sa2Inosal

olul yorq Aluu) Buug pue ougey ouoisly ay) prenbajes o] 1S9\ pue saouajap palwi| Yyim pue

11 Buuq 01 punoy BaS 9] Uo auop Asuow loj anjen Jood

S1 uonN|os B 9|IUM | “Wwid) Buo| 0} WNIpaw ay) 01 Paayap aq alojaiayl | MI0M ay) Juswa|dwod | "a)s pueanuold ay) | sjuasaidal 1S9 peoy

pinoys 19afoid Buisnoy syl -abueyd jenueisgns 01 Aoud Jaybiy e se 10 wawdojanap pue aulrel\ uo saiadoud

Jsupies ‘s ‘palaniap pdIA |Im eyl sealte uonuaaiaiul Aoud ybiy passe|o aq (buisnoy) SyJom wyeal algnd Buiysiginyal ybnoyyy

uaag aney s108foud | uO pasnIo} 01 JaNaq ag PINOM d|ge|ieAR S82IN0Sal | 1S9\ Peoy aule pue ainn} Aq panoidwi 14 Ao1j0d poob siayo

Buisnoy Aioud panwi ayl ‘Asuow 10} anfea Jood sjuasaldal aoela] auhApiswuhApn | Apealb aq [im 1osloud 1ey) Auoud wnipaw

ybiy asuo suondo 1S9/\\ peoy auue uo sanadouid Bulysiginiey Yoeg (siequinu 10 AlljIqeIaAlap | e pue eate UonuUaAISIUI

MBIABI pue WIa) "1} Ao1jod poob siayo eyl Aioud wnipaw e pue ppo) 198.11S pjog — pasiopus ate wnipaw e si (2 ealy)

Ao|peoig ‘d winipaw 01 Jaya@ | eaJe uonUBAIBIUI WNIPBW B SI 1SS\ Peoy aule| | Teyl )Se 0S[e pjnom ap SuUOITEPUBWILIOIDY 1S9\ prOoY BuLe

a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d CO_HchmEm_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ,Q




Page 78

‘Aoud

yby e se pansind

8Q p|Noys 1S02 0Uu 10
9| e uawdojanapal
premuo) Bulg

0] suondo ‘1aAaMoH
uawnsanul o) Aond

wnipaw e urewsal >
pINOYS pue sawo9Ino S
J1LIOUODD 3109 SIBY0 S
sdoys»iom pjo ayy w.
"uone|osl ul 10 Juswdojanapal ay) )
premioy} ind aq pjnoys ybnouy: sanunuoddo m
‘palojdxa aoedsylom/sawayds wswAodwa )
aQ p|noys 1sa/\ asn paxiw apinoid anren Jaybiy spinoid 3
peoy a[epuony 0] suun doysx.iom 0] [enuaod ayL n
yoegq Joj jesodoud 10 uswdojanapal pY)
aordsylom/asn o} sjesodolid ‘Aioud moj m
paxiw e dojanap 0] ‘resodo.ud suapJieb jo uone|osi ul premioy ind © aJojaiay) pue 10edwl e
fenuajod ay) wia) | aqg pjnoys adedsyIom/sawayds asn paxiw apiaoid MO| SI @oeds uapleb
siaboy 'd wnipaw ayi u| | 01 syun doysyiom jo Juswdolaaspal Jo} sjesodold Jeal jo Juswanoidwi
ayL w Adnjod
‘pansind aq jou pjnoys pue Aoud ‘pansind Jood sIayjo pue eale
MO| & 3lojaiay) pue 19edwi mo| si adeds uapieb 8g 10U pJnoys aseds uonuaAIBuUl WNipaw
Jeal Jo wawanoidwi ay ] 1y Aoijod Jood siayo pue uap.Jeb [euonippe e sl (£T ealy) peoy
uonoe ON | eale uonuUaAIBIUI WINIPaW e S| Sauteq / S[epUOAY UBWWOI ON aleald 0] sfesodoid sauleqg / 9[epuoAy
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleluawsa|dw| pue uoljepuaWILIoday - T

Xipuaddy




age 79

‘pPaNw SI
siy1 @2auanyui o3 Aljige
ay1 Ing ‘Aioud ybiy e

surewsal ays uenodwi M
siy Jo uona|dwod @
‘uona|dwod ay] ‘wJdl Loys =
[njssa2ans 3y Ul ysiuy o1 A@xiun c
premuo) Bulq Swaas Mmou 1l pue 3,
0] suondo [enualod pala|dwod usaq sey w
aAlreulIsye "pajwi| si siyx duanyul o} Aijice ayp als ay} jrey Ajuo pue M.
Japisuo)d ng ‘Awiond ybiy e surewal ays uenodwi sy Jo SanNaIYIp [eroueul 1Yy 3
As|peoig ‘d uona|dwod ay] ‘wJidl Loys ayl ul ysiul ol Al@xiun ‘panwi) si 108foud sey Jadojanap areAud a
‘'siomod Buiuueld Swaas Mou 1l pue pala|dwod usaq sey ais ayl ayl aosuanpul 01 Aljige ayL 1 Aoljod poobh 2
Aioinrers ybnoayy | jrey Ajuo pue sainoiyip feioueuly 1y sey ladojansp | -ueidiaisely ayl ul s | syl Janamoy sanuoud | siayo eyl ease Aioud o
juswdojanap ayi jJo areaud ay | 'y Aaijod poob siayo reys 108loid s1joda@ suoneulwn|| dS1 pue 419yl ybiy uonuaniaul ybiy
uona|dwod ay) 1o} T aseyd spue ealte Aioud ybiy uonuaniaiul ayr Aym uonsanb yum 14 poob siayo e sl (gTealy) 10daq
leH 'a | ssaid 01 anunuo)d yby e s1i1oda@ suoneulwn||| / sng ayL preog 43M 9yl wswdojanap 8yl | suoieulwn||| / sng ayl
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INY | 108l0id
ue|d CO_HmwcmEm_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCQQQ,Q




‘sjuelneisal
pue sajed [ed0|
JO 3sn pue sadeds
paq paj|y Jo Jaquinu ‘lesodoud
ay) 01 buippe urebe ue|diaisew a|qela
90UO0 ‘slaguinu JOJISIA e se pansind aq Jabuoj
[lIIM 00} 0S ‘@sealoul Ou p|noys eaJe siyl
SJUBAS pUB S[eAlNSd) ‘Seale uonuaAlaul
JO Jaquinu ay) ybiy uo passnooy
pue sanoidwi xied ay) 9Q p|NoYs $82In0sal
o Se ‘1an0alo|\ "sadeds pue 82inos areudoidde
o] pag [s10y ||} 01 Isow 8y} aq o3 Aj@iun
I} sajenba siy] ‘pue|bu3 sI Buipuny swweliboid o
(@)] JO YUON ay1 jo sued olwouod3 "aoeds ©
© [2I9A8S WO} SIONSIA ‘Auawie Bunsixa | pasinn-1apun Apuanng <
n yum ‘sreanssy Buimoq ay1 Jo Aurenb ayy 3y} sasiwixew =
om1 8y ui uonedioned anoidwi 03 Juenodwi 1eyy uoisinoud T
Jayealb abeinooua S pu3 1S9\ ainsia| Auenb W
(M pue ‘(ed ay) ul adeds uado | ybiy ybnoiyl pu3 1sepn
Juno AddeH ay| 211gnd o Junowe ay} ay) ul adeds uado
1snl) uonreunsap Jousin | anoidwi 01 Aljigissod 21gnd pue areaud
e se anosdwl [[Im e Jabuoj ou sI alay) yioq Jo uoisinoid
‘sabe |[e Jo ajdoad .o} 'Yl UaAID) “Alanilep 10 X9e| 8yl 18s)j0
Aljoe) e se yred ay) Joj 9|qisuodsal | djay ued 11 ue|disisen
Buinoidwi Aq ‘sindino se palnuapl Aes|o a3yl wouy Mied [eauad
Nled juabay ‘Aluawre Bunsixa ay) Jo Alfenb ayy anoidwi | o1LIOUOI8 AUk BABY 01 | ale S3JIAIBS [edn)n)d | JO [eAowal ayi Jo 1ybi|
o}y uejdisisey 0] Juepodwi SI ) pug 1S9/ By} Ul adeds uado Jeadde jou saop 1l Jo Teyr ing — ued ul ‘JanamoH ‘11 Aaljod
pas|dwod Apuadal | a1gnd jo Junowe syl buinosdwi jo Aljigissod yonwi a9k} ay} uo ybnoyye 3yl Ul urewal pjnoys Jood Buunsyo Aioud
ay1 uawa|dwi 1abuo| ou sI 818y} 1yl USAID "8sSuas ,JILIOU0ID,, ‘pue sjuapisal | siyl 38} AiBuons [sued | mo| e pue uonuaniBlUl
01 dnolio ue ul 1} Aarjod Jood Buusyo Asoud wnipaw [eo0] Joj Asoud — SuOepuUsWWOIA MO| J0J eaJe ue s|
uamQ '@ | SpuaLIH UM MIOM | B pue UORUSAISIUI MO| J0) Bale UR S| Mied uabay | ybiy e sixied usbay aslopu3 (9 evaIy) Mred Juabay
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




"UONUBAIBIUI WD) —
‘ue|d4alselN uo wnipaw Joy Auoud = m
saAnoalqo uo 1oedwl ybiy e passpisuod T
Jarealb pue Asuow | aq pnoys pue 1y Aoijod S <
‘ue|dJaise 10} anjeA Janag yum poob Jayo ‘sjesodoud =)
uo saAoalgo uo 1oedwi Jarealb pue Asuow s109(oud 1e paldalp uonelauabal S
1o} anfeA Janag yum s1oafoud 1e paloalip Jlanaq Janag ag pjnom Buisnoy papuny o %
9( pPINOM S32IN0Say "‘19edwl Mo| aABY PINOM s$924n0sal ‘19edwi mo| Bunsixa 01 paxul| % —
103lo.ud ay) spesodoud uonelauabali Buisnoy papuny aAey pjnom 103foud s19a.s Areua Ayuoud 2 W
— Bunsixa 01 paxul s19a4s Arenual Aoud ybiy 3y ‘auoz uonualaul ybiy are 19a1s pjog =)
00 uonoe oN | Buleqieans pjog pue peoy ybnoiogren aundsaq JUBWWO9 ON ybiy Buiag sudsaq | pue peoy ybnologlen
) ‘pansind
o a0 10U p|noys pue
© panoidwi usaq Apeale >
o sey peoy pu3 1S9 m
>
‘Aioud |aAs| winipaw =
W) Wnipaw e @
se pansind ag pjnoys %
peoy eipuexs|y 8
0] sjuswanoiduw| —
‘obueyd oI uaas sey %
Jey) eale ue 0] S)ijaua(q S
‘pansind aq jou pjnoys uejdisisew Huuq a3
pue panosdwi usaq Apeale sey peoy pul 1Sapn ‘PasIOpUd | PINOM peoY BIpuRXaY Q
Ajjoym aue 10edwil 0] sjuswaoidw| ,“Aa
‘abueyd oIl usss sey Jarealb yum seale 13 Ao1j0d o
Jey) eale ue 0} suyauaq uejdisisew Bullg pjnom uonuaAiaul ybiy Jrey Buusyo Auond m,
peoy eipuexa|y 01 sjuswanoidwi 1y Aoljod ey U0 S92IN0SaJ SNJ0} winipaw se passe|[o o
Buliayo Aiold mo| se passe|d alnoy Arepuodas 01 M3IABJ WIB] PIN a1noy Alepuodas
uonoe oN e S| sjuawanoidwi weal oljgnd peoy eipuexs|y JUBWWOD ON | JO suonepuawwodsy © S| peoy eipuexaly
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud
ue|d CO_HGHCQEO_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCQQQ,Q




‘resodoud uejdisisew
a|qelA e se pansind
aq Jabuoj ou pnoys
pue 19edwi mo| Asuow
1o} anpeA moj 1) Aaijod
N Jood Jayjo s1eans =
00 [enuapisal [eao| Aoud Q
I MO| pue wnipaw ay | c -
o 39
© '600Z pUokeq | 8 o
n awuwelbold [ended Q 3
BuisnoH ayj 4o} uondo pW 23
ue se payuoddns s| =) %
‘lesodoud ue|disisew ajgeln SlualUIeal] SUOZBWOoH 353
e se pansind aq Jabuo| ou pjnoys pue 10edwi MO| pasiopua JO uonejuswsa|dwi C o
Aauouw Jo} anpea moj 1) Adljod Jood Jayo s1eans Ajjoym aue 10edwil 9yl ‘wua) Buoj 0} 3 7]
[enuapisal [eo0| Ajuoud Mmo| pue wnipaw ayl Ja1ealb yum sease | wnipaw ayy 4o} Aioud = o
uonuaiaul ybiy winipaw e palapisuod Sa
‘6002 puoAag awweiboid U0 S92IN0Sal SNJ0} 2 al0ja1ay} pinoys o @
[enude) BuisnoH ay) 10} uondo ue se pauoddns 0] MaIA3J Wia L PIN pue AlIgISIA MO| JIBY) %
S| sjuswileal) suozawoH Jo uoneluawa|dwi JO suolepusWWO93y | 01 anp 10edwi [e20| pue )
uonoe oN 3yl ‘wua) Buo| 01 wnipaw ay} 1oy Auoud wnipaw 1) Ao1jod ey Jayo Ajuo
B palapIsuod ag ai0jalayl pjnoys pue ANjIgISIA "'8WaYIS JO JUBWId | SluswWieal] sU0zawoH
MOJ J18Y1 01 anp 1oedwi [e20] pue 1y Adijod Jrey BWOS JBAIBp 0} Joy paybiybiy
1ayo Ajuo suawieal) suozawoH Joy pawbiybiy [19UN0D AJUNOD YIM | S19841S [enuapISal [eI0)
umoig ‘1 uonoe oN S199.1S [enuapISal [e20] uonuanialul ybiy ayl Jaosuanjul se ajol asn uonuaniaul ybiy ay L
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




: Baly Yled [enuad
ay 0} aouauiwoud
aneb os|e ue|diaise
[euibuo ayl

"Baly Mled [eauad ayl
10} 1oddns pajeaipul
aney sbunssw
snoinaid papuane pey
oym slaquisw (pug
1S9\ 10} UONBID0SSY
Alunwwo))

AMVO 8yl o IV

"eale uonelsuabal
ay] ul sadeds

uaaib alow pajuem 0
ajdoad bBunoA ay) g
JO IV "paonpoud pey w,
Aayr anQ e pamain =
M pue el e aneb u.m_
.dnoio siapjoyaxels ~
o suosiad Bunoa,, ayl
00 Bunaayy diysiauped ‘suone)Nsuod
1) pu3 1S9/ 1se| 3yl 1Y Alunwwod
(@) [le ul pauoddns
© ‘'sassaulsng Alopim sem siy)
al |rews Jo uoneiapa- pue aoeds uado a1gnd
8y} woJj lana)| ayl 0} M3U 818310 0] Sem
lajal asea|d ‘palinbai ue|diaisely ayi Jo wie
‘palou aq o1 fesodoud Buipjing do-0) Apuabun si bunyred rediound e ‘1anamoH
ay) woddns 01 Bupjred red jeuonippe Joj [enualod | reuonippe uayi 1saybiy 'sy09(0ud J8y10
payuel sI Bulp|ing wol) Aeme sa2in0sal
‘Auswe do-00 ay1 §| 198N panwi| ey [Im 1l se
Bunsixa ays Jo Alenb ayr snoudwi 01 Jueniodwi 3lIYSHIOA pue peoy 1oUIgeD Aq Sjesodoud
SI 11 pu3 1S9\ U1 ul 8deds uado 21ignd Jo 1unowe uaq|y ‘peoy uabay 103l0.ud uejdiaise
ay1 anoidwi 01 Aljigqissod e Jabuoj ou sI alay) 1eyl 9102 |e1DJaWwWod 3yl WoJj paAowsal
USAID "suoieynsuod Alunwwod [je ul pauoddns ayy Joy Bupjred uaaq sey dled eauad
‘'sjuswanoidwi | Ajapim sem siyl pue adeds uado a1ignd mau areald BIIXS JO UoNIppE By} Aauow 1o} anjea
apeuawold pue | 01 sem ue|diaiseN ay) Jo wie fediouud e ‘JIsnemoH | SI SIY} J0j uoseal urew Jood pue 1509 ybly 01
Nled uabay a9S ayl ‘Aoud ybiy e se ‘8002 1890100 /. ‘1 anq "19aloud T aseyd
‘lesodoud 108foid © se ue|dislsely | papnjoul 8q ealy Yled | "Ou uonnjosal G9 :ON B pue uonuUaAIaUI
3Y] WoJj panowal usaq sey yied [enuad [enua) eyl 1sanbal SINUIN — UOISIoap Joy Auoud ybiy e si
uonoe oN Aauouw 10} anen Jood pue 1509 ybiy 01 ang preog 43M 8yl 18UIgeD Shoinald (6 ©a1V) MIed [enuad
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud
ue|d CO_Hm.HcmEO_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ,Q




‘resodoud uejdisisew
3|gelA e se pansind
aq Jabuo| ou pjnoys

eale siyl -abueyo
[enueisqns piaik [im
Tey) sealse UoiuaAIauIl

Aond ybiy Q
Uo passnoo} Janaq )
‘uonepuaWwWwodal ag p|nom a|ge|iene m
SIy1 Jo [esieldde | s82In0SaJ pauwi| 8y o
BAI108)48 Ue 10Npuod | “Asuow Jo} anfen Jood W
0] uonewloyul | swasaldal pue eUBIO -
‘resodo.d usI214NS puly Aa1j04 Jayio pue %
ue|disisew a|geIA e se pansind aq Jabuoj ou 10U pjnod |[aued ay1 | swwelbold dlwouod] o
pinoys eale siyl ‘abueyd [enueisgns poIA [jIm 1eyl Janamoy awwesboid | syl yum Apood sy eale W:
seale uonuanaul Aioud ybiy uo passnooy Janaq J1LOU0Jd pue ayl ealre uejdisisep %
9Q p|nom a|ge|reAr sa2In0sal palwi ayl ‘Asuow eua1Io Adljjod yum | ay1 ul spooyinoqybiau
< 10} anfeA Jood sjuasaidal pue euallid Ad1j0d 18y10 11} J00d 01 anp 1099(oid a|qeureisns
00 pue awwelbfold d1wouod3 ay) yum Aood sy ue|dJoISe a|geln 1Sow ay} Jo auo pue
D) eaJte ay] eale ue|diaise|y ayl ul spooylnoqybisu e se pansind aq | uonuanialul Joy Aiioud
(@) 9|geurelIsns 1sow ay) JO aUo pue UoNUSAIBIUI 10U pjNoys siy eyl MO| e sI (¢ ealy)
© uonoe oN o} Alioud moj e siise3 peoy yuomsieyd JUBWWOD ON | papuswwodal seml| | 1se3q peoy yuomsiey)d
‘lesodoud
ue|dialsew a|geln
e se pansind aq Jabuoj
Ou pjnoys eaJe siyl
‘abueyd renueisgns o
pIalA im Jey) seale 3
uonuaiaul Aoud =]
ybiy uo passnooy W
Janag ag pjnom ®
‘lesodo.ud pasiopua $92Jn0Ssay ‘sindino %
uejdiaisew ajgeln e se pansind aq Jabuoj Alloym aJe 10edwi | J1LIOUOIS M3} SIBAIIBP 2
ou plnoys eale siy] ‘abueyd fenuelisgns plaiA |Iim Jarealb yum seale pue 1y Ao1jod 100d
Teys sease uonuaniaul Ajuoud ybiy uo passnooy uonuanaul ybiy | SIaY0 Teyl uonuaAlalul
Janag aq pjnom sa21n0say "sINdINo JILOU0Id M3} U0 $92IN0SaJ SNJ0} Joj ease Aioud
sJanlap pue 1 Aoijod Jood siayo reyl uonuaAiaul 0] MaIAB) WIa ] PIN wnipaw e si (9T
uonoe oN Joj eale Aiold moj e si peoy ajinuelo JUBWWOD ON | JO SuolepuUBWIWO0I3Y Baly) peoy a|jiaueio
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy
1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud
ue|d CO_HSCQEO_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ<




Page 85

‘resodoud

ue|diaisew a|gelA e se pansind aq Jabuoj ou
pinoys eale siy) -abueyd [enueisqns piaiA [|im reyl
seaJe uonuaniaul Aoud ybiy uo passnaoy Janaq
9Q p|NOM S32IN0SaJ d|ge|leAe palwl| 3yl elslld
J1LIOUO0Jd J1surehe Asuow 10} anjeA Mo| SIayo

pue 1 Ao1jod Jood sey 1] “eale uejdisisely ay)

uI spooyJnoqyBisu ajqeurelsns 1sow ay} Jo auo

pasiopua

Ajjoym aue 10edwil
larealb yum sease
uonuaniaul ybiy
UO $92IN0SaJ SNJ0}
0] MaIAB) WIa ] PIN

‘resodoud

uejdiaisew ajgein

e se pansind ag Jabuo|
OU pjnoys eaJe siyl
‘Buipun) swwrelboid
Jlwou0d3 pue
BuisnoH yioq 1o} anny
spjoy siyl ‘abueys
[enuelsans piaiA [jim
Tey) seale uonuanIaul
Aoud ybiy

UO passnooy} lanaq

8Q p|NOM S82In0Ssal
s|ge|reAe paywi|

3y "BelIdIIO JIWOU09d
1surefe Asuow

10} anjeA moj s1ayo
pue 11y Ad1j0d 1ood

sey | ‘eale ue|diaise
ay} ui spooytnoqybiau
a|geureisns

1SoW 8y} JO auo sl

pue eaJle uoluanIalul
mo| e st (0T

Jjuowiae[d pue jeiowfeg ‘allysuonsg

uonoe oN S| pue eaJe UOIUSAIBIUI MO| B SI proy [elowleq JUSWIWOD ON | JO SuoIEepUSWL0IaY ealy) proy [elowfeq
a|qisuodsay )oeqpasH | uolepuswWWOoI9y uolepusWWoo9y
1821110 suonoy uoIePUAWWOI3Y [eul4 | UuoneNSU0D dIM fesreiddy MBINSY | 198l01d
ue|d uolreluswsa|dw| pue uolepusWWOoI9y - T Xipuaddy




Page 86

uonoe oN

‘lesodo.ud

ue|diaisew a|gelA e se pansind aq Jabuoj

ou pjnoys eaJe siy| -abueyd renueisqns piaiA |Im
Tey sease uonuaniaul Auoud ybiy uo passnooy
lanaq aqg pjnom $821n0Say "SINdINO J1WOU0Id M3}
sJanlap pue 1 Aoijod Jood siayo 1eyl uonuaAiaul
1o} eale Aioud mo| e si peoy Jaupres

Juswiwod ON

‘uodal wia1-pIN
JO SUOepUBWILIOIA
aslopu3

‘awwrelbold

feuded BuisnoH

ay1 Ag papunj deb
1uawdojanap Buisnoy
[luul ue dojansp

0] Auunuoddo ue
juasalid suun reLsnpul
b1 auy AlpAreusa)y
"aAnoalgo wia)
wnipaw se pansind
8Q p|noys pue sawoy
Aliwrey ajqepioye

pling mau apinoid

pue eale [enuapisal e
wouy asn arendouiddeul
ue aAOWal 0}
Alunyuoddo olwouo2a
ue juasaid pue Asuow
oy anjen pue 1} Aaijod
lanaq Jlayo Janamoy
99e|d uoyelo Je syun
leLisnpul 61| 8y L
‘abueyd renuelsgns
pIaIA im Jey seale
uonuaniaul Aoud
ybiy uo passnooy
Janag ag pjnom
Buisnoy Jo Buljjspowal
pue juswaoidwi ay)
1o} 8|ge|reAe sa2Inosal
paywi syl ‘1

Aa1j0d Jood siayo eyl
eaJe Auoud wnipaw
© pue uonuaAlaul
wnipaw e st (T

Baly) peoy Jaupres

peoy Jaupies

a|qisuodsay
1321140

suonoy

uolepUaWWO023Y [euld

NoeqpasS
uoIeINSUOD dAM

uollepuswwoday
[esreiddy

uollepUBWWO0I9Y
M3INSY

109lo0l1d

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




‘resodoud uejdiaisew
a|geln e se pansind
aq J1abuoj ou pjnoys

eaJe siy| -abueyd

fenuelsans piaiA [jim T

Tey) seale UolUaAIdIUI 2.

fwoud ybiy =

uo pPassnooy J1anaq o

‘resodoud pasiopua 9( p|NOM S32IN0SaYy o

uejdisisew ajgelA e se pansind aq 1abuoj Ajjoym aJe 10edwil ‘sindinNo 21WouU02d m

N~ ou pJnoys eale siy] -abueyd renueisgns plaiA |im Ja1ealb yum seale M3] JSAII9p pjnom o
00 Tey) sease uonuaniaul Auoud ybiy uo passnooy uonuanidlul ybiy pue 11 Ao1j0d Jood
I lanaq ag pjnom $a21n0say sindino 2IWouoda UO S92IN0SaJ SNJ0} | SIBH0 Jeyl UoUAAIBIUI
(@)] M8} JaAIIBp pinom pue 11y Aoijod Jood siayo 0] MaIAB) WIa] PIN 1oy Aoud moj st (LT
®© uonoe oN | eyl uonuanidiul oy Aloud moj e sI peoy plaiued UBWWOD ON | JO SuolepuUBSWWO0I9Y Baly) peoy plaire
‘lesodoud uejdiaisew
a|geln e se pansind
aq J1abuoj ou pjnoys
eale syl "abueyd

fenuelsqns plaik [im L

Tey) seale UolUaAIdIUI W,.

Awoud yby =3

Uo Passnoo} 1anaq )

2 p|nom sadinosal o

sindino 21Wou0J8 May )

‘resodoud uejdiaisew pasiopua | BuuayoO “euaid Aaljod <

a|gelA e se pansind aq J1abuo| ou pjnoys Ajjoym ate 1oedwi | 1aylo pue swwelbold nuuq

eale siy| "abueyd [enueisqns plalk |[Im Jeyl sease larealb yum sease 21LIOUODT Yum 2
uonuanaul Auoud ybiy uo passnooy 1anaq aq uonuaAiaul ybiy Ajlood sy pue eale
PINOM S82IN0SayY "SINAINO0 JIWOU0J3 M3} JaAIBp U0 $S92In0SaJ Sn20y | Aloud moj uonuaniaul
pinom pue 114 Ao1jod Jood siayo 1eyl uonuaAiaul 0] MaIAB) WIa ] PIN MO| € sI (T ealy)
uomoe oN 1o} Ajuoud moj e si peoy uoyas / Asjuels JUSWWOD ON | JO SUOREpPUSWWOIaY | peoy uoyas / Asjuels
a|qisuodsay }oeqpead | uollepuswwoI9y uolrepuswwodsy

1833110 suolloy uoljepuswuwoday jeuld uolensuod 4am [esreiddy M3INSY | 108l0ud

ue|d COE.@E@EO_QE_ pue uollfepuswwioday - T X_UCOQQ,Q




uonoe oN

‘resodoud

ue|diaisew a|gelA e se pansind aq Jabuoj

Ou p|noys pue 1oedwi Mo| ASUoW 10} anfeA Mo|

11} Ao1j0d Jood Jayo 19ans Areiual Alond mo| ayl

‘palinbal

aq Aew ,6umod
-1addad, jo 1q s e
Ajuo 1ey1 os sanuadoud
l1I8y) anoidwil 0} 10309s
arenud ayl ul splojpue)
/SIaumo awoy

aldsul pjnom syo8loid
[euoirewlojsuel) ay}
Tey) uondwnsse ay)
sAemje sem 1l ‘paspu|
"uonuaAiaul Jofew

10} papualul Janau pue
ue|diaisey reuibuo sy
Ul seale uonuaAIaluIl
MO| aJam sanuoLd

MO| se pasliobared
SEENSENI]

pasiopua

Ajjoym aJe 10edwil
Ja1ealb yum seale
uonuaiaul ybiy

U0 S92IN0Sal SNJ0}
01 MalIADJ WIB]1 PIN
JO suolepuUaWIWO0daY

‘resodoud

ue|diaisew a|geIA e se
pansind aq 1a6uo| ou
p|noys pue Asuow .o}
anjeA Mo| Jalo pue 1)
Aa1j0d 100d aney 19a4s
Areiual Aoud mo| ay L

(seare uonuaniaiul Aluoud moj)
s109.11S Alenua]

Page 88

uoijoe oN

‘lesodoud uejdiaisew

a|geIA e se pansind aq Jabuoj ou pjnoys

pue 10edwi mo| Asuow 1o} anjea moj iy Aa1jod
Jood Jayo sanoy Arepuodss Aioud moj ay L

‘paJinbal

ag Aew ,bumod
-laddad, jo uq s e
Ajuo reys os sanadoud
lIay) anoidwi 0 10108s
areAld ay ul spiojpue)
/Slaumo awoy

aadsul pjnom s109(oid
[euonewlojsuel) 3y}
1ey) uondwnsse ay)
sAeme sem 11 ‘paapu|
‘uonuaiaul lofew

10} papuajul JIaAsu pue
ue|diaise feuiblio ayy
ul seale uonuaAIBuI
MO| alam sanuond

MO| Se pasliobared
S19241S 9soy |

‘seale

10edwi Jaybiy ol
pajjauueyd si Asuow
Buunsua juswiean
Alenb 1saybiy

10} apise 19s seale
ay1 aonpai 01 djay
[m ‘ans.nd jou oQ

‘lesodo.ud

ue|dialsew a|gein

e se pansind aq Jabuo|
ou pjnoys pue 10edwi
jueaIubIs 10 Asuow
10} anpeA poob Jayo jou
op salnoy Arepuodas
Auoud moj syl

(seaue uonuaiaiul Aond moj)
sa1noy Arepuodas

a|qisuodsay
1321140

suonoy

uolepUaWWO023Y [euld

NoeqpasS
uoIeINSUOD dAM

uollepuswwoday
[esreiddy

uollepUBWWO0I9Y
M3INSY

109lo0l1d

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




Page 89

‘resodoud uejdiaisew a|geln
e se pansind aq Jabuo| ou pjnoys pue 10edwi MO|
Aauow 10} anfea moj 14 Aa1jod Jood Jayo s1eans

‘palinbal

aqg Aew ,bumod
-Jaddad, jo nq apy e
Ajuo 1ey os saiadoid
J1Iayl anoidwi 01 10198S
aleald ayl ul spiojpue]
/SIaumo awoy

aadsul pjnom syo9foid
[euoirewlojsuel) ay}
1Y) uondwnsse ay)
sAemje sem 11 ‘paspu|
"uonuaiaul Jofew

10} papuaiul Janau pue
ue|diaisel [euiblio ay)
ul seale uonuaAIalUIl
MO| a1om sanuoLd

MO| Se pasliobared

pasiopua
Ajjoym aue 10edwil
larealb yum sease
uonuaniaul ybiy
U0 S92IN0SaJ SNJ0}
01 M3IAJ WIB] PIN

‘resodoud uejdiaisew
a|geIn e se pansind
aq Jabuo| ou pjnoys

pue 10edwi mo| Asuow

1o} anjea moj 11 Ao1jod

lood Jayo s)eans
[enuspisal [eao| Auoud

(sease uonuaniaul
WINIPaW/MO|) S199.1S [el1UBPISaY [207]

uonoe oN [enuapisay (2207 Aliold Mmo| pue wnipaw ay L S19911S 8SOY] | JO suolepusLIWOoday MO| puB Wwnipaw ayl
a|qisuodsay Noeqpasd | uolepuswwoday uollepuawwoday
182140 suonoy uonepuUaW W03y Jeuld uoinensuod dam [esreiddy M3IADY | 193(0ld

ue|d uoleiuawsa|dw| pue uoljepusawwoday - T Xipuaddy




Page 90

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

ap—i £

T

=

1
|

.

T
|

. mug L BN e

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report

Date: May 2009

Author: Tom Brown, Regeneration Officer

Checked by: Paul Rogers, Principal Regeneration Officer
Version: 1.03

Page 1 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 91

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

1. Introduction

Purpose of this Review

The aim of this review is to provide a renewed focus for regeneration activity in the West End.
The Masterplan contained proposals for almost every street and property in the West End, and
while this comprehensive approach is useful given the 15 year timeframe envisaged for delivery,
it did not provide a clear implementation plan. The Masterplan did identify eight Phase 1 Projects
that were to be delivered in the first five years and the review aims to take stock of the
achievements of the first three years and provide a renewed set of priorities for delivery taking
into account current national, regional and local economic regeneration policy.

A key driver for the review is the recent refresh of economic regeneration priorities for the District
adopted by the Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership (LDLSP). The review will
concentrate on the proposed physical work elements for each Masterplan area/project and
undertake to: show their contribution to the objectives of the LDLSP’s new Economic
Regeneration Programme; identify which elements are likely to attract external funding support;
and identify which proposals can realistically be delivered. This will enable both financial and
human resources to be effectively focussed on the deliverable high impact projects that will build
upon the positive changes seen in the West End and which will also complement and contribute
more directly to the wider regeneration of Morecambe. This course of action was confirmed at
by Cabinet at its meeting of October 2008.

Origins of the Masterplan

In 2004 Lancaster City Council, English Partnerships and the North West Development Agency
endorsed an Action Plan for the Regeneration of the coastal town of Morecambe. The plan
identified that the housing and social problems, and the associated environment and image
issues, particularly in the West End, have a serious effect on the economy and therefore the
economic future of the town.

The Masterplan brief recognised that significant change was required to the built environment of
the area to maximise its potential and that the development of a spatial strategy would need to
consider the strategic objectives identified for the West End in the Morecambe Action Plan:-

e To increase the attractiveness of the West End as an area to live for existing
residents and to attract new people to move into the area as long term residents,
having a knock-on impact to improve the overall image of the resort.

e Toincrease the proportion of owner occupiers and reduce the private rented sector

as a means of improving stability

To diversify the types of housing available.

To increase the amount of useable quality open space.

To improve the quality of the built environment.

To assure the sustainability of local shops through consolidation and establishing a

niche market identity.

The outline for the development brief for the West End Masterplan plan was to Identify the role
that the West End can play in the local housing market set in the context of the districts
economic future and with reference to local housing needs. Develop, consult and finalise
proposals for a spatial strategy for the West End.

Page 2 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 92

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

Development of the Masterplan

Over the course of 2004 the appointed consultants, Building Design Partnership, Jones Lang
LaSalle and Gleeds, worked with the strategic partners English Partnerships, Northwest
Development Agency and Lancaster City Council and the local community stakeholders to
develop the West End Masterplan. The Masterplan and Delivery Strategy was developed
thorough the following documents;

Baseline Sustainability Report — dated July 2004

Draft Options Report — dated July 2004

Case Study Research — presented at 2™ August Steering Group

Final Report — adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document on 22 February
2005

The development process that resulted in the Masterplan final report was widely consulted. The
final report has a considerable amount of endorsement from the local community, the Council
and its strategic partners.

Masterplan Vision and Aims

The overarching and fundamental component of the vision for the West End is to create an
exceptionally good place to live, work and play. During the Enquiry by Design event in June
2004, there was strong support for the creation of an attractive residential area with a significant
appeal to families. The vision for the West End is based on a 3 cornered set of principles:

Perception

Place People

The ‘3 P’s’ were intended to convey guiding principles and the approach that should be taken to
deliver a new Morecambe West End. The strategic objectives identified in the matrix below were
the basis for identifying and justifying the key projects. The matrix was used to justify the Phase
1 projects and were intended be used to assist in the identification, evaluation and justification of
future projects in the West End i.e. Phase 2 and beyond.

Page 3 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 93

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

1. Perception 2. Place 3. People

la. The redefined vision for 2a. A place where people want | 3a. Improvement in local school
the West End encompassing | to live as homeowners for the provision, building on the County

high quality living, working long term Council's education strategy and
and incidental leisure / taking forward proposals for
tourism offers enhanced local school opportunities,

including preschool provision

1b. A broad range of housing | 2b. A place where unfit homes | 3b. Weaving into the strategy a

aimed at a number of areas are replaced by high quality ‘healthy living ideal * which takes the
of need as identified in the housing at a range of best features of Morecambe’s
Couttie report affordability levels reputation for healthy living
1c. A high quality retail offer, | 2c. A place where people want | 3c. Plans to change the housing
based upon a blend of local to market, by changing tenure mix and
and specialist shopping educate their children in high taking out of the supply chain HMOs
activity quality pre — school and and absentee landlord properties
primary schools
1d. A home for higher 2d. A place where people want | 3d. The delivery of affordable homes
education, based upon the to shop for local services and identified as a core requirement in the
possible establishment a goods as well as for their district housing strategy - this should
campus for St Martins discretionary and specialist principally be delivered through new
College requirements home ownership options.
le. A high quality food / drink | 2e. A place where people want | 3e. By creation of new employment
offer based upon a number of | to eat, socialise and mix in a opportunities, based around a number
new outlets in the West End friendly an beautiful of economic initiatives particularly in
environment the fields of arts, digital technologies,
retail and leisure
1f. A redefined 2f. A place where people want | 3f. Higher education, the delivery of a
accommodation strategy to enjoy views, vistas and open | higher education campus if possible
based upon higher quality spaces populated by sculpture, | and all that it brings with it will have a
self-catering and boutique public art and high quality terrific positive impact on the West
hotels, continuing the street furniture End

envisaged success that the
Midland Hotel project will
instigate

2g. A place that mixes soft and | 3g. Sustainable Living Principles that
hard landscape in a clever and | will be woven into the plan
complementary manner
drawing out the best aspects of
the sustainable urban
neighbourhood

2h. A place that is truly
sustainable in all aspects of a
living community.

Prioritisation of Project Activity

The West End Masterplan is based on a market assessment of the strengths and weaknesses of
the area, as well as the opportunities and threats. In order to address the range of issues facing
the area in a comprehensive manner, the West End was sub-divided into a series of zones of
intervention. All Masterplan areas were scored against the matrix of strategic objectives and this
led to the identification of clear priorities. The redevelopment of the key sites aimed to have a
catalytic effect, ensuring the wider regeneration of the West End. The key or phase 1 project
sites included:

Page 4 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 94

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

Frontierland Re-development (1)

West End Road Re-modelling (2)

Clarendon Road Re-modelling (3)

Housing Exemplar (5)

Yorkshire Street Environmental Improvements (8)

Central Park (9)

Battery / Bold Street / Marine Road West / West End Gardens (11)
Bus and Illuminations Depots (15)

The plan below shows the 8 Key or Phase 1 projects, highlighted in red, to be delivered in the
first 5 years. The specific proposals identified as the Phase 1 projects were subject to
consultation and supported by the West End Partnership and the City Council.

Page 5 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 95

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

Page 6 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 96

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

The illustration below shows the overall objective was to retain the overall layout of the West
End and enhance the area through:

The remodelling of selective properties,

The demolition and new-build of selected houses,
The redevelopment of key development sites,
The creation of new public open spaces, and

The remodelling / resurfacing of selective streets.

Aran Home Inervenlon ey

1 Frontieriand High - New Build Properties
2 ‘Wash End Road High e

a Clorendon Rood East High || -Remodelled Properties
4 Chotsworm Rood Low = : .

5 Mbert Rood, Regent Road High B - Refurbished Properties

Balmaoral Road Claremont koad

HHF - Rowute of Living Strest

8 Bagent Park Low
7 Morine Rood West Hedum — - Enwirenmental Enhancement
] Yorshire Strest Wesl East High i of Fromenade & Battery Site
] Ragent RoodyPorlimant Strest High
m Devonshine Rood Boimonal Rood Lo
Mexandra koad,Clansmont Road West
1 Fromenade and Battery High
12 sandnar Road Hedum Pl
13 Kuondale Rowd;/Brnes Hedum I .
14 Safton Rodd, Shanky Road Livw
15 Sandyknis,Depot St High
18 Gramellie Road Hedum

17 Falrflel Road

Page 7 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 97

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

Public Realm Strategy

In addition to the specific project proposals and prioritisation of Masterplan areas a strategy
describing the overall vision for the West End in terms of image and environment was
developed. The Public Realm Strategy stated: The design philosophy aims to capture the
essence of the West End, which is characterised by a formal grid-iron street pattern. The
strategy aims to:

o Clearly define the heart of the West End, providing a core area that clearly integrates
with the coast (via harnessing vistas and strong visual axes to the coastline)

e Provide improved connections to Morecambe Town Centre by concentrating on
important east-west routes such as the Promenade and the Living Street concept set
back within the heart of the West End but running parallel to the promenade.

e Generate a greater sense of arrival into the West End and providing an attractive front
door through the creation of an attractive coastal promenade.

e Act as a catalyst for linking all the various elements of the public realm.

Provide Access for All

o Establish a street hierarchy which distinguishes between primary, secondary, tertiary and
local residential streets and also highlights the proposed location of a ‘living street’ and
streets associated with the commercial core of the West End

In addition to the street hierarchy all streets were prioritised for intervention in much the same
way as the Masterplan areas. The plan below shows the public realm strategy for the West End.

PUBLIC REALM & MOVEMENT STRATEGY Morecambe West End

1. PROMENADE Xt

2. REGENT PARK j STUDY BOUNDARY

3. PADDLUING POOL == 1 PRIMARY ROUTES

4. OPTION 1 - NEW SCHOOL & PUBLIC SPACE

b | [VING STREET
OPTION 2 - COMMUNITY PARK —

1
5. FRONTIERLAND SITE SECONDARY STREETS

— IMMERCIA] R
6. NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAY AREA I 1 COMMERCIAL CORE

TERTIARY STREETS

™| LOCAL RESIDENTIAL STREETS
e CYCLE ROUTES
BUS ROUTES

OPEN SPACE

Page 8 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 98

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

2.

Masterplan Achievements and Progress

Following the adoption of the Masterplan by Cabinet in February 2005 a delivery team was
appointed to begin implementing the phase 1 projects that aimed to be completed in 5 years.
Listed below is a brief summary of the achievements of the first three years of the Masterplan
against the principal aims, the phase 1 projects and the public realm strategy.

Frontierland Re-development — Rear third of the site has been re-developed
successfully and negotiations with City Council planners for the remainder of the site are
ongoing.

West End Road Re-modelling — 10 of the 15 target properties have been remodelled
successfully improving both the quality of the Conservation Area and the tenure profile.
Clarendon Road Re-modelling — 26 of the 38 target properties have been remodelled
successfully improving both the quality of the Conservation Area and the tenure profile.

Fflat conversions on West End Road and remodelled family homes on Clarendon Road East

Housing Exemplar — 50 of 73 target properties have been acquired and outline planning
permission for 100 units of high quality family homes has been granted.

Yorkshire Street Environmental Improvements — streetscene improvements have
been implemented enhancing the quality of the public realm and reducing shop voids.

Page 9 of 70
E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 99

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

Completed Yorkshire Street public realm works

Central Park — a detailed feasibility study has been completed but this highlighted poor
value for money due to high cost with low economic outputs. Following rejection of a
funding application by the NWDA this has been removed as a Masterplan proposal.
Battery / Bold Street / Marine Road West / West End Gardens — The regeneration of
West End Gardens has been a great success and the café nominated for a regional
award by the RIBA. A new build housing scheme for Marlborough Road will remove a
large number of HMOs and offer shared ownership housing. A frontage improvement
scheme for the odd numbered side of Bold Street is also underway.

The improved West End Gardens.

Page 10 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 100

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

New Café at West End Gardens

Bus and llluminations Depots — A private developer obtained planning consent to build
83 houses and flats and has completed half of the development.

Clearly define the heart of the West End — Improvements to Yorkshire Street are a
successful first phase of supporting the West End’s Commercial Core.

Improved connections to Morecambe Town Centre; Promenade and the Living
Street — Limited progress has been made on this aim although the West End
Gardens/Café improvement creates greater interest drawing people from the Midland
Hotel to the Battery.

Gateway project to generate a greater sense of arrival — The improvements to West
End Gardens has had a positive impact on both the Promenade and Regent Road but
further work to enhance these routes is required.

Act as a catalyst for linking all the various elements of the public realm — Some
improvements have been made but the large geographic area and limited resources
available prevent this from being a realistically attainable aim.

Establish a street hierarchy — Again this is not a realistically attainable aim given the
limited resources available.

Provide Access for All — All the public realm improvements made so far have met this
aim being designed to current access requirements

Page 11 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 101

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

3. Key Current Policy Framework /Funding Considerations

Clearly there are a number of policy documents produced by a range of agencies and statutory
bodies which may impact on the support or delivery of a particular proposal. However, of critical
concern at a District strategic level are any proposal’s ‘fit' with the following:

The LDLSP’s Economic Programme

Emerging policy has been given impetus by the Government’s Sub National Review of
Economic Development and Regeneration (SNR) and its emphasis on the role of Local
Authorities. The potential for direct delegations of economic development/regeneration funding
to Local Authorities at a level where a natural economic geography exists and where there is
proven capacity to manage and deliver thus allowing for far more local influence over funding
priorities now exits. The context of the new Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership
(LDLSP) and the role of the economy as a theme in the developing Sustainable Community
Strategy are therefore important.

The Lancaster District Economic Vision was widely consulted upon and adopted by Council as
its Regeneration Strategy in 2006. More recently, the Economic Vision has been refreshed
following a joint Council/ Vision Board event in May and as part of the LDLSP Action Planning
process.

As part of the SNR, the government has produced a further White Paper. Transforming Places —
Changing Lives. This proposes an approach that coordinates and prioritises regeneration
investment in the right places, devolves investment decisions to the most local level possible,
aligns investment behind local and regional priorities and focuses in tackling underlying
economic problems, particularly in deprived areas.

The government makes the point that regeneration, a sub set of economic development, is
about tackling barriers to economic growth, which should deliver economic inclusion,
contributing to the growth of the overall economy. In the future, government funds for
regeneration will come from two primary sources; the Regional Development Agencies, which
have had responsibility for economic development and regeneration for some years, and the
new Homes and Communities Agency, which brings together English Partnerships and the
Housing Corporation to improve the effectiveness of housing regeneration.

The LDLSP has made further progress by establishing various Thematic Groups and developing
initial Action Plans to highlight high level objectives for the District. The Council has been closely
involved in a number of Thematic Groups, providing both elected member representation and
officer support. The Economy Thematic Group is particularly relevant in respect of any economic
development/regeneration priorities and this group has considered in detail the existing
Economic Vision and information arising from its ‘refresh’ in 2008.

An initial draft “Economic Programme” has been produced, which incorporates all of the key
actions required to deliver the economic objectives that have been identified by both the LDLSP
Economy Thematic Group partners. The Programme is ambitious and represents some high
aspirations across the District, which will rely heavily on external funding and, in some cases, on
private sector investment. Whilst there are no guarantees that these will be available, the Action

Page 12 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 102

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

Plan provides a strong framework that takes account of funders’ present requirements. The
approach centres around five strategic Area Themes. These are;

e Maximise employment and economic activity in the KNOWLEDGE ECONOMY

e Develop a HEYSHAM TO M6 EMPLOYMENT CORRIDOR where accessible
economic opportunities will bring our communities together

e Regenerating and REINVENTING MORECAMBE as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit

e Place shape LANCASTER CITY and RIVER SIDE as a regionally significant visitor
and shopping destination and a competitive employment destination with an
outstanding waterfront

e Develop CARNFORTH as a NORTHERN GATEWAY to increase economic activity
in rural areas and facilitate access to the natural

To attract external funding to deliver the District's economic aspirations, particularly as delegated
funds, it is critical that a clear and organised strategy is agreed and management and delivery
arrangements are understood. The emerging Economic Programme provides the broad
framework for this but further work is needed to develop the investment rationale, including
testing of achievability and ‘value for money’ of any planned outcomes, identifying benchmarks
and comparators and monitoring and evaluation planning. To achieve this, a formal Investment
Strategy, centred around the five economic themes, will be required as well as a clear
Performance Plan linked to the LDLSP Economy Action Plan, to provide the basis for a
programme of delivery.

Clearly the remaining aspirations of the West End Masterplan have to be tested to see whether
they are of a high enough priority and impact to be part of this emerging programme with
deliverability — in the sense the ability of projects/proposals to be funded and their actual
implementation — being an important consideration.

While the focus of this review work is Economic Regeneration the Masterplan review will also
suggest where, if appropriate, particular proposals may find support within the other six
Thematic Groups, and their associated priorities as articulated in the recently approved
Sustainable Community Strategy 2008-11, in the key priority areas of:

Children & Young People
Education, Skills & Opportunities
Environment

Health & Wellbeing

Safety

Valuing People

Local Development Framework

Under the terms of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the Council is required to
prepare and keep up to date various spatial planning documents which together form the “Local
Development Framework” (LDF). These documents include the recently adopted Core Strategy,
other development plan documents such as the Land Allocations Document, Area Action Plans
and Supplementary Planning Documents.

Page 13 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 103

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

The LDF complements the Economic Programme themes and will provide a critical tool in
achieving ‘step-change’ regeneration. The recently adopted Core Strategy identifies Central
Morecambe as a Regeneration Priority Area of sub-regional importance. Policy ER2 states that:
“Through tourism, housing renewal and heritage led regeneration, central Morecambe will be
reinvented as a visitor destination drawing on its natural and built heritage, and as an office and
service centre with restored historic townscape and a revived housing market”.

The Council is taking steps to build upon Morecambe’s current positive image provided by the
opening of the Midland Hotel and promote further and more extensive regeneration in central
Morecambe. A first and key stage in the process will be the production of an Area Action Plan.
This would underpin and complement other initiatives in the area and provide a detailed spatial
planning framework for the area.

The Plan would build upon recent initiatives, particularly those in Poulton and the West End, and
set out specific measures for promoting sustainable development that would help bring these
communities together. Critically, the Plan would be a major tool in assisting bids for external
funding and in maximising the benefits to the local community from development proposals. It
would provide certainty to those wishing to invest in central Morecambe and promote confidence
in the area.

It is currently envisaged that the plan would broadly cover the central area from the former
Frontierland Site through to Queen Street and inland as far as the Euston Road / Central Drive
junction). It is therefore clearly prudent to set West End Masterplan priorities in the context of the
Core Strategy and emerging Action Plan framework to exploit any synergy and enhance
physical and economic linkages.

Lancaster City Council Corporate Plan

The Council’'s Corporate Plan sets out the strategic objectives and priorities and officer
involvement and any future resources applied to proposals and projects must be consistent with
these corporate objectives.

The Corporate Plan together with the Annual Report (which includes detailed performance tables
relating to all statutory BVPIs and local performance indicators) forms the Council's Best Value
Performance Plan. Lancaster City Council’s Vision for 2009-2011 is listed below.

“By promoting city, coast and countryside, we will secure a safe and prosperous
community that’s proud of its natural and cultural assets and provides lasting
opportunities for all.”

In Morecambe this means a seaside town recognised as vital and vibrant in an exceptional
natural setting with a sustainable economy and a stable resident community. The issues we have
prioritised (our medium term objectives) are set out below:

Ensure cost effective services that give good value for money
Provide customer focused, accessible services

Make our district a cleaner and healthier place

Contribute to a safer society

Lead the regeneration of our District

Support sustainable communities and action on climate change

Page 14 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 104

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Draft Report May 2009

e Give local communities more influence and involvement in the way their services are
delivered and decisions that affect them are made

Housing Capital Programme
The Housing Capital Programme has focused upon Morecambe and the West End delivering a

series of transformational projects remodeling some of the largest HMOs on West End Road and
Clarendon Road East. The programme for 2008-09 focussed upon:

e Develop Shared Ownership Scheme (lateral conversions West End Road).

e Demolish and re-develop HMOs and commercial property on Marlborough Road to create
family sized homes and flats for shared ownership.

External works to Clarendon Road.

Group Repair Schemes on Bold Street (odd numbers).

Creation of landscaped schemes on acquired sites.

Gateway improvements to Heysham Road.

The detail of the programme beyond 2008-09 has not yet been decided. Although Cabinet
agreed on 8" July how the funding would be allocated for the period 2008-11 between Disabled
Facilities Grant and Housing Regeneration. Cabinet agreed that 75% of the regeneration funding
be allocated to the West End. The West End'’s Project Liaison Group discussed the future
direction of the Programme in the area agreeing the projects put forward to Cabinet and a broad
direction for the programme. Due to the expensive unit cost of re-development and re-modelling
of HMOs, a revised approach would be needed to implement the aims of the Masterplan. This
would involve:

Identify high risk properties (large properties currently HMOs) and re-model

e “Lighter Touch” intervention to blocks of smaller properties by carrying out improvements
to make the external features match those on Clarendon Road and remove HMOs

e Reduce oversupply of retail units and focus retail onto Yorkshire Street and Regent Road
with Claremont Road as commercial area.

e “Homezone” type work on the highway and external areas

Re-modelling of properties would lead to a high unit cost but the low cost of “lighter touch”
interventions would reduce the average unit cost for the area. Future project activity would focus
on Phase 1 High Priority Masterplan Areas including;

Completion of existing 2008-09 project commitments

The re-development of the even numbered side of Bold Street

Westminster Road facelift scheme to improve through route opposite Exemplar
Contribute towards “Homezone” style streetscene improvements

Replace light industrial units at Grafton Place with family homes

As with previous projects the Housing Capital Programme funding is often used to gap fund
projects to ensure the appropriate quality is attained.

Page 15 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 105

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

4. Recommendations and Implementation Plan

The review assessed each of the proposed physical work elements contribution against the
objectives of the LDLSP’s Economic Programme, the likelihood of attracting external funding
support and whether they can realistically be delivered.

The review also aimed to identify, match and prioritise for each Masterplan area and project taking
account of the current policy framework and funders’ priorities. Following the initial assessment the
Masterplan the proposals were ranked against the assessment criteria and split into High, Medium
and Low ranking groups. The detailed assessment of each proposal area is contained in Appendix
2.

An independent scrutiny panel was convened by the Council's Programme Secretariat consisting
of officers from the City Council experienced in aspects of: risk management; finance and funding;
planning and policy; programme development and performance. The purpose of the appraisal
process was to subject the proposals identified and prioritised in a Draft Mid-term Review
document to an independent and objective challenge, assessing project viability in terms of:-

Fit to strategic aims and policy
Deliverability

Avalilability of funding

Risk

Value for Money

The overall strategic aims of the current Master Plan were endorsed by the Panel as relevant and
appropriate. Concentrating future regeneration activity upon a focussed and prioritised list of
projects making the best use of limited resources is supported as an appropriate way forward in
the current financial climate. The majority of the recommendations of the Mid-term review
document were strongly endorsed.

Following panel appraisal the findings were collated and presented to the West End Partnership for
feedback and comment in a Revised Draft Mid-term Review document. The Partnership agreed
with much of the Mid-term review but raised a number of objections and queries.

Following appraisal a revised Draft Mid-Term Review report was presented to the West End
Partnership (WEP) for feedback and comment. The partnership agreed with much of the Mid-term
review but raised the following issues:

e Bold Street proposal ‘medium’ should be changed to ‘high’ priority: Bold Street
exhibited the poorest property condition and officers originally considered it high
priority. However due to a transcription error the information provided to the WEP was
not updated. This error has been corrected and Bold Street is listed as a high priority
project.

e The Central Park proposal be reintroduced: Cabinet resolved to remove Central Park
from the Masterplan (minute reference 65) in October 2008 and nothing has changed
to alter officers’ views that the proposal is not feasible.

e The low and medium priority classification assigned to West End Road and Clarendon
Road East remodelling respectively: The previous ‘remodelling’ strategy used was no
longer economically viable and the officer recommendation is to review alternate
delivery models to see if the Masterplan aims of reducing low quality private rented
properties, particularly HMOs, and the provision of more family homes for owner
occupiers can be achieved for these properties.

Page 16 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 106

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Following appraisal and consultation the following portfolio of proposals have been prioritised by
the City Council as high, medium, low or lowest priority ranking as follows:

High Ranking Projects / Areas fall into the highest ranked grouping offer the greatest
regeneration impact, the best policy fit, have the greatest chance of securing funding, provide good
value for money and deliver the greatest additionality. The following projects have been ranked into
this category:

e Co-Op Building e Exemplar
e Commercial Core e Bold Street and West End Gardens
e Regent Road e Marine Road West (public realm)

Medium Ranking Projects / Areas meet most of the assessment criteria and are still viable
projects but of a slightly lower priority or for implementation in the medium to long term. The
following projects have been ranked into this category:

e Clarendon Road Living Street e Clarendon Road East

e Frontierland e West End Road

e Heysham Road Gateway e Marine Road West (housing)

e Bus/ llluminations Depot e Avondale / Barnes Road (workshops)

e Regent Park

Low Ranking Masterplan Projects / Areas offer limited policy fit and should either be deferred to
the medium to long term or no longer pursued as viable masterplan proposals. The following
projects have been ranked into this category:

e Yorkshire Street Shopfronts e Tertiary Street (high intervention)

e Secondary Routes (high e Local Residential Streets (high intervention)
intervention)

e Granville Road

Lowest Ranking Masterplan Projects / Areas offer poor policy fit and should no longer pursued
as viable masterplan proposals. The following projects have been ranked into this category:

e Chatsworth Road e Fairfield Road

e Secondary Routes (low /med) e Devonshire Balmoral Alexandra Claremont
e Gardner Road e Tertiary Streets (low /med)

e Sefton / Stanley Road e Local Residential Streets (low /med)

e Central Park

Appendix 1 details the final recommendation listed against each Masterplan area following
consultation and forms an outline implementation plan noting the officer responsible for taking
matters forward. (Note: Members must approve the Recommendations and Implementation
Plan this will be included in a Final Mid-Term Review document, and circulated as a record
of the achievements and a formal statement of working priorities moving forward).

Page 17 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 107

20p"0TA” ZXIANIddV LYOdIHIMILTLTO00IVAT\\Q\S20awalepuaby\erea\nobusapown:3

0. jo 8T abed

800¢ dunr 2 Jo Bunaaw sy ye 1uiqed Aq jeaosdde Buimoljoy papnjoul aq oL

ue|d uoneiluswa|dw| pue suollepuawwoday - T Xipuaddy

600z |1dy Hoday [euld — maInaY WIS ] -PIN ue|disise pug 1Sa



Page 108

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Appendix 2

Masterplan Areas and Project/Proposal Scores
Frontierland — Area 1 — PHASE 1 PROJECT

The former Frontierland site represents a major development opportunity and is an area of high level
intervention. The masterplan puts forward a conceptual layout to demonstrate how a mixed-use scheme
could be developed with;
e High quality residential development along Marine Road West taking advantage of the views over
Morecambe Bay;
e Cedar Street and Grove Street are extended into the Frontierland site to provide important linkages
through the area and to ensure new properties are suitably linked into the wider urban fabric of the
West End;
e The treatment of the public realm should be of a high quality to reflect the importance of this area as
a gateway location.
e Future development will be brought forward by the private sector and the Council will seek the
highest possible standard of development that incorporates ‘sustainability’ features.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions Outline planning permission for a mixed use development
secured

Pre-commencement /
feasibility work

Achievements to date The rear third of the site has been brought forward by a private developer with
3 retail units occupied by Homebase, JJB Sports and Next and has had a
positive impact.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels.

Council priority: Lead the regeneration of our District.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC1 — Sustainable Development — Accommodate new development on
previously used land in sustainable locations;

Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to meet regional targets

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe...an office and service centre with a revived housing market

Policy Fit - Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Environment Priority 2 Protect and improve air, water and land quality
and use resources sustainably with due regard to the interests of the wider community and the
environment.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ Private developer led
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Private developer led

Page 19 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 109

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term v
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective

Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of
preferred option

High

Med

v

Low

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
and work and improved linkages between West End and Central Morecambe

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Medium Low Low Medium Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
Yes a high quality mixed use development would initially provide local construction jobs and in the long
term a limited number of retail and catering jobs.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Strategic Seafront Fall in house prices | Dependence on Lapse of outline
Site developed and lending developer and planning
restrictions housing market permission

Hold/refer as

Wait for housing

Momentum of

Vacant site

Uncertainty of

obtained

for Morecambe not

opportunity/plan market to pick back | positive regen continue to have housing market
review up impact lost adverse effect
End involvement None Optimum benefits Missed opportunity | -

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Frontierland (Area 1) represents the largest site for redevelopment in the West End and is located on the
seafront close to the recently re-opened Midland Hotel and is a high priority and Phase 1 project. This

private development site offers good policy fit and should remain a priority to bring forward a suitable high
quality mixed use development that provides the added benefit of improved permeability.

» Maintain current stance on the need for a high quality development that provides the added
benefits of improved permeability through to Central Drive through development control process.

Page 20 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 110

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

West End Road Re-modelling — Area 2 - PHASE 1 PROJECT

West End Road represents an area of high level intervention. The aim is to;
e Retain good quality hotel and guest house accommodation
e Converting HMOs and low quality guesthouses into high quality, large flats
e Redevelopment of the depot site on Grove Street to create new housing to reinforce the connections
to the Frontierland site and thence to the town centre

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders Homes and Communities Agency
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions Not for future phases

secured

Pre-commencement / Many properties have been successfully converted but there are still a number
feasibility work of target properties to be acquired and remodelled.

Achievements to date Ten of the fifteen target properties on West End Road have been re-modelled

into lateral conversions providing high quality flats for shared ownership with
Adactus Housing Association. Of the 5 properties that remain 3 have or are in
the process of being substantially improved by private landlords and 1 further
property for remodelling is due to be completed in June 2009. In addition to
successfully changing place and perception this intervention has removed of
over 60 units of poor quality private rented accommodation has had a positive

impact on.

Reduction in the level of private rented flats.
Contract commenced 2005
Contract completion Ongoing
End date of project When properties are finally sold

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels. Transforming the best of Morecambe’s built
heritage.

Council priority - Support sustainable communities — Increase the provision of affordable housing.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC1 — Sustainable Development — Accommodate new development on
previously used land in sustainable locations;

Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to meet regional targets

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe ... an office and service centre with a revived housing market

Policy E1 —Conserve Built Heritage (West End Conservation Area)

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place;

Policy Fit — Very Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Health Priority 4: Increase the proportion of people who have a decent,
affordable, warm, safe home. To balance the housing market to meet customer needs focusing on the
supply of good quality affordable housing and improving the condition of accommodation across the district.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Housing Capital Programme and Homes and
Communities Agency

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v

private sector. Low vz Long term

Page 21 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 111

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option
Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work and improved linkages between West End and Central Morecambe
Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary

anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Medium Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Vision priorities? Yes
this project offers medium value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) Yes

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Completion of all High unit cost if Uncertainty of
target properties current delivery housing market
will maximise method and high costs
impact

Hold/refer as Develop an Need to maintain Uncertainty of

opportunity/plan alternate delivery momentum and housing market

review method impact

End involvement Cost Impact of scheme Missed opportunity

reduced

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

West End Road (Area 2) is a medium priority intervention area and a Phase 1 project area that has
benefitted from substantial investment and positive change. The high unit cost of re-modelling properties
prevents further works of this nature and a new approach for these properties is required to achieve the
aims of the Masterplan for this area.

» Assess value of alternative ways of achieving the successful completion of the Masterplan’s aims
for West End Road through the Housing Capital Programme.

Page 22 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 112

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Clarendon Road Re-modelling — Area 3 — PHASE 1 PROJECT

Clarendon Road East is a zone where high level intervention in order to tackle a concentration of poor quality
HMOs is proposed. The primary aim is to;

e Create housing stock suitable for family and owner occupier accommaodation

e Properties along Clarendon Road East will be remodelled as indicated by the masterplan

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders Homes and Communities Agency
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions Not for future phases

secured

Pre-commencement / Many properties have been successfully converted but there are still a number
feasibility work of target properties to be acquired and remodelled.

Achievements to date Twenty-six of the thirty-eight target properties on Clarendon Road East have

been remodelled from HMOs and guesthouses into family homes for shared
ownership with Adactus Housing Association. Ten properties have not been
acquired for re-modelling. Two properties beyond repair have been
demolished along with inappropriate light industrial units clearing a back-land
site that will provide amenity space and parking for neighbouring properties.
Successfully changing place and perception. Removal of over 136 units of
poor quality private rented HMO units

Contract commenced 2005
Contract completion Ongoing
End date of project When properties are finally sold

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels. Transforming the best of Morecambe’s built
heritage.

Council priority - Support sustainable communities — Increase the provision of affordable housing.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC1 — Sustainable Development — Accommodate new development on
previously used land in sustainable locations;

Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to meet regional targets

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe ... an office and service centre with a revived housing market

Policy E1 —Conserve Built Heritage (West End Conservation Area)

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place;

Policy Fit — Very Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Health Priority 4: Increase the proportion of people who have a decent,
affordable, warm, safe home. To balance the housing market to meet customer needs focusing on the
supply of good quality affordable housing and improving the condition of accommodation across the district.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Housing Capital Programme and Homes and
Communities Agency

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v

private sector. Low vz Long term

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term

resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7

Page 23 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 113

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Low Long term

If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option
Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work and improved linkages between West End and Central Morecambe
Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Medium Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
Yes

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) Yes

impact

fund

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Completion of all High cost and Uncertainty of HMO tenure
target properties unsold completed housing market problems will
will maximise properties and growing gap to | continue

Hold/refer as
opportunity/plan
review

Wait for housing
market to pick back

up

Need to maintain
momentum and
impact

Market uncertainty

Increased market
confidence

End involvement

Focus resources on

other areas

Impact of existing
scheme reduced

Missed opportunity

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Clarendon Road East (Area 3) is a medium priority intervention area and a Phase 1 project area that has
benefitted from substantial investment and positive change. The high unit cost of re-modelling properties
prevents further works of this nature and a new approach for these properties is required to achieve the
aims of the Masterplan for this area. Area 3 also presents opportunities for the Housing Capital Programme
to support the Exemplar by funding facelift improvements to Westminster Road properties. The benefits of
this need to be assessed before resources are committed.

» Assess value of alternative ways of achieving the successful completion of the Masterplan’s aims
for Clarendon Road East through the Housing Capital Programme.

» Add Westminster Road facelift scheme as a potential project for Housing Capital Programme

Page 24 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 114

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Chatsworth Road (East) — Area 4

This area, focused around Chatsworth Road, is a zone of low level intervention. Properties in the Chatsworth
Road area are generally in good condition and the area does not display any obvious problems.
Opportunities might come forward to assist home owners that wish to refurbish properties in need of
improvement. However, no specific proposals are planned in the short term and this would not be in the form
of grants but through low cost finance initiatives.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date There has been no public funded physical regeneration in this area.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Vision, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy

Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to meet regional targets

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and service centre with a revived housing market
Policy fit - Poor

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £400k
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Council
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low v Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Nedium term 7
Low v Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option
Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work.

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Page 25 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 115

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Medium Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project would provide few economic outputs and have a low impact and therefore offers poor value for
money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improved quality of | Low intervention Poor value for

environment to area offering little money
residential streets impact
Hold/refer as None None None
opportunity/plan
review
End involvement Enable focus of None None

Masterplan to be on
high intervention
and high priority
areas

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Chatsworth Road East is a low priority for intervention and one of the most sustainable neighbourhoods in
the Masterplan area. The area fits poorly with the Economic Programme and other Policy criteria and
represents poor value for money. The limited resources available would be better focussed on high priority
intervention areas that will yield substantial change.

» This area should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 26 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 116

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Housing Exemplar — Area 5 — PHASE 1 PROJECT

Bordered by the key routes of Regent Road, Albert Road, Balmoral Road and Claremont Road, this is an
area of high intervention. The aim is to;
e Deliver a the Masterplan’s ‘flagship’ project - the Housing Exemplar in the block formed by Regent
Road, Balmoral Road, Albert Road and Westminster Road.
e This involves the demolition of properties along a section of Chatsworth Road to create a communal
green space and private parking for the surrounding remodelled properties.
Relocation of business retail uses into the consolidated retail area
The housing exemplar scheme might include some live/work units.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery
Partner / funders Homes and Communities Agency and Places for People (developer)
commitment
Site / premises identified | Yes
Statutory permissions Outline planning permission granted
secured
Pre-commencement / Two phases of investment of £2.2m and £4.5m have secured 47 of the 73
feasibility work properties.
Achievements to date Over two-thirds of the 73 of target properties have been acquired.
The Exemplar gained outline planning permission June 2008
Contract commenced July 2004, December 2005
Contract completion Ongoing
End date of project 2013

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels.

Council priority - Support sustainable communities — Increase the provision of affordable housing and Lead
the regeneration of our District — Prioritise the development of previously used land.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC1 — Sustainable Development — Accommodate new development on
previously used land in sustainable locations. Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to
meet regional targets. Policy SC8 — The Council will investigate the provision of new and improved open
space in the following areas of deficiency...Morecambe West End. Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe...
an office and service centre with a revived housing market. Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe,
seeking development of a quality which will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their
environmental quality and sense of place.

Policy Fit — Very Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder

This project has good fit with LSP Health Priority 4: Increase the proportion of people who have a decent,
affordable, warm, safe home. To balance the housing market to meet customer needs focusing on the
supply of good quality affordable housing and improving the condition of accommodation across the district.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £5m (under ongoing review due to current

costs) economic/market conditions)

Realistic match funding sources Homes and Communities Agency

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v

private sector. Low vz Long term

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High v Short term

resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low Long term

Page 27 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 117

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility | v Medium term | v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of High Med v Low
preferred option
Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work.

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary

anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Medium Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents reasonable value for money in its current form.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus)? Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Demonstrates Obtaining necessary | Uncertainty of 47 of 73 homes
positive change funding market and ‘gap’ acquired.
Hold/refer as Obtain necessary Negative impact Area blight and Increase security
opportunity/plan funding and other high levels of vacant | loss of momentum | but at additional
review commitments housing costs
End involvement Reduced financial Excess stock Missed opportunity. | -
risk brought in market. Downturn in market
Properties revertto | exacerbated.
low quality
landlord/HMOs

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

The Exemplar is high intervention Phase 1 project with very good policy fit. The Exemplar is a Flagship
Masterplan project for the regeneration of the West End that will initiate positive physical and perception
changes while helping to rebalance the tenure profile. High priority strategic project needs to overcome
significant deliverability issues in the medium term due to market forces. Area 5 also presents opportunities
for the Housing Capital Programme to support the Exemplar by funding facelift improvements to
Westminster Road properties. The benefits of this need to be assessed before resources are committed.

» Secure suitable funding package from Homes and Communities Agency to enable project to
progress.

» Develop Property Strategy for Exemplar and West End.

» Add Westminster Road facelift scheme as a potential project for Housing Capital Programme

Page 28 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 118

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Regent Park — Area 6

This area is dominated by the historic Regent Park and is an area of low intervention and as such, it is not a
priority for radical intervention.
e Opportunities exist to improve, upgrade and enhance this valuable community resource.
e Boundary treatments, footpaths, lighting and seating could all be improved.
e The general aim should be to relieve the current conflict that exists between different users of the
park. This could be done, in part, by clearly defining the different areas of use.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions N/A

secured

Pre-commencement / A comprehensive Masterplan for Regent Park has been recently produced
feasibility work with County Council and aims to complete the regeneration of the park.
Achievements to date Replacement of old playground with new modern equipment.

One bowling green has been relayed.
The boundary treatment has been repainted and repaired.
The improvements have enhanced the park’s amenity and level of use.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC8 — The Council will investigate the provision of new and improved open
space in the following areas of deficiency...Morecambe West End;

Policy E1 — Using all practicable means to make places more pleasant and liveable with safer, cleaner and
more attractive streets and spaces;

Policy Fit - Fair

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project has good fit with LSP Health Priority 1. Reduce health and wellbeing inequalities. Reduce the
difference in life expectancy between the best and worst areas in the Lancaster district.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ Unknown
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lottery, Trusts etc
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Vision” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, private Medium Medium term v
sector. Low v Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility v Short term
Med possibility Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
| Core Objective | Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Page 29 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 119

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Economic Impact of
preferred option

High

Med

Low

v

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

and work.

Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Medium Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?

No this project offers low value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Quality provision Low intervention Low economic Investment in

will offset local
shortage of

area that is largely
sustainable

outputs

existing Open
Space mitigates

provision loss of Central
Park
Hold/refer as Enable funding Low intervention Low economic Investment in
opportunity/plan strategy for area that is largely outputs existing Open
review Masterplan to be sustainable Space mitigates

completed

loss of Central
Park

End involvement

Enable focus of
Masterplan to be on
high intervention
and high priority
areas

The Park is one of
the few public open
spaces serving the
West End and
needs to serve a
diverse range of
needs

Lose active Friends
group

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Regent Park is an area for low intervention and a medium priority offering poor policy fit in an “economic”
sense. Given that there is no longer much possibility of improving the amount of public open space in the
West End it is important to improve the quality of the existing amenity.

» Work with Friends Group to implement the recently completed Masterplan for Regent Park.

Page 30 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 120

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Marine Road West — Area 7

This area comprises a mix of four storey residential, hotel, bed and breakfast and commercial units along this
key frontage and represents a zone of medium level intervention. Opportunities exist to:
o Refurbish properties fronting Marine Road West to incorporate new high quality restaurants and
cafes.
e Trinity Church represents a key development opportunity.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date A planning application did come forward for Trinity Church but this was not

approved and negotiations to bring forward a suitable re-use of the building
have stalled resulting in s215 Untidy Land Notice being served.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels.

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place

Policy E1 — Conserving listed buildings;

Policy Fit - Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £3m estimated
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lottery, Trusts etc
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low 7 Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low v Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
| Core Objective | Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Page 31 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 121

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Improved image of promenade properties

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The improvements to properties on Marine Road West provide few economic outputs and offers poor value
for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) No

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improved High cost in medium | Low economic High profile
properties fronting priority area outputs
promenade
Hold/refer as Refocus just onto Some prominent Limited resources Statutory
opportunity/plan Trinity Church. to poor condition and powers to obligation to
review bring forward properties will action and bring enforce to protect
private remain on sea front | forwards listed building
development at no redevelopment of
cost to Council Trinity Church
End involvement Enable focus of Listed Building at Poor quality of
Masterplan to be on | risk that requires seafront properties
high intervention intervention to save | stymie
and high priority and bring back into regeneration
areas use

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Marine Road West is a medium intervention area and a medium priority that offers good policy fit.
Refurbishing properties on Marine Road West represents poor value for money. The limited resources
available would be better to focused on high priority intervention areas that will yield substantial change.
This housing project should therefore be deferred to the medium to long term.

To safeguard the historic fabric and bring Trinity Church back into productive use intervention and
resources need to continue to be focussed to obtaining a satisfactory resolution to this semi-derelict
building on the Promenade.

» Defer to medium term and review options once high priority housing projects have been delivered.

» While a solution is found to bring it back into productive use continue to use enforcement to ensure
security and appearance of Trinity Church.

» Negotiate with owner to find a long-term solution for Trinity Church.

Page 32 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 122

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Yorkshire Street Environmental Improvements — Area 8 — PHASE 1 PROJECT

This area centred on Yorkshire Street represents a zone of high level invention and the aim is to;

e Consolidate and enhance the retail offer in this area to provide a niche-led retail focus to the West
End.

e Develop stronger retail ‘anchors’ at each end of Yorkshire Street; at the northern end this could be
formed through the redevelopment of the Alhambra and at the southern end this may require
clearance to realise a suitable development site.

e High quality public realm improvements in this area will reflect the area’s important role as the focal
point of the West End, creating a pedestrian dominated environment.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders NWDA concept was previously approved
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / NWDA funded pre-approval expenditure has enabled the shopfront
feasibility work improvement project to be designed and costs produced.

Achievements to date Public realm works have enhanced the environment addressing issues of

poor perception. There has been a significant reduction in the high level of
void shops with 8 new shops opening up since completion.

Ground floor of Alhambra has changed from low quality amusement arcade
into an Antiques market.

A recent planning application to replace 4 very low quality shops with 3 quality
two-storey shop units poses a substantial improvement.

Contract commenced June 2007 (Phase 1)
Contract completion April 2008 (Phase 1)
End date of project 2011

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels. Deliver high quality public realm by;
Developing a strategy for West End retail core.

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER4 — Identifies West End as a local shopping centre providing key services to
local communities;

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place

Policy Fit - Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £975k

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Contribution from landlords and shop keepers
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term v
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7

Page 33 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 123

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Low Long term

If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of High Med v Low

preferred option

Key Project Benefit Reduced shop voids, improved retail sector performance and enhanced offer for

(output / outcome) the West End as a place to live and work

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)
Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Medium Medium Medium Medium Medium Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project would offer medium value for money, but the outputs are difficult to capture, attribute and at
best indirect making the project more likely to be low value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus)? No

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improved quality of | High cost and Failure to capture / | Commitment to
environment indirect outputs attribute outputs phase 1 project
Hold/refer as Allow first phase to | Continue to defer Failure to capture / | Commitment to
opportunity/plan make impact and private investment attribute outputs phase 1 project
review review need in shopfronts
End involvement Enable Some poor quality None
shopkeepers to frontages will not be
invest improved

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Yorkshire Street is a high intervention phase 1 project that offers good policy fit. Public realm works have
been successful in reducing shop voids and this has led to some frontages being improved. The proposed
shopfront improvements project should be revisited after implementation of Commercial Core project and
assess whether it is still required.

» Defer assessment of project’s value until after the implementation of the Commercial Core project.

Page 34 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 124

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Central Park — Area 9 — PHASE 1 PROJECT

This is a high intervention area containing some of the most significant proposals within the masterplan to;
e Create a new park that will act as a civic heart for the West End and will provide an extended and
enhanced new green space for use by local residents and this responds directly to some of the
views previously expressed by local people.
e A block of properties between Regent Road and Devonshire Road would need to be cleared.
Provide the location for a new Children’s Centre.
Linked proposals include refurbishing the existing Co-op building.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Central Park has been removed from the Masterplan proposals by Cabinet.

Partner / funders NWNDA stated that the project offered poor value for money
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / EP Collaboration Agreement funding enabled the acquisition of 4 of the 22

feasibility work properties needed to be acquired. NWDA funded pre-approval expenditure
has enabled the project to be costed.

Achievements to date The feasibility of the Co-Op Building’s re-development is being explored with

partners with an initial structural survey planned (see other scoring sheet).

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC8 — The Council will investigate the provision of new and improved open
space in the following areas of deficiency...Morecambe West End;

Policy E1 — Using all practicable means to make places more pleasant and liveable with safer, cleaner and
more attractive streets and spaces;

Policy Fit - Fair

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £4.7m
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Landfill Tax Funding
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low 7 Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low v Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of | High | | Med | v | Low |

Page 35 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 125

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

preferred option | | | | |

Key Project Benefit Improved quality of life and quality of the built environment
(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project offers poor value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus)? No

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Improved quality of | Incredibly high cost | Cost over runs and | Impact on place
environment CPO failure making

Hold/refer as Scale down to Does not provide Failure to acquire Attainable and

opportunity/plan provide car park / the scale of place Imperial Public still delivers

review improved park making benefits House outputs

Need to resell
acquired properties

£4.7m could be
better spent
elsewhere

Lack of open space
and no new civic
heart

End involvement

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Due to high cost and poor value for money Central Park has been removed from the Masterplan as a
project proposal. However, a principal aim of the Masterplan was to create new public open space and this
was widely supported in all community consultations. Given that there is no longer a possibility to improve
the amount of public open space in the West End it is important to improve the quality of the existing
amenity. Potential for additional car parking to support the Co-op building proposal to be noted.

> No action.

» See Regent Park and Promenade improvements.

Page 36 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 126

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Co-Op Building — Area 9

This is a high intervention area containing some of the most significant economic proposals within the
masterplan to refurbish the existing Co-op building and bring it back into positive use.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders LCDL and NWDA have expressed interest
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / EP Collaboration Agreement funding enabled the building to be acquired.

feasibility work Structural survey to be undertaken jointly funded by LCDL and
Neighbourhood Management

Achievements to date Building has been secured while proposals are developed to bring the building

back into economic use.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Develop an East — West Employment Corridor along the new M6 Link
route, where accessible economic opportunities will bring our communities together.

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER4 — Identifies West End as a local shopping centre providing key services to
local communities;

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived housing market
Policy Fit — Excellent

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project has good fit with LSP Education, Skills & Opportunities Priority 1: Increase the provision and
opportunities for all people to self develop

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £2.2m (estimate)
costs)
Realistic match funding sources LCDL
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High v Short term v
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High v Short term v
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility v Short term
Med possibility Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Establish Morecambe as a Business Location
Economic Impact of High v Med Low
preferred option

Page 37 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 127

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Increased employment and businesses in deprived community

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Medium Low Low Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
Yes this project offer good value for money and will deliver core economic outputs — jobs / businesses

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus)? Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Bring building back | Potential issues re lack | Demand in Carry out

into use and create
business space and
employment

of parking and cost of
remedial works

unproven market.
Unforeseen building
refurb costs

demand analysis
in advance of
investment

Hold/refer as

Potential additional

Funding will need to be

Increased capital

Seek to deliver

opportunity/pl | demand through found from elsewhere to | costs due to through two

an review upturn in economy reimburse Exemplar. deterioration funders thereby
Further deterioration sharing the risk

End No further public Building in prime Difficulty in selling Sell building with

involvement investment location continues to be | building in current conditions on re-

an eyesore and

market to reimburse

use

underused Exemplar

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

The Co-Op project offers excellent policy fit, core economic outputs and represents the strongest economic
regeneration opportunity in the West End. Securing investment to bring forward this project should be
considered as a high priority. Within the new Economic Regeneration Framework the proposal is now seen
in a “Morecambe-wide” context contributing to the economic development of the entire area not just the
‘local’ West End community. Emerging West End businesses will benefit and also, if general employment
and training is an objective, then West End residents will also benefit. The redevelopment of a derelict
building will have major benefits for the commercial core not least in new business and ‘life’. From funders’
view it delivers many more potential direct and measurable benefits than Central Park proposal. The Co-op
building is below the threshold where a transport assessment is required. Nonetheless, it would be a good
idea to address travel to work, both from a policy and from a project sustainability point of view. The
maximum parking standard for offices in sustainable locations is one space per 30 sgm.

Area 9 presents opportunities to support the Exemplar through facelift improvements to Westminster Road
properties. The benefits of this need to be assessed before resources are committed.

» Include in current NWDA funding bid for development of project proposals for the District’s
Economic Regeneration Programme priorities.

» Liaise with LCDL regarding interim work to be undertaken to secure their involvement (Structural
Survey)

» Establish an initial project delivery group and stakeholder steering group to ensure that benefits
are delivered with input from West End interests as appropriate.

» Add Westminster Road facelift scheme as a potential project for Housing Capital Programme

Page 38 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 128

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Devonshire, Balmoral, Alexandra, Clarendon and Chatsworth Road — Area 10

This is a zone of low intervention and contains primarily residential properties in good condition.
Opportunities might come forward to assist home owners that wish to refurbish and remodel larger properties
to create family accommodation. This could involve the removal of outriggers and the creation of larger
private gardens. However no specific proposals are planned in the short term and this would not be in the
form of grants.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date There has been no public funded physical regeneration in this area.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market.

Policy Fit - Poor

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £600k public realm and £2m housing

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Council Homes and Communities
Agency Housing Capital Programme

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v

private sector. Low vz Long term

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term

resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low v Long term

If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of High Med Low v

preferred option

Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live

(output / outcome) and work

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Page 39 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 129

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Vision priorities? This
project offers poor value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

opportunity/plan
review

alternative
interventions

resources

low priority options

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improved quality of | Low intervention Poor value for -
environment to area offering little money
residential streets impact
Hold/refer as Plan review of Still a low priority for | Time to re-develop | Low cost

End involvement

Enable focus of
Masterplan to be on
high intervention
and high priority
areas

Lack of impact in
this Masterplan
neighbourhood

None

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

change.

» This area should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Balmoral Road is a low intervention area and is one of the most sustainable neighbourhoods in the
Masterplan area. It has poor policy fit and offers low value for money against economic criteria. The limited
available resources would be better focussed on high priority intervention areas that will yield substantial

Page 40 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 130

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Bold Street, Marine Road West and West End Gardens — Area 11 — PHASE 1
PROJECT

This is an area of high intervention and proposals include;

e Major public realm improvements to the promenade and West End Gardens as presently the quality
of the public realm and visitor experience is poor.

e Create a visitor destination that draws people into the West End and that enlivens the area.

e Create complementary visitor facilities to strengthen the West End as a visitor destination.

e Raising the gardens, to exploit views out over the bay (currently blocked by the sea defences) is
worth considering and this may enable off street car parking to be provided

e Housing remodelling and improvement project is proposed for Bold Street, to tackle a specific
problem of poor housing conditions. In addition, subject to detailed appraisals, to acquire and
demolish the even numbered side of Bold Street and back Winterdyne to develop new private
housing, having regard to the long term future of Winterdyne Terrace.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders Marlborough Road — Adactus and Homes and Communities Agency (?)
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions Planning permission for Marlborough Road redevelopment has been granted
secured

Pre-commencement / 4 Bold Street properties acquired using English Partnership’s funding. EP
feasibility work funding now needs to be released for the Exemplar project.

Achievements to date West End Gardens improvements and the New iconic Café now provide a first

class amenity that is a popular destination and attraction.

A facelift scheme for odd numbered side of Bold Street is underway. Even-
numbered side of Marlborough Road is to be re-developed in partnership with
Adactus to provide shared ownership flats and townhouses and aim to start
on site in October 2010.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Vision, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels.

Council priority Support sustainable communities — Increase the provision of affordable housing.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC1 — Sustainable Development — Accommodate new development on
previously used land in sustainable locations. Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to
meet regional targets. Policy SC8 — The Council will investigate the provision of new and improved open
space in the following areas of deficiency...Morecambe West End. Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe ...
an office and service centre with a revived housing market. Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe,
seeking development of a quality which will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their
environmental quality and sense of place.

Policy Fit — Very Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Health Priority 4: Increase the proportion of people who have a decent,
affordable, warm, safe home. To balance the housing market to meet customer needs focusing on the
supply of good quality affordable housing and improving the condition of accommodation across the district.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £1.75m

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Homes and Communities Agency
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High | | Short term

Page 41 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 131

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low v Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of High Med v Low

preferred option

Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
Yes because the area’s poor condition has such a negative impact on the West End

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Tackle worst None Current economic Low property

properties in area climate values

Hold/refer as Air of dereliction Need to release Continued decline Time to obtain
opportunity/plan continues Exemplar funding funding
review

End involvement

Release funding for
Exemplar

Houses return to
private rented

Existing schemes
suffer

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Bold Street is a high intervention phase 1 project area that offers good policy fit. Because the even

numbered side of Bold Street exhibits the poorest quality housing in the West End it is a high priority. LCC
have acquired four properties on even numbered side of Bold Street with Exemplar funding that needs to
be recycled to cashflow the acquisitions.

The development of a preferred strategy to take forward the aims of the Masterplan for these properties is
of paramount importance. This should be a high priority for the Housing Capital Programme.

» In conjunction with the Property Strategy for the Exemplar develop a strategy to deal with the even
numbered side of Bold Street.

» Identify potential options for the even numbered side of Bold Street.

» Bold Street is a high priority area for Regional Housing Board allocation.

Page 42 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 132

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Gardner Road — Area 12

This is a zone of medium level intervention where much of the housing stock is in good condition and
requires minimal refurbishment. Opportunities exist to remodel a number of the larger properties in the area
to create accommodation suitable for families.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date There has been no public funded physical regeneration in this area.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market.

Policy fit - Poor

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £1.5m

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Housing Capital Programme and the Homes and
Communities Agency

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v

private sector. Low 7 Long term

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term

resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term

If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of High Med Low v

preferred option

Key Project Benefit Make the West End a place people want to live and work

(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Page 43 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 133

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project would provide few economic outputs and offers poor value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Provide more family | High cost in medium | Low economic

accommodation priority area outputs

Hold/refer as Refocus onto re- Previously failed to Current state of Lower cost of

opportunity/plan development of secure Housing housing market industrial

review Grafton Place Corporation property
industrial units for investment compared to
residential residential

Lack of impact in
this Masterplan
neighbourhood

Inappropriate light
industrial units will
remain in residential
area

Enable focus of
Masterplan to be on
high intervention
and high priority
areas

End involvement

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Gardner Road is a low priority area for intervention that offers poor policy fit and delivers few economic
outputs. Resources would be better focussed on high priority intervention areas that will yield substantial
change.

» This area should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 44 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 134

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Avondale and Barnes Road — Area 13

This is an area of medium level intervention.

e Opportunities exist to improve the amenity of this area through redevelopment of the current
workshop units along Back Avondale Road (East) to create additional garden space for surrounding
residential properties.

e The workshops units along Back Avondale Road (West) could also be removed and replaced with a
high quality mixed use scheme, perhaps incorporating workspace for creative industries in the West
End.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date There has been no public funded physical regeneration in this area.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Develop an East — West Employment Corridor along the new M6 Link
route, where accessible economic opportunities will bring our communities together.

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market.

Policy E1 — In areas such as the West End of Morecambe, seeking development which is of a quality which
will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place;
Policy Fit - Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £1m
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Homes and Communities Agency
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term v
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of | High | | Med | v | Low |

Page 45 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 135

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

preferred option | | | | |

Key Project Benefit Make the West End a place people want to live and work
(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The provision of gardens offers few economic outputs and represents poor value for money. The
redevelopment of poor quality workshops delivers core economic outputs and could offer good value for
money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Provide more High cost housing Low economic Lower land
suitable family intervention in outputs from values
accommodation medium priority gardens project. Carry out
Remove area. Demand for demand analysis
inappropriate light Business premises business space in in advance of
industrial units in a largely unproven market investment
Higher value residential area
employment

Hold/refer as Identify alternative Previously failed to Current state of Lower land

opportunity/plan means to bring secure Housing housing market values

review forward Corporation
development investment

End involvement Focus resources on | Inappropriate light No benefit to area Higher priority
higher priority / industrial units will from Masterplan projects will do
impact projects remain in residential more for area

area

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Avondale / Barnes is a medium intervention area and offers poor policy fit. The improvement of rear garden
space is low impact and therefore a low priority and should not be pursued.

Proposals for redevelopment of workshop units to provide mixed use schemes/workspace should be put
forward in isolation of gardens proposal.

» In the medium term the potential to develop a mixed use/workspace proposal for Back Avondale
Road West should be explored.

Page 46 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 136

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Sefton and Stanley Road — Area 14

This is a zone of low level intervention.

e Opportunities exist to carry out some refurbishment of the housing stock where necessary.

e There are also opportunities to carry out low level public realm improvements in the future, though
no immediate public sector investment is planned.

e However there may be opportunities to assist home owners that wish to carry out home
improvements through low cost Finance Initiatives.

e However no specific proposals are planned in the short term and this would not be in the form of

grants.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment

Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None

commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No
secured

Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date

Refurbishment of 1 vacant corner shop with Adactus to provide Live Work Unit

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

housing market.
Policy fit - Poor

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.
LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and service centre with a revived

This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’
costs)

£950k

Realistic match funding sources

Lancashire County Council

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective

Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of High
preferred option

Med

Low

v

Key Project Benefit

(output / outcome) and work

Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Page 47 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 137

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme? The project
would provide few economic outputs and have a low impact and therefore offers poor value for money.
Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Improved quality of | Low intervention Poor value for
environment to area offering little money
residential streets impact

Hold/refer as Review need and Low priority for None

opportunity/plan type of intervention | expending

review in area resources on a

review

End involvement Enable focus of No improvement to No change Better focus
Masterplan to be on | this area resources onto
high intervention high priority /
and high priority impact areas
areas

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Stanley / Sefton Road is a low priority for intervention that offers poor policy fit and would deliver few
economic outputs. Resources would be better focussed on high priority intervention areas that will yield
substantial change.

» This area should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 48 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 138

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Bus and Illuminations Depots — Area 15 — PHASE 1 PROJECT

The former bus depot site is an area of high intervention and represents a major redevelopment opportunity.
The masterplan proposes;
e High quality residential development comprising townhouses and some apartments.
e The emphasis will be on home ownership, larger family orientated units and high quality in terms of
design and sustainability.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders Private developer Harron Homes taking forward scheme
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions Full planning permission granted
secured

Pre-commencement /
feasibility work

Achievements to date Private developer, Harron Homes, has completed approximately half of the
planned 84 3-4 bedroom homes and apartments.

Development has stalled due to the credit crunch with only half the units
completed and number of completed units remains unsold.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy SC1 — Sustainable Development — Accommodate new development on
previously used land in sustainable locations. Policy SC4 — Deliver new homes and affordable homes to
meet regional targets. Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market. Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will
raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place;
Policy Fit — Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Health Priority 4. Increase the proportion of people who have a decent,
affordable, warm, safe home. To balance the housing market to meet customer needs focusing on the
supply of good quality affordable housing and improving the condition of accommodation across the district.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £0
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Private developer
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Vision” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, private Medium Medium term v
sector. Low v Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term
Low v Long term v
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Page 49 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 139

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option
Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary

anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
No

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Complete Private development | Housing Market Low property
construction on site Uncertainty values
Hold/refer as Wait for housing Incomplete site in Impact of un- Itis still an
opportunity/plan market to pick back | interim developed half of improvement on
review up site previous use
End involvement None Site needs Undeveloped site
completing has adverse impact
on completed half

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

The Bus / llluminations Depot is a high intervention high priority area ands phase 1 project that offers good
policy fit. The private developer has hit financial difficulties and only half the site has been completed and it
now seems unlikely to finish in the short term. The completion of this important site remains a high priority,
but the ability to influence this is limited.

» Continue to press for the completion of the development through statutory planning powers.

» Consider alternative potential options to bring forward successful completion.

Page 50 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 140

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Granville Road — Area 16

This is an area of medium level intervention characterised by a lack of private garden space and poor quality

backs to many properties.

e Significant public realm improvements to enhance the quality of the streets are envisaged in the

longer term.

e Harrington Road and Hampton Road are regarded as potentially suitable streets to receive a

‘homezone’ treatment.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment

Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None

commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No
secured

Pre-commencement /
feasibility work

Achievements to date None

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

Policy Fit - Fair

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.
LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market. Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will
raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place;

This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’
costs)

£450k

Realistic match funding sources

Lancashire County Council (Highways)

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Vision” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, private Medium Medium term v
sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective

Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work

Economic Impact of High
preferred option

Med

Low

v

Key Project Benefit

(output / outcome) and work

Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Page 51 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 141

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project would provide few economic outputs and offers poor value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improve residential offer | High cost in medium Low economic outputs

of the West End

priority area

Hold/refer as
opportunity/plan
review

Always intended to be a
medium to long term
intervention

End involvement

Acceptance that this is
beyond the limitations of
currently available
funding

This area has not seen
any change as a result
of the Masterplan

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Granville Road is a low priority area for intervention that offers poor policy fit and delivers few economic
outputs. Resources would be better focussed on high priority intervention areas that will yield substantial

change.

» This area should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 52 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 142

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Fairfield Road — Area 17

This is a zone of low level intervention comprising mainly two storey housing in a good state of repair.
e Opportunities exist to refurbish properties where necessary.
e Low level public realm improvements would be beneficial but this is not an area where public funding
will be targeted in the short term.
e Opportunities may come forward to assist home owners that wish to refurbish their properties
through low cost Finance Initiatives. However, no specific proposals are planned in the short term
and this would not be in the form of grants.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions None
secured

Pre-commencement / None
feasibility work

Achievements to date None

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market.

Policy Fit - Poor

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £300k
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low 7 Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low v Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term
Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Developing Morecambe as a desirable choice as a place to live and work
Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option
Key Project Benefit Enhanced residential environment will improve the West End as a place to live
(output / outcome) and work

Page 53 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 143

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project would provide few economic outputs and offers poor value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improve residential offer | High cost in low priority | Low economic outputs

of the West End area

Hold/refer as
opportunity/plan
review

Always intended to be a
medium to long term
intervention

This area has not seen
any change as a result
of the Masterplan

Acceptance that this is
beyond the limitations of
currently available
funding

End involvement

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Fairfield Road is a low priority for intervention that offers poor policy fit and would deliver few economic
outputs. Resources would be better focussed on high priority intervention areas that will yield substantial
change.

» This area should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 54 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 144

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Primary Routes

These key access routes are a high priority for intervention and will be the subject of a
comprehensive package of environmental enhancements comprising boulevard landscaping,
enhanced signhage, new floorscape, lighting and public art for the following streets;

e Marine Road West e Regent Road
e Heysham Road

Primary Routes - Heysham Road Gateway

Project Title: Heysham Road Gateway

Masterplan Areas 11, 14 and 15

reference:

Brief description Heysham Road is a gateway into the West End from the port of Heysham and

exhibits very poor environmental quality; this is exacerbated by some of the
properties backing onto Heysham Road. Improvements to some of the rear
boundaries and the rears of properties as well as some junction improvements to
enhance the public realm are proposed.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders NWDA concept was previously approved
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / NWDA funded pre-approval expenditure has enabled the project to be
feasibility work designed and costs produced.

Achievements to date Housing Capital Programme is improving rear of some properties

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels.

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived
housing market. Policy E1 — In areas such as the West End of Morecambe, seeking development which is
of a quality which will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and
sense of place.

Policy Fit - Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Environment Priority 3: Promote and enhance sustainable forms of
transport and reduce private car use in urban areas throughout the district. Reduce vehicle traffic and
deliver better public transport and cycling and walking routes

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £998k

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways / Housing Capital
Programme

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term v

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term

private sector. Low Long term

Page 55 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 145

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

preferred option

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term v

resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term
Low Long term

If funded project delivery is: High possibility v Short term v
Med possibility Medium term
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check
Core Objective Establish Morecambe as Business Location
Economic Impact of High Med Low v

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Medium Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
There are considerable physical constraints that reduce the impact of public realm works combined with the
high cost result in the project providing low value for money.

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Key gateway Delivers few actual High cost and low -

opportunity/plan
review

effective

improvements more

permissions

improves economic outputs impact
perception
Hold/refer as Small scale Piecemeal Private landowner Good value for

money

End involvement

Funding can be
directed to higher
impact projects

High priority for
intervention

Negative impact
continues

High cost and
few economic
outputs

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Heysham Road Gateway is a high priority high intervention project that offers good policy fit. Feasibility
work has identified deliverability issues, namely high cost and low impact caused by physical constraints.

» This project should therefore be deferred as a medium priority for the medium term.

Page 56 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 146

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Primary Routes - Marine Road West

Project Title: Marine Road West

Masterplan 1,2,8and 11

reference:

Brief description The importance of this street in terms of its location along the seafront and as a

key visitor gateway is not reflected by the existing treatment. There is a real
opportunity to raise the character of the street through artwork that links into recent
work carried out around Morecambe town centre. Introducing street trees, a high
quality floorscape and lighting strategy will begin to promote increased use.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders None
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No
secured
Pre-commencement / None

feasibility work

Achievements to date

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels. Deliver high quality public realm by;
Completing the transformation of the Seafront with the upgrading of the West End Promenade

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Policy Context: Policy ER2 — Through tourism...regeneration Re-invent Morecambe as... an office and
service centre with a revived housing market.

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place;

Policy Fit — Very Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Environment Priority 3: Promote and enhance sustainable forms of
transport and reduce private car use in urban areas throughout the district. Reduce vehicle traffic and
deliver better public transport and cycling and walking routes

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £750k
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term v
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility v Short term
Med possibility Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Page 57 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 147

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Transforming how Morecambe looks and maximising the potential of the visitor
economy

Economic Impact of Med v Low

preferred option

High

Key Project Benefit Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents good value for money and is a high impact area

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.

one with aless economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Key gateway Needs to Impact may be High profile site
improves incorporate Prom reduced unless
perception improvements prom included
Hold/refer as Tie in with Prom Poor quality image Positive change Allow time for
opportunity/plan and Frontierland continues momentum lost planning and
review consultation

End involvement

Funding can be
directed to higher
impact projects

High priority for
intervention

Negative impact
continues

Hard to attribute
outputs to
investment

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

elevates this to a

higher priority.

Marine Road West public realm improvement project is in a high profile area but has a weaker policy fit
than other high priority projects. However, the high profile nature of the site as the ‘Face of the West End’

A more comprehensive approach that looks simultaneously at improvements to both Marine Road West
and the Promenade between the Battery and Midland Hotel would achieve the greatest impact. This
approach has been successful in Central Morecambe in delivering a high quality public realm.

» Aim to include wider public realm proposals for Marine Road West in the Promenade
improvements. Bid to NWDA presently under development by Forward Planning

Page 58 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 148

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Primary Routes - Regent Road

Project Title: Regent Road

Masterplan 8and5

reference:

Brief description This is the main street in the West End and is the focus for retail business. The

existing floorscape is ageing, with a mix of various treatments from brick pavers to
stone flags. Unification in treatments will bring up the quality of the floorscape.
Introducing street trees will improve the character of the street and help to frame
views of the seafront.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders NWDA concept was previously approved
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / NWDA funded pre-approval expenditure has enabled public realm
feasibility work improvements to be designed and costs produced.

Achievements to date

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels. Deliver high quality public realm by;
Developing a strategy for West End retail core.

Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District — Improve economic prosperity throughout the
Lancaster district

LDF Policy Context: Policy ER4 — Identifies West End as a local shopping centre providing key services to
local communities. Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will
raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived housing market

Policy Fit — Excellent

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Environment Priority 3: Promote and enhance sustainable forms of
transport and reduce private car use in urban areas throughout the district. Reduce vehicle traffic and
deliver better public transport and cycling and walking routes

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £257k
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Council (Highways)
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term v
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility v Short term v
Med possibility Medium term
Low possibility Long term

Page 59 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 149

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective

economy

Transforming how Morecambe looks and maximising the potential of the visitor

Economic Impact of

preferred option

High

Med v

Low

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Medium Low Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents good value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Key gateway Potential impact Private sector This approach

improves
perception and
focuses retall
activity into core

dependent upon
private sector
investment in

property

investment not
realised

has been
successful on
Yorkshire Street

Hold/refer as
opportunity/plan
review

Incorporate into
wider programme
of improvements

Poor quality image

continues and does
not lend support to

existing and future

projects

Positive change Enable

momentum lost comprehensive
programme to be
delivered

End involvement

Funding can be
directed to other
projects

High priority for
intervention

Negative impact
continues

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

The Regent Road public realm project offers excellent policy fit delivers core economic outputs represents
good value for money and is in a high profile high intervention area. However, Regent Road should be
considered as part of the wider proposals for the Commercial Core to enable a more integrated delivery.

» Regent Road is included as one of the streets to be improved in the Commercial Core project.

Page 60 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 150

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Clarendon Road Living Street

Project Title: Clarendon Road Living Street

Masterplan 1,2,3,5and 9

reference:

Brief description A key part of the public realm strategy is the creation of a quality pedestrian/ cycle

route running north-south through the West End connecting the residential
hinterland to Morecambe town centre. Running along Clarendon Road onto West
End Road and down Cedar or Grove Street to connect into and through the
Frontierland re-development site this new route is of high importance.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders NWDA concept was previously approved
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / NWDA funded pre-approval expenditure has enabled public realm
feasibility work improvements to be designed and costs produced.

Achievements to date

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project is concerned with Transformation of quality of built and natural environment and
Improved connections to Lancaster and beyond. Council priority Support sustainable communities —
Reduce the impact of climate change within the district.

LDF Policy Context: Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which
will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place.
Policy E2 — Improving walking and cycling networks, creating links and removing barriers.

Policy Fit - Good

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Environment Priority 3: Promote and enhance sustainable forms of
transport and reduce private car use in urban areas throughout the district. Reduce vehicle traffic and
deliver better public transport and cycling and walking routes

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £624k
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways, Frontierland
Developer
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term v
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium 7 Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility v Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Page 61 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 151

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Transforming how Morecambe looks and maximising the potential of the visitor
economy

Med v Low

Economic Impact of
preferred option

High

Key Project Benefit Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents reasonable value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) Yes

permeability and
quality of built
environment

Frontierland
scheme coming
forward

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Improved High cost Dependent on Comprehensive

project that will
provide route
right through
West End

Hold/refer as
opportunity/plan
review

Link could be
delivered without
majority of public
realm
improvements

Contributes less to
changing
perceptions of West
End

Dependent on
Frontierland
scheme coming
forward

Low cost option

End involvement

Poor permeability

between Central
and West
Morecambe
continues

High priority for
intervention

Lost opportunity

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Clarendon Road Living Street is a high priority project that has good policy fit and offers reasonable value
for money. This project is inextricably linked to future development of Frontierland site. This is likely to be
the only opportunity to link the West End to Central Morecambe as the land is unlikely to be available in

future if not secured at this point.

» Maintain current stance on the need for Frontierland to provide greater permeability through legal
powers under planning/development control process.

Page 62 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 152

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Commercial Core

Project Title: Commercial Core - Yorkshire Street, Springfield/Lancashire St, West St,
Parliament St, Devonshire Rd, Albert Rd, Clarendon Rd and Claremont Rd

Masterplan 5and 8

reference:

Brief description Key to the Masterplan’s Public Realm Strategy and a high priority for intervention.

Project aims to clearly define the heart of the West End, providing a core area that
clearly integrates with the coast. A major public realm scheme is proposed along
Yorkshire Street and immediate surrounding streets to greatly improve the
commercial and community heart of the West End. It is also proposed to create a
new pedestrian link between Yorkshire Street’s retail and Clarendon Road’s
cycleway.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders NWDA concept was previously approved
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No

secured

Pre-commencement / NWDA funded pre-approval expenditure has enabled public realm
feasibility work improvements to be designed and costs produced for Claremont Road,
undertaken / funds Devonshire Square and West Street

spent (all partners)

Achievements to date Improvements to Yorkshire Street have already been successful

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

Economic Programme objective: Regenerating and Reinventing Morecambe as an attractive choice to live,
work and visit by re-inventing how Morecambe looks and feels. Deliver high quality public realm by;
Developing a strategy for West End retail core. Council priority Lead the regeneration of our District —
Improve economic prosperity throughout the Lancaster district

LDF Core Strategy: Policy ER4 — Identifies West End as a local shopping centre providing key services to
local communities;

Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which will raise standards
and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place

Policy ER2 — Re-invent Morecambe... an office and service centre with a revived housing market Policy Fit
— Excellent

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project has good fit with LSP Environment Priority 3: Promote and enhance sustainable forms of
transport and reduce private car use in urban areas throughout the district. Reduce vehicle traffic and
deliver better public transport and cycling and walking routes

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £475k costed plus further £380k estimated

costs)

Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways and Housing Capital
Programme

Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term v

Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium v Medium term

private sector. Low Long term

Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term v

Page 63 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 153

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

resources/commitment. Medium v Medium term
Low Long term

If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term v
Med possibility v Medium term
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Transforming how Morecambe looks and maximising the potential of the visitor
economy

Economic Impact of Med v Low

preferred option

High

Key Project Benefit Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Medium Medium Medium

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents good value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) Yes

Risks
Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation
profile:
Deliver Comprehensive Not all the streets Broad approach Yorkshire St

successfully used
this model

fails to focus retail
activity

improvements to
commercial core

will have a high
impact

Hold/refer as Focus on high Some poor quality

opportunity/plan impact streets streets omitted

review

End involvement Direct funding to Oversupply of shop | Poor quality retail
other projects units does not support

other initiatives

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

The Commercial Core is a high priority high profile project that has excellent policy fit and offers good value
for money and utilises the successful approach used for Yorkshire Street. The extent of the Commercial
Core needs to be defined and agreed with local input as there is a difference in opinion between the
Masterplan and the WEP regarding Albert Road’s inclusion. There is overlap with the Commercial Core
and Regent Road proposals and they should be treated as a single proposal focussing on Claremont Road,
West Street, Regent Road Springfield / Lancashire Street. And consideration for the inclusion of Albert
Road. The non-commercial streets of Parliament Street, Clarendon Road and Devonshire Road should be
omitted.

» Include in current NWDA funding bid for development of project proposals for the District's
Economic Regeneration Programme priorities.

» Identify other potetnail resources to deliver this project e.g. County Council
» Housing Capital Programme to identify potential opportunities to support this project as and when

suitable retail properties come onto the market. Utilise cheaper refurbishment model than previous
works implemented with ARCA.

Page 64 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 154

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Secondary Routes

Project Title: Secondary Routes

Masterplan 2,4,6,10,12,13 and 14

reference:

Brief description

Balmoral Road).

These streets are to be treated with a palette of secondary materials to reflect their
status as less important in terms of hierarchy. This approach will help to reduce the
areas set aside for highest quality treatment ensuring that money is channelled
into these important areas. West End Road and Alexandra Road area medium
priority for intervention. In addition a series of low priority interventions are
proposed for Sefton, Stanley, Balmoral, Albany and Regent Road (south of

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment

Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders No
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No
secured

Pre-commencement /
feasibility work

Achievements to date

West End Road has benefitted from a 20mph road safety scheme
implemented by Lancashire County Council.

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local

Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.
LDF Core Strategy: Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which
will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place

Policy Fit - Poor

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?

This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’
costs)

£1m

Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways,
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term v
private sector. Low Long term
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term 7
Low Long term
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term
Med possibility Medium term v
Low possibility Long term

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective
economy

Transforming how Morecambe looks and maximising the potential of the visitor

Economic Impact of High
preferred option

Med

Low

v

Page 65 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 155

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents poor value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Improve areas that | Mainly a low priority | Low impact project | Regeneration
have not yet for intervention delivers little benefits for other
benefitted from the change areas of West
Masterplan End

Hold/refer as Focus only on Some poor quality

opportunity/plan medium priority streets will be

review streets for better omitted
VFM and impact

End involvement Funding can be Benefits of

directed to other
projects

masterplan fail to
reach lower order
streets

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Alexandra Road public realm improvements is a Secondary Route classed as low priority offering fair policy
fit. Improvements to Alexandra Road would bring masterplan benefits to an area that has seen little
change. West End Road has already been improved and should not be pursued.

» The low priority Secondary Routes offer poor policy fit low value for money low impact and should
no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 66 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 156

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Tertiary Streets

Project Title: Tertiary Streets

Masterplan 2,5,6,9,10, 13, 14, 15 and 16

reference:

Brief description Tertiary streets are short connector streets and will comprise of the secondary

palette of materials, helping to reinforce many of the recently improved streets that
exist. Tertiary streets ranked as a high priority for intervention are; Marlborough
Road, Bold St, Granville St, Cumberland View Rd, Grove St, Clarendon Rd East
and Albert Rd (south of Claremont)

Tertiary streets ranked as a low priority for intervention are; Cavendish,
Marlborough, Brunswick, Chatsworth, Fairfield, Devonshire, Avondale Rd, Byron
St and Regent Park Avenue.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment

Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders
commitment

No

Site / premises identified

Yes

Statutory permissions
secured

No

Pre-commencement /
feasibility work

Achievements to date

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

Policy Fit - Poor

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which
will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £2m
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways,
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term
private sector. Low vz Long term vz
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term

Low v Long term v
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term

Med possibility v Medium term

Low possibility Long term v

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Transforming how Morecambe looks
Economic Impact of High Med Low v
preferred option

Page 67 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 157

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Key Project Benefit
(output / outcome)

Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
| provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents poor value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with a less economic focus) No

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Improve areas that | Mainly a low priority | Low impact project | Regeneration
have not yet for intervention delivers little benefits for other
benefitted from the change areas of West
Masterplan End

Hold/refer as Focus only on high | Some poor quality

opportunity/plan priority streets for streets will be

review better VFM and omitted
impact

End involvement Funding can be Benefits of

directed to other
projects

masterplan fail to
reach lower order
streets

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

Despite Marlborough Road and Bold Street being high priority tertiary streets linked to existing funded
housing regeneration proposals the project would have low impact. Resources would be better directed at
projects with better value for money and greater impact on objectives on MasterPlan.

» The low priority Tertiary Street offer poor policy fit low value for money low impact and should no
longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 68 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc




Page 158

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Local Residential Streets

Project Title: Local Residential Streets

Masterplan 1,3,11,12,13, 15,16 and 17

reference:

Brief description These streets have a contained neighbourhood type character, with a scale that

responds to the enclosing residential properties. The first two interventions are to
repair existing streets, or to replace using the secondary materials palette, with the
inclusion of pinch points, signage and occasional street trees to improve and
define the neighbourhood street. A more comprehensive refurbishment will be tied
into streets identified as potential ‘HomeZone’ environments. Local residential
streets ranked as a high priority for intervention as Homezones are Hampton Rd,
Harrington Rd and Grafton Place. Local residential streets ranked as a medium
priority for intervention Halden Rd, Gloucester Drive, Grafton Rd, Highfield
Crescent, Sandylands, Cambridge Rd and Raglan Rd. Local residential streets
ranked as a low priority for intervention are Norton Ave, Barnes Rd, Sefton Rd
south, Byron Rd, Gardner Rd and Claremont Crescent.

Current Delivery Status:

Lead body commitment | Subject to funding the Council is committed to the Masterplan’s delivery

Partner / funders No
commitment

Site / premises identified | Yes

Statutory permissions No
secured

Pre-commencement /
feasibility work

Achievements to date

Contract commenced

Contract completion

End date of project

Strategic Fit:

How does the project fit with the strategic objectives of the new Economic Programme, Local
Development Framework Core Strategy and/or the Council’s priorities?

This Masterplan project area does not fit with the Economic Programme or Council Priorities.

LDF Core Strategy: Policy E1 — In the West End of Morecambe, seeking development of a quality which
will raise standards and help to deliver a step change in their environmental quality and sense of place
Policy Fit - Poor

Does the project/idea fit any other LSP/stakeholder agenda or have support?
This project does not provide good fit with LSP policy.

Realism / Time:

Likely Cost of main project (excluding ‘sunk’ £2.4m
costs)
Realistic match funding sources Lancashire County Highways and Housing Capital

Programme
Likelihood of securing key/major “Economic High Short term
Programme” resources i.e. NWDA, ERDF, Medium Medium term
private sector. Low 7 Long term 7
Likelihood of securing other stakeholder High Short term
resources/commitment. Medium Medium term

Low v Long term v
If funded project delivery is: High possibility Short term

Med possibility v Medium term

Low possibility Long term v

Page 69 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al100017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Page 159

West End Masterplan Mid-Term Review — Final Report April 2009

Value for Money / Additional Benefit Check

Core Objective Transforming how Morecambe looks

Economic Impact of High Med Low v

preferred option

Key Project Benefit Transformation of quality of built and natural environment

(output / outcome)

Additionality (how project benefit complements/ duplicates other projects/initiatives)

Dead weight Leakage - Displaces (takes Substitutes (target Multiplier Added
(likelihood activity (likelihood of market share, labour, sector / firms substitute Value
[ provision arises benefits being land etc from private away from other locally Summary
anyway) lost from sector or replaces core advantageous activity)
Morecambe) public funds)
Low Low Low Low Low Low

Does the project therefore represent value for money in terms of Economic Programme priorities?
The project represents poor value for money

Would the project represent VFM in terms of another LSP agenda / implementation framework (i.e.
one with aless economic focus) No

directed to other

masterplan in low /

masterplan fail to

Risks

Coarse risk Advantage Disadvantage Risk Mitigation

profile:

Deliver Improve areas that | Mainly a low priority | Low impact project | Regeneration
have not yet for intervention delivers little benefits for other
benefitted from the change areas of West
Masterplan End

Hold/refer as Focus only on high | Many poor quality High cost of Improve very low

opportunity/plan priority streets for streets will be Homezone quality streets

review better VFM and omitted treatment
impact
End involvement Funding can be No impact of Benefits of High cost and low

impact

reach lower order
streets

medium priority
areas

projects

Strategic Recommendation and Actions

The high intervention local residential streets highlighted for Homezone treatments only offer fair policy fit
and local impact due to their low visibility and should therefore be considered a medium priority for the
medium to long term. The implementation of Homezone treatments is supported as an option for the
Housing Capital Programme beyond 2009.

» The medium and low priority local residential streets offer poor policy fit low value for money low
impact and should no longer be pursued as a viable masterplan proposal.

Page 70 of 70

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\7\1\Al00017176\WEREPORTAPPENDIX2_v10.doc



Agenda Item 10 Page 160

CABINET

National Transport Awards
02 June 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Community Services)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise Cabinet that a joint County Council/District Council submission promoting
cycling on Morecambe Promenade has been shortlisted for a National Transport
Award and for Cabinet to consider if they wish to send representatives to the award
ceremony.

D Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet \:l
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan n/a
This report is public

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION

(1) Cabinet is asked to consider if they wish to be represented at the awards
dinner in London on 22 July 2009, and if so who the representatives should be.

1.0 Information
1.1 The Awards

The National transport Awards are supported by the Department for Transport, the
Local Transport Planning Network and in association with Transport Times.

Now in its 9th successful year, the National Transport Awards remain all about
recognising excellence across the transport industry in the UK and Ireland,
rewarding innovation and progress for transport initiatives which are really working.

The focus is upon delivering real improvements on the ground rather than simply
policy. The Judging Panel is looking for clear evidence that the approaches adopted
are reaping results and the beneficial effect that this is having on transport users.

The Awards aim to showcase new initiatives, rewarding public and private bodies
which have made a real difference.

The 2009 Award ceremony is to be held on Wednesday 22 July at the Grosvenor
House Hotel, Park Lane, London



1.2

1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

Page 161

The bid

The Awards are open to all local authorities and organisations involved in transport
including the public, private and voluntary sectors.

Invitations to bid were received by Lancashire County Council in January 2009 with
a submission deadline of 13 February. A joint bid was submitted by the County
Council and Lancaster City Council for the Promenade Cycle Route under the
category of ‘Cycling Improvements’

The bid has now been shortlisted along with two other projects and stands a
reasonable chance of taking the top award, all shortlisted projects are rewarded
with commendations.

Should the bid win the award it will provide the Cycling Demonstration Town project
and indeed the two authorities with some excellent publicity and potentially help in
attracted funding to the area and in particular any future extension of the Cycling
England/Department for Transport funded CDT project.

Attendance at Awards Dinner

Lancaster City Council could be represented by a combination of Senior Officers
and/or Elected Members at the dinner - it is anticipated that Lancashire County
Council will be represented but it is currently unclear as to who will be attending.

Attendance at the awards dinner - £189.75 + vat per head
(Grosvenor House Hotel, Park Lane, London)

Travel and overnight accommodation - approx £300 per head

Estimated total cost per head of £500

Options
Do not send representatives to the National Transport Awards dinner

The City Council to be represented at the National Transport Awards dinner by two
Members and one officer.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

Promotion of the CDT project which is a key action in the Corporate Plan

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

No direct impacts identified



Page 162

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial costs are approximately £500 per attendee. Currently no budget has been
identified to support this expenditure therefore savings would need to be made within
existing service budgets to enable these costs to be covered. Until sufficient budgets have

been identified and the number of delegates confirmed no commitments should be entered
into.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’'S COMMENTS

Section 151 Officer has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Peter Loker
Telephone: 01524 582501
E-mail: peterloker@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: reports/cabinet.09/04




Page 163 Agenda Item 11

CABINET

Review of Council Housing Rent Increases 2009/10
02 June 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Community Services) and
Head of Financial Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To update Cabinet on the recent changes that Government introduced regarding the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) subsidy arrangements for 2009/10, and the associated
implications and options for councils housing rents for the current year.

Key Decision X Non-Key Decision Referral from
Cabinet Member

Date Included in Forward Plan June 2009

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That the average annual council housing rent increase for 2009/10 be reduced from
5% to 3.05%, resulting in an average rent of £58.45 over the year.

2. That in line with the above, weekly average rents payable be reduced accordingly
with effect from 03 August 2009, or as soon as possible thereafter, subject to any
implications arising from receiving the final rent determination from Government.

3. That the 2009/10 revenue budgets for the Housing Revenue Account be updated
accordingly, as set out in the report.

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The report sets out information regarding the Government's proposal for
implementing reductions to the average guideline rent increases for council
housing in 2009/10, announced by the Housing and Planning Minister on 06
March 2009. Details of the associated financial implications are also provided.



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Page 164

GOVERNMENT’'S PROPOSALS FOR RENT LEVELS AND SUBSIDY

On 20 January 2009 Cabinet approved the 2009/10 average weekly council
housing rent at £59.56, representing an annual average increase of £2.84 or
5.00%. In comparison, national average guideline rent increases were set by
Government at approximately 6.20%, in accordance with the original rent
restructuring guidelines.

The annual guideline rent increases are based, in part, on the preceding
September Retail Price Index (RPI), published in October. In September 2008,
the RPI year on year increase was 5.0%. The last five months have seen RPI
drop dramatically, however, with the latest published figure (April 2009) being
-0.4%.

After many representations to Government, on 06 March 2009 the Minister for
Housing announced that the national average guideline rent increase for 2009/10
would be halved from 6.2% to 3.1%, to encourage local authorities to reduce their
proposed actual rent increases. Unfortunately, by this time, the City Council had
already set its housing rent levels for 2009/10, but that does not preclude the
Council changing its rent levels during the course of the year.

A draft revised rent determination was subsequently issued by Government for
consultation on 26 March 2009. These proposals raised difficulties for authorities
(such as Lancaster) whose actual average rents were lower than their guideline
rents. As a result, on 07 April the Government issued a further revision to its draft
proposals.

The draft determination effectively reduces the RPI element of the rent formula to
1.9%, which equates to a national average rent increase of 3.10%. Individual
authorities would be affected slightly differently by the proposals, however,
depending on their own specific circumstances. For the City Council, the new
average annual rent increase allowable under Government's latest proposals,
whilst still obtaining compensatory subsidy entitlement, would be 3.05% of the
actual average rent for 2008/09, i.e. an increase of £1.73, giving an average
annual rent payable of £58.45. This is £1.11 lower than that approved by Cabinet
in January.

The financial impact of applying such a new rent increase would result in a loss of
rental income of approximately £218K, but this would be more than offset by an
increase in subsidy of £346K, giving rise to an initial net gain of £128K before
considering any other costs. Whilst this may seem strange, it is simply a
reflection of how the subsidy system would affect this authority; different
authorities would have different net implications arising. More information is
included within the financial implications section of this report.

Councils wishing to take up the proposals had to notify Government by 24 April
2009. Given this timescale Council Officers responded by provisionally accepting
the offer, subject to gaining formal Cabinet approval. It should be noted though
that at the time of writing this report, the final version of Government’s new rent
determination had not yet been received, but it is expected to be published before
the Cabinet meeting. Any updates will be fed into the meeting accordingly.



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

Page 165

PRACTICAL CONSIDERATIONS

The draft determination does present practical difficulties for the Council. 1t is
clear that the effective date of any revised rent must be 01 April 2009. With the
requirement for rent changes to be approved by Cabinet and the need to give
tenants 28 days notice of a change in rent, it would be the week commencing 03
August at the earliest before the tenants themselves actually see a reduction in
their rents.

Should Cabinet wish to approve a change in rent levels for the current year in line
with Government’s proposals, then tenants would be advised that the reduction in
average rent (i.e. from the current level of £59.56, down to £58.45) will be applied
in full but spread over a shorter period, most likely from 03 August 2009 to 02
April 2010. This would further reduce the actual weekly rents payable just for that
period (down to £57.90), and this may give rise to various potential or perceived
difficulties, if the changes and their implications are not communicated clearly
enough. As an example, for the following year, i.e. 2010/11, tenants may
perceive that their subsequent rent increases for that year are much greater,
comparatively. They would also need to be advised clearly that any reduction
does not apply to service charges.

There are practical reasons why the approach of applying the value of the whole
year reduction to a shorter period is being taken. The integrated housing
management system cannot apply the rent reduction retrospectively in a format
that is acceptable to the housing benefit system. Should Cabinet approve a
change in rent levels, however, Officers would write to all tenants to explain the
position and any implications for them.

Government also acknowledges that “there may be an issue of additional one-off
costs that fall to the General Fund, particularly in the administration of housing
benefit...[Government] would appreciate an indication of the amount of such costs
from responding authorities to help ascertain whether they are likely to have an
unreasonable impact on finances or constitute a potential unreasonable additional
burden.” There is no indication, however, that even if an unreasonable burden is
proven, additional government funding would be forthcoming. The estimated cost
of recalculating housing benefits (staff time and software reprogramming) is
£1,500 and this has been duly reported to Government.

OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS (INCLUDING RISK ASSESSMENT)
The Council has two options:
1. Do nothing; i.e. leave council housing rent levels as they are.

2. Reduce the average annual council housing rent increase for 2009/10 from
5% to 3.05%, resulting in an average rent of £58.45 over the year, and
implement as set out in the report, with the associated updates to the revenue
budget.

The advantages of the ‘do nothing’ option are that there would be no additional
administrative burden to either Council Housing (new rent letters and additional
IT system changes) or the Housing Benefits section (retrospective benefit
entitlement changes). The main disadvantages are that tenants have been asked
to pay rent increases substantially higher than the level of inflation and there is a



Page 166

general expectancy, after the Government’s recent announcements, that rent
increases will be lowered; ‘doing nothing’ would not meet these expectations.
Also, under this option the Council would lose the opportunity to benefit from the
associated increase in subsidy. In the circumstances, it would be difficult to
justify keeping the rent increase at 5%.

4.3 In terms of the option for changing rent levels, whilst there would be additional
administrative work generated as a result and potential difficulties in
communicating effectively the associated implications for tenants, overall,
financially, both tenants and the City Council would gain from the proposals in the
current year. As the whole year reduction will be condensed and applied in total
to the remaining 32 weeks of the year, the advantage to the tenant is in the real
reduction of rent by an average £1.66 per week. This amounts to a 2.79%
reduction in average rent (from £59.56 to £57.90) for the 32-week period.

That said, it is not known whether there would be any implications for future years
— this would be dependent on Government’s future proposals and the outcome of
its much wider review of the housing subsidy system. It should be noted,
however, that for 2010/11, it would be expected that any rent increase would be
calculated on the revised year average rent of £58.45, and not the condensed
average of £57.90. This could create difficulties in tenants’ future perceptions.

There is, therefore, some risk attached regarding future years, but any financial
implications cannot really be measured as yet. Cabinet should note that this
proposal focuses only on rents for 2009/10 — future years’ prospects and targets
would be picked up as part of the next budget process.

5 OFFICER PREFERRED OPTION AND COMMENTS
Option 2 — to reduce the average annual council housing rent increase for
2009/10 from 5% to 3.05%, resulting in an average rent of £58.45 over the year,

and implement as set out in the report, with the associated updates to the
revenue budget.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

The proposal would be in line with Objective 6 of the Corporate Plan — in particular, to
improve the affordability of housing.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)

No significant implications directly arising — all tenants would be similarly affected.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Option 1 — Do Nothing

Should Cabinet approve this option, then there will be no change to the HRA budget and
therefore no immediate financial impact on the HRA.




Page 167

Option 2 - Reduce the average annual council housing rent increase for 2009/10 from 5% to
3.05%

This option has a positive net impact on HRA subsidy of approximately £128K.

The reason for this is that the Council’'s existing average rent increase of 5% was not in line
with rent restructuring — it was lower. However, the average guideline rent increase (the
basis on which subsidy payable over to Government is calculated) was higher, in line with
rent restructuring. Therefore the income recovered by the Council through actual rents
charged is currently less than the ‘assumed’ rent income paid over to Government.

Option 2 would bring the Council’'s actual average rent in line with the guideline rent
increase, meaning that the Council’s position is immediately improved as the assumed rental
income payable to Government would be fully offset by the actual rents charged to tenants.
This would also bring the Council in line with the Government’s rent restructuring plans — at
least for 2009/10.

However, there would also be other additional costs to the HRA, such as tenant notifications
and IT software changes - including the communication to tenants referred to in section 3.3.
Government has made it clear that it expects councils to have sufficient resources within the
HRA to cover these. The additional costs to the HRA are estimated to be £6,200; these
would be funded from the additional subsidy thereby reducing the net surplus for the HRA to
around £122K.

In addition, there would also be some additional work generated in the housing benefits
section and some fairly minor costs to General Fund may arise. These are expected to be

manageable within existing budgets, but the position would need to be monitored
accordingly.

DEPUTY SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The deputy S151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

The guidance provided by the Government would appear to be discretionary therefore the
Council is at liberty to determine the appropriate option to achieve its Corporate objectives.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Aisha Bapu
HRA Subsidy Draft Determinations Telephone: 01524 582118
E-mail: abapu@lancaster.gov.uk




Agenda Item 12 Page 168

CABINET

Street Services Agreement with Lancashire County
Council
June 2" 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Regeneration)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The current Residual Highways Agreement between Lancaster City Council and Lancashire
County Council terminates at the end of June 2009.

This report proposes the adoption of a revised agreement now called the Street Services
Agreement which has been offered in its place by the County Council. This will continue to

allow the City Council to maintain its assets on the highway and permit other activities within
the highway which are of benefit to the City Council.

Non-Key Decision D Referral from Cabinet |:I
Member

Date Included in Forward Plan J11.5.2009
The report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1) That Lancaster City Council enters into a legal agreement with Lancashire
County Council named the Street Services Agreement until March 2014 with an
option for areview after two years and options for further extension.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 The Residual Highways Agreement drawn up with Lancashire County Council in
2006 allowed the City Council to carry out many operations on the highway which
remained its responsibility after the removal of the Highways Partnership with
Lancashire County Council. This agreement ends on the 31st June 2009 and the
proposed replacement is titled the Street Services Agreement

2.0 Proposal Details

2.1 Following discussions with the County Council involving officers from the
Engineering Team, Planning Services and officers of City Council (Direct) Services
the new agreement has been drawn up. This agreement has no significant changes
from the previous agreement.

The agreement is split into two parts, the Relevant Tasks and the Permitted Tasks.

Relevant Tasks



Page 169

Grass cutting in highway verges and roundabouts, in the Relevant Area, to a
minimum standard set out in the County Council's Code of Practice, and the areas
shall be agreed between the parties in writing.

Weed control in the highway, in the Relevant Area, to a minimum standard set out in
the County Council's Code of Practice and the areas shall be agreed between the
parties in writing.

Management and maintenance of highway trees, in the Relevant Area, to a
minimum standard set out in the County Council's Code of Practice and the areas
shall be agreed between the parties in writing.

Removal and disposal of leaves in the highway, in the administrative area of the City
Council, to a minimum standard set out in the County Council's Code of Practice and
the areas shall be agreed between the parties in writing.

For these tasks the County Council will pay the City Council an annual fee payable
at the beginning of the year. The figure for 2008/9 was £113,100.

Permitted Tasks

Authority to manage, administer and enforce Residents' Parking Schemes within the
administrative area of the City Council.

Authority to manage and administer on-street pay and display parking schemes
within the administrative area of the City Council

Authority for the City Council to undertake work in the highway within the
administrative area of the City Council. This work to include highway, traffic, cycling,
(including work associated with Lancaster's Cycling Demonstration Town Status)
and pedestrianisation schemes and is subject to the need to obtain the County
Council's prior approval of both technical and maintenance details and to the
requirements of the Traffic Management Act 2004. Whilst the County Council does
not wish to level charges automatically against the City Council for giving its
technical and maintenance approval, it reserves the right to recover its reasonable
costs depending upon the complexity of the scheme. In doing so the County Council
shall use its reasonable endeavours to agree the level of such charges with the City
Council.

Authority for the City Council to work in the highway on its own equipment and
apparatus within the administrative area of the City Council and is subject to the
requirements of the Traffic Management Act 2004 and any subsequent local
agreement on notices, permits etc.

Authority to place in the highway floral and other decorations, within the
administrative area of the City Council, subject to compliance with the County
Council's Code of Practice.

Authority for the City Council to maintain and manage two sections of designated
highway on Morecambe Promenade. The areas shall be agreed between the parties
in writing

Authority to issue permits for the control of vehicular access to local pedestrianised
areas.



Page 170

The agreement will be for a period of 45 months to tie in to a financial year ends with
a review after 21 months and options for further extensions. There are clauses within
the agreement which enable both parties to terminate the agreement with 12 months
notice.

Summary

The agreement gives Lancaster City Council financial support to its grounds
maintenance team whilst maintaining local control of this function on the highway.

The agreement gives a mechanism for the City Council to undertake a wide variety
of functions within the highway which would otherwise involve very time consuming
administrative procedures which would be expensive to organise on an individual
basis.

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 Not applicable

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

4.1

Option Advantages Disadvantages

Option 1 Financial support and local Can be held to account for

Enter into the Street control of the maintenance of | performance by the County

Services Agreement highway verges and Council

associated work.
Streamline mechanism for
carrying out work within the
highway.

Option2 Do not have any No local control of verge

Do not enter into the Street responsibility for maintenance.

Services Agreement maintenance of highways No mechanism for carrying
out maintenance work within
the highway.

Every entry onto the highway
would require formal
permissions

City Council highway
improvement schemes would
involve much lengthier
processes

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

6.0

Option 1 Enter into the Street Services agreement with Lancashire County Council

Conclusion




Page 171

Whilst we no longer have a Highways Agency it is important for Lancaster City Council to
maintain the ability to carry out work in the highway to the benefit of the local population.
This agreement will provide the means for the continuation of this work.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
Policy nos.
5. Cleaner streets and public open spaces
12. Improve economic prosperity throughout the Lancaster district.
18. An improved quality of life for those who live, work in and visit the Lancaster
District

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

Not applicable

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As part of the agreement the City Council receives a contribution from the County Council in
respect of the maintenance of highway trees and verges and associated works. The
agreement stipulates that the annual fee shall be determined by the County Council and the
amount included within the 2009/2010 revenue budget is £115,400 in line with previous year
contributions. Should the annual budget figure not be realised it would leave the City
Council with a shortfall in income and should that position arise an immediate review of the
services provided would be required in line with the requirements of the agreement.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 1510fficer has been consulted and has no further comments.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted upon these arrangements and have no observations to
make on these proposals.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Ged McAllister
Telephone: 01524582617

None E-mail: gmcallister@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:




Agenda Item 13 Page 172

CABINET

Urgent Business Report
2"4 June 2009

Report of Head of Democratic Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To advise Members of actions taken by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the relevant
Cabinet Members and the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from X
Officers

This report is public.

1.0 RECOMMENDATION

That the actions taken by the Chief Executive, in consultation with the relevant
Cabinet Members and the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in
accordance with the Scheme of Delegation, in respect of the following, be noted;-

1.1 Seven Day per Week Opening of Morecambe Visitor Information Centre — Trial
Period

Q) To approve the opening of the Morecambe VIC for 7 days per week as a trial
period during April and May, 2009, and during October and November, 2009.

(2 That a further report is produced at the end of the trial to consider the

feasibility of further extending the 7 days per week operation of Morecambe
VIC from the spring of 2010 onwards.

1.2 Quick Response Vehicle

Q) That Cabinet accepts the Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership offer to
provide £60,000 to fund the quick response vehicle and 2 staff for 2009/10.

(2) That the General Fund Revenue Budget is updated accordingly.
3) That the Overview & Scrutiny Chairman be consulted with a view to waiving

call in, in accordance with Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17, to enable
immediate implementation.



Page 173

4) That the Overview & Scrutiny Chairman be consulted with a view to waiving the
requirement to include the decision in the Forward Plan, in accordance with
Access to Information Procedure Rule 16.

1.3 Freedom of Information Request — Canal Corridor

(1) That Cabinet remove the exemption that is currently in place with relation to
the Canal Corridor Report considered by Cabinet on 22 March 2005 (item 168).

(2) That the Overview & Scrutiny Chairman be consulted with a view to waiving

call in, in accordance with Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17, to enable
immediate implementation.

2.0 Background

2.1 Seven Day per Week Opening of Morecambe Visitor Information Centre — Trial
Period

The issue of 7 day per week opening for the Morecambe VIC was looked at following a
request at the Cabinet and MP liaison meeting on 21% April, 2008. The original request was
to consider the possibility of Sunday opening throughout the whole year and not just during
the summer months. However, it was clear that the financial implications of this would be
likely to require budget growth. It was therefore proposed that an initial trial period of
extended opening be undertaken to assess the levels of demand and income generation,
during the “shoulder” months of the season in April and May, 2009, and the following
October and November.

The trial period will allow the full implications of the costs, income and service to the public to
be assessed to allow an informed decision to be made about the feasibility of extending 7
day per week opening into 2010.

The urgency for this decision was to allow implementation one week after Easter on 26"
April in order to allow for the 13 additional Sundays proposed in the trial period (the VIC is
already open for the 3 bank Holiday Sundays in the spring). There would be 4 additional
Sundays in the spring and 9 in the autumn shoulder period (October-November).

It was requested that the Chief Executive be asked to waive call-in. In the absence of both
the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Mayor of the
City of Lancaster was consulted, but was not in agreement with the decision to waive call-in.
The Chief Executive subsequently decided that this decision was subject to call-in in
accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17(a).

2.2 Quick Response Vehicle

One of the priorities of the neighbourhood management project undertaken by the West End
Partnership and Poulton Neighbourhood Management was to improve the environment of
the area. To help achieve this they funded a Quick Response Vehicle (QRV) and 2 staff that
would reduce the time taken to deal with reports of fly tipping to 1 working day. The vehicle
and staff were provided and managed by City Council (Direct) Services.



Page 174

In terms of providing an immediate response to fly tipping, reducing incidents of arson and
other types of anti-social behaviour this approach has been successful.

As the neighbourhood management project has come to an end this funding is no longer
available. A bid to continue to fund the QRV and 2 staff in 2009/10 was submitted to the
Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership (LDLSP). The outline of the bid was the QRV
would provide a similar type of service but within defined ‘hotspot’ areas throughout the
whole of the District. For 2009/10 the revenue funding required to operate the QRV is
estimated to be £60,000. The LDLSP have offered to contribute the whole of the funding
requirement for 2009/10.

An Urgent Business Decision was sought to enable the funding bid for the LDLSP to be
accepted immediately, which allowed the Quick Response Vehicle and 2 staff to continue to
operate without any loss of service. This decision was a Key Decision on financial grounds,
but it had not been included on the Forward Plan, as such the Chairman of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee agreed to this being treated as a matter of special urgency in
accordance with Access to Information Procedure Rule 16, and gave approval for the Chief
Executive to take the decision in advance of the usual five days notice.

2.3 Freedom of Information Request — Canal Corridor

At the meeting of Cabinet on 22 March 2005, a report on the Canal Corridor proposals was
presented by former Councillor Alex Stone and Councillor Abbott Bryning. Due to the
commercial sensitivity of this report it was classified as exempt.

In February 2009, a Freedom of Information Request was received requesting a copy of this
report. Despite the report being exempt under the Local Government Act, consideration must
be given as to whether exemptions apply under the Freedom of Information Act. Advice was
sought from Legal and Human Resources as to whether the report should be continue to be
withheld. The Legal Services Manager advised that in his opinion there are no commercially
sensitive areas remaining, due to the elapse of time since this report, it is therefore
considered appropriate to remove the exemptions and release the report under the Freedom
of Information Act.

This item was considered as a matter of urgency due to the time constraints dictated by the
Freedom of Information Act. Owing to the time taken to consider the issue of exemptions,
the Council’'s response was already overdue and in breach of the requirements of the Act.
To allow immediate implementation of this decision a request was made that the call in be
waived in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 17(a).

3.0 Conclusion

Approval was given to the above actions, which are reported to this meeting in accordance
with the City Council’s Constitution.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

This is in accordance with the Constitution.




Page 175

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)

Not applicable.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Comments were contained in the original reports.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

Comments were contained in the original reports.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Comments were contained in the original reports.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

Comments were contained in the original reports.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Tom Silvani
Telephone: (01524) 582132
1. Letters to the Leader of the Council, || E-mail: tsilvani@lancaster.gov.uk
Cabinet Member with  Special
Responsibility and Chairman of the Jj Ref ID: UB69/JT
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. UB70/MD
UB71/TH




Agenda Item 15 Page 176

CABINET

Employee Establishment - Vacancy Authorisation
02 June 2009

Report of Chief Executive

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek Cabinet’'s approval to the filling of established vacancies where recommended and
to review the process for approval to the filling of established vacancies.

Non-Key Decision Referral from Chief
Executive

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

1) That Cabinet agrees that the vacancies recommended for filling by Service
Heads are filled as soon as possible.

(2) That the Revenue Budget be updated accordingly, for any deleted or deferred
posts.

3) That Cabinet reinstates the previous process of Service Head delegation,
noting that Cabinet Members can discuss turnover issues with Service Heads
in the Services they oversee.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 As determined by Cabinet, an appropriate Vacancy Authorisation form has been
produced identifying employee vacancies. The form identifies where the post
concerned contributes to a Council statutory responsibility, the fulfiiment of a
Corporate  Plan  Priority, Service Business Plan objective, income
generation/collection or is financed by external funding. The forms will be circulated
prior to the meeting.

1.2 Cabinet, at its meeting on the 11 November 2008, resolved, amongst other things:
That Cabinet

(5) Resolves that this process be reviewed following the next annual Council
meeting in May 2009.



1.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Page 177

Set out below is the procedure that was in place prior to Cabinet resolving to
implement the current process:

Like-for-like Vacancies

Service Head delegation. However Cabinet Members can discuss employee
turnover issues with Service Heads in the Services they oversee.

Changes to Establishment and Conditions of Service

Before being given final authorisation by the Chief Executive, changes to the
Establishment and Conditions of Services must be agreed by the relevant Service
Head, HR Manager, Head of Finance and relevant Corporate Director.

Proposal Details

Cabinet is requested to consider the recommendations of Service Heads and
comments from the Human Resources Manager and Corporate Directors. Cabinet
are advised to identify which Service areas are considered to be a higher priority for
the filling of vacancies and, therefore, approving expenditure.

Cabinet is also requested to review the current process for approval to the filling of
established vacancies. It should be noted that since November 2008, Cabinet has
considered 118 requests. Of these, 115 have been approved and 3 were held back
temporarily and none held vacant permanently. Cabinet is asked to consider
whether or not the extra layer of bureaucracy added by Cabinet’s involvement should
continue.

Details of Consultation

None.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Approval for the filling of current vacancies

The information contained within each form provides details related to the risks of not
filling the related vacancy. Cabinet has the option of releasing funding on either a
time limited or permanent basis or withholding funding. If funding is not released,
there will be an impact on Service provision. If funding is time limited, it will be more
difficult and possibly more expensive to fill a post.

Review of process for the filling of established vacancies

That the status quo is maintained, whereby Cabinet approval is required for the filling
of established vacancies.

That the process set out in 1.3 above is reinstated.



Page 178

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

Approval for the filling of current vacancies

5.1 To fill those posts as recommended by Service Heads unless Cabinet identifies the
work as being of a low priority

Review of process for the filling of established vacancies

5.2 That Cabinet reinstates the previous process of Service Head delegation, noting that
Cabinet Members can discuss turnover issues with Service Heads in the Services
they oversee.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
Effective management of the council’s establishment will help to meet the financial efficiency
targets included in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. Care must be exercised however to

ensure that the process allows the filling of vacant posts that contribute to the delivery of the
Council’s corporate priorities and statutory responsibilities.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

The process allows for an impact assessment of not filling a post to be made in respect of
each vacant post as it is considered

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out on each Vacancy Authorisation form.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’'S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has no comments at this stage, but will comment at the meeting if
necessary.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications.

MONITORING OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Cullinan
Telephone: 01524 582011

Funding of the Employee Establishment | E-mail: chiefexecutive@lancaster.gov.uk

Report to Cabinet and Minute from the 11 || Ref:CE/ES/Cttees/Cabinet/Vacancy

November 2008. Authorisation/02.06.09




Page 179

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	6 Cabinet Appointments to Committees, Liaison Groups, Outside Bodies, Partnerships and Boards
	7 Migrant Impact fund
	8 2008/09 4th Quarter Corporate Performance Review
	Appendix 1 Q4 PRT.pdf

	9 West End Masterplan Mid-term Review
	WE Report APPENDIX 1
	WE REPORT APPENDIX 2

	10 National Transport Awards
	11 Review of Council Housing Rent Increases 2009/10
	12 Street Services Agreement with Lancashire County Council
	13 Urgent Business
	15 Funding of the Employee Establishment
	1(c)Vac Forms.pdf


